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Corporate Profile A 7]

Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”)
has been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 1993. We are one of the world’s leading
container manufacturers and having comprehensive
depot operation networks in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by
five factories in the PRC. We manufacture a wide range
of products including dry freight containers, collapsible
flatrack containers, open top containers, bitutainers, tank
containers, offshore containers, customised specialised
containers and other specialised containers and container
parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots and
logistics company, and is currently running ten container
depots, eight at the major ports in the PRC - Dalian,
Tianjin, Qingdao, Shanghai, Ningbo, Fuzhou, Xiamen
and Guangxi, and two in Hong Kong. We also operate a
logistics company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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/Financial Highlights

REVENUE

B2

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
FRRBRREESRT (EE)

US$'000
US$'000 )0
FE£5 FRx
2,000,000 80,000 72,252
1,807,819
41,452
1,476,670 40,000
1,500,000
1,126,414 0
1,000,000 916,433 2,723
712,209 -40,000
500,000 -59,434
-80,000
-120,000 -110,230
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
2019
—E-hF
US$’000
FEx
Revenue LER 712,209
(Loss) profit from operations we (8518) m A (95,960)
(Loss) profit attributable to RRAFIRRRIEN (BE) &
owners of the Company (110,230)
Basic (loss) earnings per share (US cents)  EARFAL (E1E) BF (=L) (4.56)
Net asset value per share (US cents) BREEFE(EMW) 21.76
Equity attributable to owners PAYNGIE &SV 2 EE v
of the Company 525,810
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHB NS 119,032
Total borrowings (Note) Y=L D) 23,584
Current ratio E L & 2.68 to/ Lt 1
Gearing ratio BEAREAEL X 0.04
Net debt to equity ratio B FRAMEREE S L X N/A
Interest coverage ratio FEAN = N/A
Return on equity (%) AR AN W e 2 (%) (21.0)
m

Note:

Wi - BEREERENEEER -

Total borrowings represent the aggregate amount of interest-bearing borrowings.
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REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
2018 2017 2016 2015
—T-N\F —T—+tF —E—RF —T—0F
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FETT FET FET FET
1,807,819 1,476,670 916,433 1,126,414
35,031 70,652 (49,638) 16,562
72,252 41,452 (59,434) (2,723)
2.99 1.72 (2.46) 0.11)
2717 23.76 22.05 24.63
656,697 574,199 533,014 595,282
119,879 234,774 209,009 242,726
380,436 427,760 365,540 315,000
1.71t0/ b1 1.51t0/ b 1 1.30to/ b 1 2.35t0/ 1
0.58 0.74 0.69 0.53
0.40 0.34 0.29 0.12
7.6 7.3 N/A 7.8
11.0 7.2 (11.15) (0.45)
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board"), | hereby
present the operating results of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group"/"we") for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Over the past twelve months, we at Singamas have
transformed the Group into the "New Singamas", a leading
manufacturer of specialised containers. Towards achieving
this goal, we entered into an agreement on 6 May 2019 that
resulted in the very substantial disposal of several companies
of the Group (the "Disposal"). The management trusts that
the Disposal, subsequently completed on 2 August 2019,
will pave the way for de-risking the Group from the volatile
and trade-driven nature of the market, while at the same time
enable it to adjust the Group's business model in line with the
transformative process underway. Indeed, during the past
financial year, the Group was impacted by a decline in global
trade volume, owing in large part to trade tensions between the
People's Republic of China ("PRC" or "China") and the United
States of America ("US"). Furthermore, the combination of soft
demand for new dry freight containers and intense competition
drove down the average selling price of such containers. These
developments all affected the performance of the Group.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019
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As at the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recorded consolidated revenue totalling US$712,209,000
(2018: US$1,807,819,000), the result of a substantial
drop in revenue due to the Disposal compounded by the
aforementioned soft demand for dry freight containers.
Consolidated net loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to US$110,230,000 - including
non-recurring loss of approximately US$28,900,000
in relation to gain on disposal of subsidiaries net of
correlated capital gain tax, write down of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment and other
fixed assets related expenses (2018: consolidated
profit of US$72,252,000, including a one-time gain of
approximately US$65,604,000 from the disposal of Hui
Zhou Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ("HPCL")). Basic loss per
share amounted to US4.56 cents versus basic earnings
per share of US2.99 cents in 2018.

DIVIDENDS

Based on the operating results of the Group, the Board
did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK7 cents per
ordinary share). Subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the Board recommended the payment of a
special dividend of HK13 cents per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil) in respect
of the disposal of subsidiaries during the year 2019. As
the Board did not recommend the payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2019 (six
months ended 30 June 2018: nil), total dividend for the
year would be HK13 cents per ordinary share (2018: HK7
cents per ordinary share).

Chairman’s Statement &}

BE-_Z—-NAE+-_A=+—HILtEE"
HEEEAL FRTZERMBORBERE
BEEEAB IR AEEMNGKEEE
B 8% 15712,209,000% jt( = & — )\ F:
1,807,819,0003E 7T ) ° A A RIRREREILEREF
5184 110,230,000 7T * B IEFELFE M E 18
#728,900,000% 7T + EH & HEMEB AR WE
WHBRABEERNEE - FREEERME
WS R ERE  UEREMETEERBER

—T-)\F : FEmH72,252,000% T * B
FHEEMAFEFERBERAR ([BEMAFE] A
— IR M5 4965,604,0003% 70 ) © FIREKRE
BA456E - —F— \FRBSBRERZF
2.99 A -

iz 2

REAEENZERE  EFSTEZHMEE
“E-NEFTZA=THIEFEIRERRK
B(ZE-N\F: SEAR7EW) EFg
EER T -NFEREEMNBARIKEEE
“E-NF+ A=+ B LEFERNIKES
RERAR 1B (ZE—N\F - &) - HAKR
NEBCRA B RITOBIRAF RS LHtE -
HREFETEZMNBE T NFA=1
BIEAEAREP RS (ZE-N\FRA=T
BIEARER &) 2FEREAEBREBK
13BN (ZF—\F : lEBR7B) -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA

5
g

9



10

Chairman’s Statement I /Fi%

BUSINESS REVIEW

Manufacturing

Consistent with our goal to transform into the "New
Singamas", we sought to significantly pare down our
workforce while concurrently retain individuals with the
skills required for working on our specialised containers.
As efforts progressed towards expediting our transition
into a leading specialised container manufacturer,
our dry freight manufacturing operation continued to
deliver revenue to the Group, though at an appreciably
lower level due to the Disposal, as well as generally
weaker demand. As at the year ended 31 December
2019, our manufacturing business recorded revenue
of US$683,925,000 (2018: US$1,780,404,000), which
accounted for 96.0% of the Group's total revenue (2018:
98.5%). The operation produced 352,166 twenty-foot
equivalent units ("TEUs") during the review year (2018:
835,920 TEUs). The average selling price ("ASP") of
a 20" dry freight container fluctuated; further dropped
from US$1,791 in the first half year, yearly average
approximately at US$1,779 (2018: US$2,157), a
reflection of a decline in material costs and soft market
demand. Total sales volume amounted to 340,304 TEUs
(2018: 841,615 TEUs). Segment loss before taxation
and non-controlling interests at US$99,622,000 (2018:
Segment profit before taxation and non-controlling
interests, excluding one-off gain on disposal of HPCL, of
US$17,911,000).

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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Chairman’s Statement FE#H%E \

With regard to specialised containers, its production is
set to be enhanced significantly by the second quarter
of 2020, when our new factory in Huizhou commences
operation. Before such time, our existing production
operations in Shanghai, Yixing and Xiamen have been
able to address demand. It is worth noting that during
the review year, a number of customised specialised
containers enjoyed noticeable pickup, including energy
storage containers, power generator containers
and electrical equipment containers. Furthermore,
our partnership with a UK company involving the
manufacturing of car transportation racks has resulted
in orders totalling approximately 2,000 sets. In view of
the potential of such racks, which allow for the doubling
of vehicles transported per container as well as provide
greater protection from the elements, a production
line at our new Huizhou plant will be dedicated to its
manufacturing.

Logistics Services

The logistic services business continued to provide a
stable source of revenue to the Group, which amounted
to US$28,284,000 as at the review year. With respect
to the number of containers handled, approximately
660,000 TEUs (2018: 669,000 TEUs) were shifted during
the review year, while average daily storage reached
25,000 TEUs versus 24,000 TEUs in 2018. Furthermore,
the number of containers repaired totalled 147,000 TEUs
(2018: 160,000 TEUs). The modest though favourable
performance of the logistics services business reflects
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Chairman’s Statement = E#H%

the rise in cargo traffic in the PRC, with cargo throughput at
ports climbing by 8.8% year-on-year to 13.95 billion tonnes in
2019, while foreign trade cargo throughput amounted to 4.32
billion tonnes during the same period, a year-on-year increase
of 4.8%".

Other facets of the logistics services business that have
made notable progress include the container freight station
business that helps combine shipments for our clients. Also,
our investment in Xiamen logistics has delivered good returns,
with dividends of approximately US$1,872,000 in 2019 (2018:
US$956,000).

PROSPECTS

Going forward, we remain fully committed to the creation of
the "New Singamas". As we gear towards the manufacturing
of specialised containers, our manufacturing capacity for
dry freight containers will invariably be affected (present
capacity at approx. 160,000 TEUs per annum for dry freight
containers). To mitigate this impact, we will shift our customer
focus from traditional shipping and leasing companies to
container trading companies that require higher flexibility and
production requirements. Furthermore, we will leverage our
knowhow and production expertise in specialised containers
to capitalise on products that inherently possess higher unit
prices and margins owing to their customisable nature. In
this way, we will also be able to derive benefit from the wide
range of industries that employ specialised containers,
which make such products less driven by trade volume and
less affected by volatile markets.
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To better tap the market, we will bolster all areas of
operation, with particular focus on product development.
Hence, we will draw on the young, creative minds
working at our R&D department to create still more
innovative products. Most importantly, to ensure the
Group is on the right course, we will leverage our
experienced management team. Through their guidance
and leadership, the "New Singamas" will become a
reality, the benefits of which will include greater value
creation for all our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| would like take this opportunity to offer my appreciation
to the Group's business partners, customers and
stakeholders for their unwavering support. | wish to also
express my utmost gratitude to the Board, management
and staff for their dedication and contributions in the last
12 months which have enabled the Group to transform
into the "New Singamas". | have little doubt that
Singamas is well on its way towards becoming an even
more dynamic and prosperous operation.

Mr TEO Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020

Chairman’s Statement /&% \

HTE&??H%W%E’U%% B EERE

LiEHE  LEHUNEMREARASER - Bt K&
E.?Eﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁmﬂ |ENFS E\Ié’lé‘fﬁ
ZEFEm REENE  RMEELRES
WEEBEK  BRAEEHEERAMEE -

BREIEEGRHE - [FEM] SeERLS

REZ s - DI ARFAEEAMEE -
)
RARBLBERBFIEEBEN  EPR

R EHRNERENES S - TRORNE

Fe EREENEBIBE—FMNEMNENMN
BE G EAEBEN A [FHB] - BIAEH

B EBEERNRRUFEEAD A LT b
—[E -

e
RINE

B8 _T_TF=A_+H

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA

13



d
‘"

14

Frequently Asked Questions

1. Now that a majority of the Group's dry freight 1.
container manufacturing operation has been
disposed, what will the Group's sales mix be like?
How are factors like global container demand,
trade volume and vessels delivery going to impact
your performance moving forward?

- Subsequent to the very substantial disposal
which was completed in August 2019, the
Group's sales mix was approximately 66.4%
dry freight containers and 33.6% specialised
containers in terms of revenue.

- Moving forward, with the increased usage
of customised specialised containers in
various industries and the Group's new
production lines ramping up, we expect the
sales proportion of specialised container to
increase.

- Global container demand, trade volume and
vessels delivery will still affect overall results
yet impact will be much smaller moving
forward as the Group diversifies income
sources through investments in research
and development ("R&D") of new specialised
containers.

- The "Phase One" trade agreement signed
between the People's Republic of China
("PRC"/"China") and the United States of
America ("US") on 15 January 2020 relieved
trade tensions for the last 18 months. Easing
of trade tensions would have positive impact
to global trade volume and in turn increase
the market demand on new dry freight
containers.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019
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Customer focus will shift from traditional shipping
and leasing companies to container trading clients,
as well as new sectors like power and industrial
companies. What is Singamas' view towards
market demand from these sectors in 2020 and
beyond?

- We expect to receive more dry freight
container orders from container trading
companies as they require higher flexibility
in terms of volume and delivery, as well as
more specific production requirements.
These are orders that could be difficult
for conventional large scale container
producers to take as it would drag down
their efficiency. As mentioned in the answer
for question 1, with positive sentiment in
global trade, we expect the demand for new
dry freight containers to increase this year.

- As for specialised containers, Singamas has
been able to attract satisfactory container
orders by providing container solutions
to suit customers' needs. Diverse use of
specialised containers in non-sea freight
purposes including housing, energy storage,
power generation, electrical equipment, data
centre, and solar container etc. provides
enormous business opportunities to the
Group. Rapid growth in electricity generation
through renewable and "green" energy, the
rise of big data industry, and environment
concerns are all favourable factors for
the growth in demand for customised
specialised containers in 2020 and beyond.
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Frequently Asked Questions —f%1g#

3. How will average selling price ("ASP") of the
Group's containers be affected following the
substantial disposal? What do gross margins of
the various types of containers look like?

- ASP of dry freight containers decreased
during the year, mainly due to the drop in
material costs. Combination of soft demand
for new dry freight containers and intense
competition further drove down the ASP.

- The price trend of ISO specialised containers,
like flatrack, open top, bulk containers
and etc. were similar to that of dry freight
containers. However, the price trend of
customised specialised containers like
energy storage, power generator, housing
etc., has been relatively stable, mainly due
to the fact that the skills and technology
required for producing such containers are
not common in the market and the gross
margins of such containers are significantly
higher than traditional dry freight containers.

- With the disposal completed in 2019 and
specialised containers taking up a more
substantial portion of the Group's sales,
Singamas will be less impacted by demand
and competition of dry freight containers
moving forward. Although dry freight
container ASP will still be affected, those of
our customised specialised containers are
expected to stay strong.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019
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4. What is the order book looking like for dry freight
containers and specialised containers respectively?

- Demand for dry freight containers are
gradually picking up, we currently have
approximately two months of orders on
hand. For customised specialised container
production, it is normally on project basis
from product design, technical drawings,
and production until delivery, the whole
process may last from few weeks to few
months. We are continuously receiving
orders for customised specialised containers
without seasonal trends.

5. Logistics services business is relatively stable.
Any specific plans for this business? Is the
Group looking at any target M&A or investment
opportunities?

- Although the Sino-US trade war has
been affecting global trade volume, it is
encouraging to see favourable cargo traffic
in the PRC with cargo throughput at ports
on an uptrend in 2019.

- The Group's logistics services business
plays an important role in addressing the
needs of our customers while at the same
time serving as a supplemental revenue
stream. We therefore remain wholly
committed to developing this area of
business.

- Recently, Singamas has been making
notable progress in its container freight
station business, where it helps combine
cargos for clients. The Group is actively
looking for investment opportunities to
expand the logistics business but there is no
specific targets at the moment.

Frequently Asked Questions —/%1g#
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Frequently Asked Questions —f%1g#

6. Does the Group have plans to dispose of any more
of its current operation to further consolidate its
business? What are the remaining tasks to be done
internally in terms of streamlining overall operation
and increase efficiency?

- The Group reviews its business model
regularly to adjust the business strategies
suiting latest market developments. With the
"New Singamas" still on its way to expanding
its product range and clientele, we have
no room to further consolidate our current
operation.

- Subsequent to the very substantial disposal,
the Group had retrenched staff from different
levels to streamline overall operation. We
will review the cost structure, especially for
the newly developed products, regularly
to improve cost efficiency and minimise
wastage. Besides, the new Huizhou factory
which is dedicated for producing specialised
containers will continue to bolster R&D
capabilities and in turn improve overall
efficiency.

7. How do you expect your R&D function to support
the Group's long term growth?

- Seeing the success achieved from the
introduction of our various specialised
containers, Singamas will dedicate more
resources to bolstering the Group's R&D
capabilities, as well as to developing more
innovative specialised containers that cater
for the needs of our customers.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019
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- Our R&D function is mainly based in
Baoshan, Shanghai with more than 20
experienced staff focusing on product
development. Supported by the technical
and marketing team, our engineers work
with customers directly for product design,
technical drawings and producing prototype
for meeting customers' specific needs.
Besides the team in Baoshan, all of our
factories have local R&D teams to serve
local requirements. With the growth of
specialised containers, we will recruit more
engineers and technicians to join our team;
we believe high product quality together with
best customer services would win ongoing
orders and gain reputation.

Understand the various disposal-related items
recognised in FY2019 affected the Group's
financial performance. When does the Group
expect to turnaround? What is the management's
view towards the Group's prospects for the years
to come?

- As a majority of the one-off items related
to the substantial disposal will not incur
again in FY2020, we are confident that the
Group's financial performance will improve
in the following financial year.

- Moving forward, the management will
continue to work hard on the Group's
transformation into the 'New Singamas’,
expediting our transition into a leading
specialised container manufacturer.

- We expect to be deriving benefits from
the wide range of industries that employ
specialised containers, which will effectively
make our business less affected by trade
volume and volatile markets.

Frequently Asked Questions —/%1g#
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Honorary Chairman,

LB  HE

Directors and Senior N EEEIEA SN

Management Profile

The Honorary Chairman and directors of the Company
(“Director”) at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN
Mr. Chang Yun Chung

DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng " Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director and

Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung *

RAFHRAPEEZARRREBIRRES
(=T

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng "
Ms. Chung Pui King,
Rebecca *

Mr. Tan Chor Kee #
Mr. Kwa Wee Keng *

Executive Director
Executive Director,
Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, Independent
David #4 Non-executive Director

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan #*&  Independent
Non-executive Director

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong Independent

Non-executive Director

* Audit Committee Member

" Management Committee Member
° Nomination Committee Member

4 Remuneration Committee Member

Brief biographical details of the Honorary Chairman and
Directors at the date of this annual report are as follows:

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chang Yun Chung (also known as Mr. Teo Woon
Tiong), aged 101, the former Chairman of the Board,
was appointed on 20 April 1993 but was then appointed
as Honorary Chairman of the Company on 27 May 2013
following his retirement as a director of the Company.
Mr. Chang started his shipping career in Singapore in
1949 and is the founder of Pacific International Lines
(Private) Limited (“PIL”), the controlling shareholder of
the Company as defined under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019
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Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chang is the
father of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and Mr. Teo Tiou Seng,
directors of the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from
the Xiamen Datung College. Mr. Chang was appointed
Chairman Emeritus of PIL on 1 April 2018. He is also
the Chairman of Pacific International Lines (H.K.) Limited
(“PILHK”) of Hong Kong, a subsidiary of PIL and Maya
Corporation Pte. Ltd. of Singapore.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B. Sc. (Naval Architect), aged
65, was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 1 February 1997 and was appointed as Chairman of
the Company on 27 May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company and he is also the
younger brother of Mr. Teo Tiou Seng. Mr. Teo started
his shipping career with PIL Group in Singapore since
1979. He was appointed as the managing director of PIL
in October 1992 and appointed as executive chairman of
PIL in April 2018. PIL activities include shipowning, liner
shipping, ship agencies, freight forwarding, container
manufacturing, marine services, container depot/terminal
operation, warehousing, logistics park, real estate and
travel. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of COSCO SHIPPING Energy Transportation
Co., Ltd. and COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co., Ltd.;
both companies are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He
is also currently an independent non-executive director
of Keppel Corporation Limited and Wilmar International
Limited, both companies are listed on the main board
of Singapore Exchange (“SGX”). He is the chairman of
Singapore Business Federation, the Honorary President
of Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry,
a director of Enterprise Singapore and Business China.
Mr. Teo is the Honorary Consul of The United Republic of
Tanzania in Singapore.
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Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, aged 62, was appointed on 1
March 2012. Mr. Chan is the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company and is a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He joined Eng Kong Container Services
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, on 1 July 1994.
He has more than 40 years of combined experience
in marketing, container depot management, container
inspection and repair, and container leasing. Prior to
joining the Company, he was the Technical Director of
Unicon International Ltd., a container surveying company
with major interests in the Far East.

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng, aged 67, was appointed on 26
June 1996 as Executive Director of the Company and is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Teo is the elder brother of Mr. Teo Siong Seng and
has been engaging in shipping business since 1977. Mr.
Teo graduated and holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Western Ontario,
Richard Ivey School of Business. He has more than
43 years of working experience in container transport
business and is also a director of PIL and the managing
director of PILHK.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, M.B.A., HKICPA,
FCCA, aged 51, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company on 2 July 2015. She was appointed as
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company on 2 February 2013 and 10 September 2013
respectively. She is also the director of a subsidiary of
the Company. She was appointed as the director of
Modex Holding Limited, an associate of the Company,
which specialised in leasing and trading of offshore
containers, on 10 October 2014. Ms. Chung joined the
Group on 1 January 1996. She has more than 28 years
of combined experience in public accountancy, sourcing
and manufacturing.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tan Chor Kee, aged 67, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company on 2 July 2013. Mr.
Tan graduated from the University of Singapore with a first
class honour degree in Mechanical Engineering. He has
more than 42 years of experience in shipping particularly
in equipment management, costs control, corporate
planning, logistics operations, agency and liner business.
Mr. Tan is currently the Deputy Managing Director of PIL.

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, DBA, MBA (Distinction), M.Acc,
B.Acc (Hons), FCA (Singapore), aged 46, was appointed
as Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 June
2019. He graduated with B.Acc (Hons) (second upper
honours) and master's degree in accountancy from
Nanyang Technological University, Singapore. He holds
MBA with Distinction from the University of Leicester, the
United Kingdom, and Doctor of Business Administration
from The University of Newcastle, Australia. Mr. Kwa has
been appointed as director of PIL on 15 February 2020.
He has been the Chief Financial Officer of PIL since 1
October 2017. Prior to joining PIL in 2015 as General
Manager (Finance), he had held a number of senior
positions in finance and accounting in manufacturing and
logistics businesses. He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant
of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 71, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience
in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has assumed the position of independent non-executive
director of Grandland Shipping Limited with effect from
1 January 2016. Mr. Cheng has also been appointed as
independent non-executive director of Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 19 December
2016. He has also been appointed as Independent
Director of Sincere Navigation Corporation, a company
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listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, with effect from
28 June 2019. Mr. Cheng has retired from the Head of
Shipfinance in Asia of Credit Agricole CIB with effective
from 1 May 2014. He has also retired from the Senior
Advisor to Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 30 June
2016, but remains as a director and Honorary Chairman
of Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited. Grandland
Shipping Limited, Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited,
Sincere Navigation Corporation, Credit Agricole CIB and
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and connected persons
of the Company. Mr. Cheng has also been appointed by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for a two years term as Member of the Maritime
and Port Board (“MPB”) and Chairman of the Promotion
and External Relations Committee under the MPB with
effect from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2018. He is also the
Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong Maritime Museum.
In June 2015, Mr. Cheng was conferred the Distinction
of “Chevalier de I'ordre National du Mérite” by the French
Government.

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, aged 61, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting.
He has extensive experience in accounting and
financial management. Mr. Lau had been appointed as
independent non-executive director of Nimble Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as The Grande
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, from 25 July 2016 to 22 December
2017. He had also been appointed as independent
non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed on the growth enterprise
market of the Stock Exchange, from 13 December 2001
to 1 March 2020. Mr. Lau is currently an independent
non-executive director of Greater Bay Area Investments
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as CCT Land

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019
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Holdings Limited), a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. Nimble Holdings Company
Limited, Greater Bay Area Investments Group Holdings
Limited and Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited are
third parties independent of the Company and connected
persons of the Company.

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, VBA, aged 61, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 October 2019. Mr. Ho graduated from McGill
University, Montreal, Canada in 1984. Mr. Ho is currently
an independent director of Dukang Distillers Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the main board of SGX and
an independent director of NothCape AS, a Norwegian
financial advisory company. He possesses extensive
experience in assets management and banking industry.
He has also previously served as independent director
of Centraland Limited (from April 2011 to November
2011) and Li Heng Chemical Fibre Technologies Limited
(from September 2009 to February 2017), both of which
were SGX main board listed companies which had been
privatized and withdrawn from SGX listing in 2011 and
2017 respectively.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years but shall be eligible for re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. For the particulars
of the Directors proposed to be re-elected/elected at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, please refer to the
circular accompanied with this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Operating Officer
Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary
Vice President

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung

Ms. Chung Pui King,
Rebecca

Mr. Wu Bing Hong

Details of the senior management at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997, then appointed as Chairman of the Company on
27 May 2013. Please refer to the Directors section for
details.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, was appointed as Executive
Vice President of Marketing and General Manager — Hong
Kong Container Depot and Terminal Operations on 1 July
1994 and was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of
the Company on 1 November 2012. Please refer to the
Directors section for details.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company
on 2 February 2013 and 10 September 2013 respectively.
Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Mr. Wu Bing Hong, aged 47, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 January 2016. Mr. Wu
is in charge of various divisions of the Group including
Marketing Department in Shanghai, Quality Management
Department and Research & Development Center. He
also assists in overseeing the operation of the Group’s
factories. Mr. Wu graduated from Guangzhou Ji'nan
University with major in Business Administration and
graduated from Hubei University of Technology with a
Bachelor Degree in Administrative Management. Mr.
Wu joined the Group in 2001. He has over 27 years of
experience in container manufacturing and corporate
management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has consistently adopted and complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as guidelines
to reinforce our corporate governance principles, except
for certain deviations which are disclosed below:

(1) Code Provision A.2.1, Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up
both roles as the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not
separated. The Board considers that this structure
has the advantage of a strong and consistent
leadership which is conducive to making and
implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.

(2) Code Provision A.6.5, Mr. Ho Teck Cheong
has not participated in continuous professional
development activities for the reason of his
appointment as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company commenced on 2
October 2019.

(8)  Code Provision A.6.7, due to other commitments,
one non-executive Director of the Company had
not attended the annual general meeting and
extra-ordinary general meeting held on 26 June
2019.

Save for the above deviations, none of the Directors is
aware of any information which would reasonably indicate
that the Company is not, or, was not during the year in
compliance with the code provisions of the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”/“Directors”)
believes that appropriate corporate governance practices
are essential for the Company to enhance its accountability
and transparency so as to achieve a balance of the
interests of shareholders, customers, employees and
investment partners of the Company in all material respects.
Accordingly, the Company aims at maintaining high
standards of corporate governance practices.
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Key corporate governance principles and corporate ARFZEBREERRARPEEATHRM
governance practices of the Company are summarised AT :

below:
Comply (“C")/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #F([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2238 | FAKX e (E) LEERER
A. DIRECTORS
£
A The Board
5Fg
Corporate Governance Principle
hEERRE
The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
EEGEABBAEERERAFTNER  TEEAERENEBEARSER -
The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company,
and whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing them.
EEERTHRIESARARBTREMBNENER  UREBRES IS L EHREEITRE -
A. 1.1 |Regular board meetings should be C e The Board held seven meetings in 2019. The Board would meet
held at least four times a year involving more frequently as and when required.
active participation, either in person EEeN_ZE-NEFERTHASE EEZEEN ExendH
or through electronic means of BINGE ©
communication, of majority of directors.
EsrerfiesEsFe L ERAMK e The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, two non-
REBHEZARFTEFE  SE BT R executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
HETEIRRE o No alternative Director was appointed during 2019.

EEeRANLHTES MEFRATEER=BELFNTES
MK o —F-NFANBRELAZTEES -

e The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date and details of Directors’ attendance at the Board
meetings held for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
below:

BE_T - AFT-A=t-BUSERHAZANIEEERER
EEHFHE T NF A=t BLFENESEEREN

W
Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EENSE H R
Executive Directors HITES
Teo Siong Seng RN 7
(Chairman and Chief (EEFEEE
Executive Officer) TTIRARE)
Chan Kwok Leung R B AR 7/7
(Chief Operating Officer) (BEEERE)
Teo Tiou Seng REpE 6/7
Chung Pui King, Rebecca $EmIR 77
(Chief Financial Officer and =000
Company Secretary) LD EE)
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX R (E)) DEERER
AlA Number of
(cont'd) attendance
(&) Name of Directors EEgE HRERE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Kuan Kim Kin R IE 3/3
(retired on 26 June 2019) (R=—Z—N%F
ANAZTRHERE)
Tan Chor Kee PR £ 7/7
Kwa Wee Keng FEE 4/4
(appointed on (R=ZT—NF
26 June 2019) NAZTREEZE)
Independent Non-executive BIFEHITES
Directors
Cheng Fu Kwok, David ) 7/7
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan ERLS 7/7
Yang, Victor % &= 3/3
(resigned on 15 July 2019) (R=—ZF—h%F
+A+ABET)
Ho Teck Cheong CEI= 3/3
(appointed on 2 October (RZZ—NEF
2019) TAZBEZMT)
The Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone
conference or by means of a similar communication equipment
or by their alternate in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association (the “Articles”). An updated and consolidated version
of the Company’s Articles (both English and Chinese versions) are
available on the websites of the Company (http://www.singamas.com)
and Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk).
READ 72@%@&@%U%%%WD EEALRE ﬁﬂ
é@%ﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@§~imanﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁf
Ta&%%iwﬁ%é#$(:i&#X&) EEHNAA
@Ettp //www.singamas.com) & 78 22 AT (http://www.hkexnews.hk) iH
A.1.2 | All directors are given an opportunity C All Directors are consulted and are welcomed to include any matter
to include matters in the agenda for in the agenda before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
regular board meetings. issued. N
%¥§$%ﬁ%AkmﬁT$ﬁﬁ HEEZeTHeaTHE B B FTE T R A
FeTHesRaE - [EEESEIPSIVN- %%&o
A1.3 |- Atleast 14 days notice for regular C The Company gives at least 14 days formal notice before each
board meetings. regular board meeting and gives reasonable notice for other board
”%ﬁi%”‘\mﬁﬂ?%ﬁ%}ﬁEQ\ meetings. .
+mx Ftw@ﬁm%&ﬁ@é%AAﬁw DR EH ER B
LTHMEZEY %AEM%Z@ﬂo
— Reasonable notice for other board
meetings.
;ﬁﬁ@%%@@%%%ﬁé@@
A1.4 |Minutes of board meetings and C The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the

meetings of board committees should
be kept by a duly appointed secretary
of the meeting and should be open for
inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any director.
MET?EWE§W%Eﬁﬁ§$§&
uTi/\amEui‘ua ’ Hﬁﬁrfiﬂ%
BHATBA B ARABE S
HEEERSENRRER -

Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Management
Committee meetings. Another duly appointed secretary is
responsible for taking minutes of Remuneration Committee

meetlngs
RANERAERESE ERZEE REAZEEREERZEE
aumﬂﬁ‘ mMMZE e llmBIN—(IEEEA2NES

& o

Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all
Directors/Board Committee members within a reasonable time after
each Board and Board Comm|ttee meeting.

BREFERHETZEEE AL RIE - EA/\IEHTEXP\]TEi%A&
Hi%Té,\ S eI, AERERREEE HEZEEN

\I]]]l]

Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are made available
for inspection by Directors/Board Committee members at the
reglstered office of the Company.

EEgRHETZ! BEeRN  RRRTHES HETZES
B B AR A Rl =R &R -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2EF8 | FAKX R (E)) DEERER

A1.5 |- Minutes of board meetings and C e Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings record
meetings of board committees contain sufficient details of matters considered and decisions
should record in sufficient detail the reached including concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by
matters considered and decisions the Directors.
reached. é%A&E@?Ti S RN ERALEETMOEREIMERSIE 2
EEGRABETZEENgERD 5 K PREEVRTE EEP BEERELNEMFEENIRENREE
5% BYHER LAZEFIRMEN °

BARTE 1 R S0aF e ER 8%
e Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board
— Draft and final versions of minutes minutes.
for all directors to comment and to ERARETEEEERLBTRERERR -
keep records within a reasonable
time after the board meeting. e Final version of Board minutes is placed on record within a
BECQRERE  ERAERE reasonable time after the Board meeting.
MRS G B R {8 7E BERERE  RNEERRARTFEILHNRETRIELE
REX2BES  RHEFRE 2
BR BEERAMEELS A -

A1.6 |- A procedure agreed by the board to C Directors have free access to the legal counsel of the Company and if

enable directors, upon reasonable needed and upon request, Directors are allowed to seek independent
request, to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
professional advice in appropriate EFREREARRGEEER  WERERTEEXT  EF0F
circumstances, at the company’s KB EEER  UHARFLNER -
expense.
EXRRZEERT  BEFRE
BEX  AIE@EENBER TS I?‘ﬁ
VEEBR  BEMARNM -

— The board should resolve to
provide separate independent
professional advice to directors to
assist them perform their duties to
the company.
EERRBASINRESREBT
BEZH BB MBEITEEA
AIMEE -

A1.7 |- If a substantial shareholder or a C e |mportant matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions
director has a conflict of interest so that all Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
in a matter to be considered by can note and comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval
the board which the board has is granted.
determined to be material, the EEEFE-MUEMABRRANEE  UNERBES (BEBIE
matter should be dealt with by a RWITES)EMTEAMAEE  URHEERER (REE)% - HiE
physical board meeting rather than ZEIE o
a written resolution.

FETERFNEEAEETSHT e Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in
EZENEEREFEAESEERAEKN the resolution, if applicable.
Rz &R - BEEEENRITE EEAMRBRANEF BB FRPRANE (HER)
$@@f§(ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ5ﬁ§)ﬁﬁﬁ
e Material transactions with a substantial shareholder or a Director
being a connected person, in general, would be considered

- Independent non-executive at physical Board meeting whereat the Directors, including
directors who, and whose close independent non-executive Directors, may consider, if appropriate,
associates, have no material granting approval in principle for the proposed transactions.
interest in the transaction should —RERT  BATERFREZFTZHEEATETZEALSER
be present at that board meeting. %@‘;E%%J‘& EE (Eiﬁ?%i#iﬂﬁ%%)ﬂ@%i"i%ﬁﬂ
ERGFRERG R HEETHE AR ERTRA EHERER S
BERFZEME L IENTTE FREZ
HEERNESZSS® -

A.1.8 | Arrange appropriate insurance cover C e The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers

in respect of legal action against the Liability insurance coverage for its Directors and officers.

directors. NAEREEREMABELZHBEENESERSBRABEER

NEIESEE A e EE O ARITENME iﬁA

EE NIRRT
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

8238 | FAKRX R (E)) DEERER

A2 Chairman and Chief Executive
FE RATEAEE
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of business of the Company to ensure a balance of power and authority.
EEENKEEENEBNEREENEEREERES - UHBRENNEES HHE -

A2.1 |- Roles of chairman and chief E e Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of the
executive should be separated and Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles
should not be performed by the of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not separated. The
same individual. Board considers that this structure has the advantage of a strong
TRETHREABNABGERRD - and consistent leadership which is conducive to making and
WA FER — AR - implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.

RIABEERBEETAARCETS TR RERTRER - MEF
- Division of responsibilities between MEBTREEMBIY ™D ABE L2 BE EFeRALEREEY
the chairman and chief executive BIEREMES 2 HE  AMAMNNELEREBES L —B 2R
should be clearly established and = o
set out in writing.
FREITHRAR  HBREN D TIE
BRRTEIWIAEZESE, -

A.2.2 | The chairman should ensure that all C e With the assistance of the executive Directors, the management
directors are properly briefed on issues and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
arising at board meetings. Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
IREERREEeeE TTEEEYE and receive adequate documents and information about the Group
EAHRERNEIE - in a timely manner.

EHITES EERERAAWENHGYT  TEBOBREEES
HWZ AR EESERRECEE  URRTRSENEBREE
X RER -

A.2.3 | The chairman should be responsible C e The Board papers including supporting analysis and related
for ensuring that directors receive, in background information are normally sent to the Directors at least
a timely manner, adequate information three working days before Board meetings.
which must be accurate, clear, EREERNMHERBEEONIIEEERER  —BRNESZGEH
complete and reliable. BHEAI TN DN =LA ZETESE
ITREEERREERFBITONE
- MBEBEN NN EERESH R e Company Secretary acts as a co-ordinator to facilitate the
EE communication between the Directors to ensure that queries

raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and
further supporting information and/or documentation is provided as
appropriate.

RAWEERHBHAEREESHNER  BRESHARERREX
%%?%:Z%§B§ﬁ§%%EJm§~ W R E — B E R R, 3 (fimiE
) o

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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BITEERE UREHMAER
EEEREITW ©

— The chairman should be primarily
responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each
board meeting. He should take
into account, where appropriate,
any matters proposed by the o
other directors for inclusion in
the agenda. The chairman may
delegate this responsibility to a
designated director or the company
secretary.
FREFEAEETWIATGRE

EEMHRE WEREBRLT
TR EAME R IR EINAEIRA T
FIH - TEAKERAEEERIET
MWESRRAWE -

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FAKX B (el DEERER
A2.4 |- The chairman should provide C e The Chairman of the Board is an executive Director who is
leadership for the board. responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board.
IENACRREESES - EERIFARTESHE  EERENARERERE -

— The chairman should ensure that e The Chairman of the Board determines the broad strategic direction
the board works effectively and of the Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for
performs its responsibilities, and the high-level oversight of management.
that all key and appropriate issues EE ST EARRNESTRTRIASEBERE AR WAEKRE
are discussed by it in a timely HEMEEEEBNTIE-
manner.

FEERREESAMINEE B e Al Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any

matters in the agenda. The Chairman of the Board designates the
Company Secretary to draw up the agenda by taking into account
the matters, if any, proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in
the agenda.

PREFHEZRNGTATMNEEERIIAZEN - ER2FERIE
RARWERTEEEEHAERERIEEMESEZANSE (N
BITIAHEER -

With the support of the executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly
briefed on all key and appropriate issues on a timely manner.
ERTEERAAWER T - FEBDERAEERHBER N
FEEZNEEEE -

A.2.5 |The chairman should take primary C .
responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and
procedures are established.
FREBFZEM  BRQRHE RS
MR ERTR NI -

The Chairman of the Board, with the support of the Company
Secretary, takes primary responsibility to establish good corporate
governance practices and procedures of the Company.
EFRFRERATAMENB TEARUARARIFEEE TR
MEFZEBREME -

A2.6 |- The chairman should encourage all C o
directors to make a full and active
contribution to the board’s affairs
and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the
company.
FTRESEAES2NEAES
BB WASER - BRESE
TEHE AR RENE -

— The chairman should encourage
directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allow sufficient
time for discussion of issues and
ensure that board decisions fairly
reflect board consensus.
FEESEFTIRERNESHE
ENAFEINEE - HTELE
Ha2RENHR UWRBRESE
BIREBE A E R E RS -

The Chairman meets with the Directors regularly to discuss various
matters of the Group and encourages the Directors to express their
views concerning the management of the Group.
FRAEETREERIRAEETNRBENFEREBAEES
?Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ$%lm,“ﬁ o
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£38 | FAKX @ (el DEERER
A.2.7 | The chairman should at least annually C e The Chairman keeps open dialogue with individual independent non-
hold meetings with the independent executive Directors to ensure effective communication. In addition
non-executive directors without the to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with the
presence of other directors. independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the
TRERDEERE NI TEEET other Directors on 13 December 2019.
—RRBEMESFHENGE - B E R IERTE RS EREE EARRERER - RE
EZeEHeR EFSIFEBIUFNTEEN T -NAF+ =
AT=ZAETEEMEMESNER TRITEE
A.2.8 |The chairman should ensure that C e The Company provides updated information of the Group to all

appropriate steps are taken to
provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views
are communicated to the board as a
whole.

FEEBREEVEES SRR RS
W - DA RBERIRRE R Al EER R
HEES -

shareholders when it becomes available and appropriate, through
the publication of interim and annual reports, circulars, notices,
media releases or other means in compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements. The Company has made such information
available on the Company’s website (http://www.singamas.com) as
well as on an independent website provider (http://www.irasia.com/
listco/hk/singamas). The purpose is to provide our shareholders an
alternative channel to access the Group’s information easily and
reach the potential shareholders globally.

RRABENEABERRRHAEBEHER  WEZSEREE
HERBERNTIB B R ek B FIE R s T
FREREERTENEMER - RRABIEHZEER LHRARFN
#BU (http://www.singamas.com) + [RIBF J1_E & 74 — 38 37 AU L g i
(http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas) * 1t B &2 # IR L5851
%@%ﬁﬂﬁ%%%%iﬁﬁﬂxﬂi%E’Uﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ?&ﬂ%%’ﬁ?i@&ﬂ&

Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue with
shareholders in the Company’s general meetings during the year, the
Company continuously enhances shareholders’ communications by
holding press and analyst conferences during any reporting period or
year. In addition, the Company has a “Frequently Asked Questions”
section in its annual report providing its shareholders with more clear
and concise information that may be of common concern. Besides,
the Company has responded to letters and telephone enquiries from
shareholders and potential shareholders throughout the year under
review.

REBEFA  REARBREANS FRME—ERRES EHENT
BN ARRERFELNEREBORE - ELMEAENFE
RER - AARMTERITEERSTEEE © 1o NRBERNEF
HARAE [ AR 5 - FELAREE B ROERNERE A
BHAERRR - B0 RABIREBEF AR ERERR RE
FEBERER KT EFEH -

Procedures for shareholders to convene a general meeting
Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general
meetings can deposit a written request at 19/F., Rykadan Capital
Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered
office of the Company, for the attention of the Company Secretary.
The written request must state the general nature of the business to
be dealt with at the meeting, signed by the shareholders concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more of those shareholders.

RRBERRAGZERF

RERRREHFETDRE% WARA R BIRRFORENRE - AL
EMFRERERRANFMMER - EBNEBEE1BREEE
ARE194E - BAFARNRIMER - ZEEHRERASE FE
BEBH—RIEE - WHPEHEMRRES KA B ZHER XA
B - BRI E it — sk A ERREREE o

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£58 | FAKX #R(E) PEERER
A28 e Procedures for putting forward proposals at Annual General
(cont’d) Meeting (“AGM”)
(&) Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights

of all shareholders having at the date of the request the right to
vote at the AGM; or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares
in the Company who have a right to vote at the resolution of the
AGM can submit a written request to move a resolution at the
AGM. The written request must state the resolution, signed by all
the shareholders concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the
shareholders concerned). The written request must be deposited at
19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, the registered office of the Company, for the attention of the
Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the meeting to
which it relates or if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a relevant right to vote, or at least
50 shareholders who have a relevant right to vote, may request the
Company to circulate, to shareholders of the Company entitled to
receive notice of a general meeting, a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at that meeting, or (b) other business to
be dealt with at that meeting. The request must be deposited at
19/F., Rykadan Capital Tower, 135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, the registered office of the Company, identify the statement
to be circulated, signed by all the shareholders concerned and
be received by the Company not less than seven days before the
meeting to which it relates.
RBRREAFAS(RRAFAS ) RUBBIZEF
UTATAIMARBIRZEBDZRKUNERREAFAE CBFEAZE
R EZmLERONAPRHBL A NRREFRE XA - BF
DRFTBRRBFAERN2.5% : I T DRE0ZIFHE AR FEEE
REORR - ZEBEARARMZAZR HH2BAARRRE
LA RZHBERAXHEK (BB EERREZNFRKE) - Z
EHHRATEARANEMPER - BENEREEBI1BHTEE
BARAKRE19HE  BREBRTARAMER - WRETDRAF K2R
REAFRERIT2REHRAN (NER) BHBRREAFRSBA 2
RHEEZ R K - AT INERBERRIRRE 2 PIE IR 2 RO
B2.5% : KN DRB0 B FFE AR BIEBERAENRER AT EREAR
Al A RINEIRRE RN @S 2 IRERER — 5 T2 51,000 FH BRI
= NBEAR @ BRHEZREAE LEIER R L ARETIE
BEH sib) KM ARFEZRRAS FRENER o LERFFER
NRZFAMPFEREENEGEBI1FNAEEARNE19E - 51|67
BYEMz R - WA EBERRREE - ZERKFBRLEH
ERBITHI 7 RIKERRQF]

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited. Shareholders and the investment community
may at any time make a request for the Company’s information to
the extent that such information is publicly available. Shareholders
may also refer to the contacts under “Investor Relations” section in
the Company’s website (http://www.singamas.com) for enquiries.
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the registered office
of the Company or by e-mail to info@singamas.com for attention of
the Company Secretary.

RERRZME

REREEARRRNBEELR — BEFFRBLFETLERAF 12
HARMERE M o R RIREATAIBEREREREBAAAT
ZBEARER o R IR A ARIE A A BIABLE (http://Avww.singamas.com)
MREHEBE| AR SMEHEH - kKR IAERAESSELHSE
o TBERANERFAEL  UEBL TRAAWERBETEAR
A5 55 6R 5k B B = info@singamas.com ©
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX R (E)) DEERER
A.2.9 | The chairman should promote a culture (@] e The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively
of openness and debate by facilitating encourages Directors with different views to voice their opinion and
the effective contribution of non- be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs so as to contribute to the
executive directors in particular and Board'’s functions.
ensuring constructive relations between FERERANL - WEGRSEFINRARBRNESREER - UKk
executive and non-executive directors. PELEEFENEL  UHESSNBEELER -
TRERELR « BEwmO XL - 2
HER(ERRIERTTES ) HESS e Effective contribution of non-executive Directors and communication
ERBRER » WHERNITESEHIERR between executive and non-executive Directors are achieved
TESZ BB RFELENBEIE - through discussions in Board meetings, various Board committee
meetings and other Board activities/programmes.
HENEREED  SEFZESGHARHEMERSED, FHEH
R ARAEEBGEITERN AN EREITEREIENTE
F2RIMERE -
A3 Board composition
EXRMEK
Corporate Governance Principle
BEERRA
The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business and should include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive Directors so that
independent judgement can effectively be exercised.
EXRBBARNESMABEEME I # KREEIENBHEAE - EFFHRTEFHIERNTESTNHEE EZREE
57 - DMEEESA RO IE L B 7 K -
A.3.1 Independent non-executive directors C e The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors

should be identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the
names of directors.
NAFMBHBEESHEHNARBAA -
EZFAE L IERITEE S -

including the names of the Chairman, the executive Directors,
the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications.
EMBRRBATERERHFINEBG (BREER  TEE - ¥
PITERRBYUIFPTES) WEEFSHNEK -

The Board consists of a total of nine Directors, comprising four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. One-third of the Board are
independent non-executive Directors of which more than one have
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Details of the composition of the
Board are set out on page 20.

EEGHNMESER - PREOUNITES MR TEER=
BV NTES - Zp 2 —EBENERBUIFNTES - EF
A EVIFNTERABEEERER  NABEENS
HEVBERESR - EESENFENENE20E -

The Company maintains on its corporate website and on the Stock
Exchange’s website an updated list of Directors identifying their roles
and functions and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors.

RRBIFEE P EEU KB R EHNESENERE
FIBAE A E MR - ANERAEEE B IFNITESE -

The Directors’ biographical information and the relationships among
the Directors are set out on pages 20 to 26.

EEEAERLRESRNBERIFENE20HRE26H °

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2EF8 | FAKX R (E)) DEERER

A.3.2 |The company should maintain on its C e The updated list of Directors has been posted at the websites of

website and on the Stock Exchange the Company and Stock Exchange, identifying their respective roles

website an updated list of its directors and functions, and whether they are independent non-executive

identifying their role and function and Directors.

whether they are independent non- BT EEHBEDEHNARR R RABZMEL - WHIREAE R

executive directors. Bt - RIRSMEREEEE U IENTES -

N A ETEE A B A F A8 LR F

RESFNEEEXELE  WHIAE e The Company has also posted on its website and the website of

AEMBEE - URGTBREEDE S IEH Stock Exchange the Terms of Reference of its Board Committees

1TESE - to enable the shareholders to understand the roles played by those
independent non-executive Directors who serve on the relevant
Board Committees.
ARARTREMU BB SR ESGE T ZEREDE -
BRRR T BB FFNTEFHA R ESTSE T8N EME
FzAeE -

A4 Appointments, re-election and removal

ZiE - EERE

Corporate Governance Principle

EERRA

There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for

orderly succession for appointments. All Directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.

NEFZEREFEER FEEZERWEAERE  WERTERTNESEITE - MEEFEERE TRIEETSEE -

A4dA Non-executive directors should be C e According to the service agreements entered into between each of

appointed for a specific term, subject the non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director
to re-election. and the Company, the term of appointment is three years but
IERTESNEEERIEEEE - WA subject to retirement and shall be eligible for re-election at AGM
BEXEIEE - under the Articles.
BB FENTERN B IFNTE SRR FF L 2 R H= - £
HMA=F  MRBERAARTE  BERARRZREAFAE LR
BRI BB EE -

A4.2 |- All directors appointed to fill a C e Under the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the
casual vacancy should be subject time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
to election by shareholders at Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every
the first general meeting after three years but shall be eligible for re-election.
appointment. RIFERME - NEERRAFAE L ER[/B =S —HNES
P8 ARG R 2R iR R () E HARERE  MEREFARIF=FRRREAFAEG LRI
EREEXZEENEARRERS R BRIFFE BB RET -

TEEREES -
e Under the Articles, the Board may from time to time appoint a
— Every director, including those Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
appointed for a specific term, Any such new Director shall hold office until the next following
should be subject to retirement by general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
rotation at least once every three vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of the
years. Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) and shall then be
BEEZ(BEAEEFHNES) eligible for election at the same general meeting.
EmmRE - 2B =F—R - RBRERME  EFQATREEESEFRRTERECUERE
FGKRE - MAEEF2ABMEARLQA TRRRAS (408 H R
ZR)XEARNA NERREAFAG (NBBAEETEKE) BIE-
WEBRRE—RRAE F248 -
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Code Ref.
2540

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E)
Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
FAIKX #R(E) PEERER

A.4.2
(cont’d)
(%)

e Mr. Kwa Wee Keng and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong who were appointed
as Directors to fill the casual vacancy, hold their office until the 2020
AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for election at the
same meeting.
TEEREREERERBHGREZRMBERIELES  RELZ
%E@E:?:%ﬂﬁ%%ik@ﬁi WA BRKRA-g L2EE

e Review of the Board composition is made regularly to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company.
AAREPHENESG 2K - BMRESSHABREARTER
RER - ABREHR 2 ALK -

e The Company has published the procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director on its website.

PERIEEERNA LTS MERRE 2T - CERRARFWUEA -

A4.3

— If an independent non-executive C e As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan has been
director serves more than 9 years, serving as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
his further appointment should be for more than 9 years. Each independent non-executive Director
subject to a separate resolution to who was subject to retirement by rotation was appointed by a
be approved by shareholders. separate resolution in the Company’s AGM. Each independent non-
BENIENTESFTCACBNF - executive Director who was eligible for re-election at the AGM had
HER D EETREUBRERERR made a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
AR R R M o Listing Rules.

HEAFHAH - BIrEEE—FREARABIIIFNTESDER

- The papers to shareholders BAF - RARARIZIRREFRE L - SUARRERIBIIEY
accompanying that resolution TESYUBLABREZT - SUNAREEAFAS LERETE
should include the reasons why SIEMITE R EIRR E TR BIE A3 IR E R E B I 1F
the board believes he is still R e
independent and should be re-
elected. e Since Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan was re-elected as the independent
BE B 5% R a5 2 — R BX 4R AR BR W9 S04 non-executive Director of the Company in the 2018 AGM of the
t EEEESTE AMRAEZEA Company, according to article 92 of the Articles, Mr. Lau is not
THBEIATREEEENE subject to retirement by rotation in the 2020 AGM.

° HREAIEEER AR T — \FRREBAFAGESER/RQA

BAUEBITES  ERERME 2K BIEETEAR T TF

REBFAG LWRER o

e The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed information
on re-election of Directors, including detailed biographies, interests
and (where appropriate) independence of all Directors standing for
re-election. If an independent non-executive Director serves more
than 9 years, the information would be included in the circular to
advice shareholders the reasons why the Board believes the relevant
Director is still independent and should be re-elected.
RRRIRREAFAGBUHAEEERNAMER - BERERE
BEENMAESNFARRE - #ak (ER) BN - BBV IEH
TEREEEANG E—FPERBRABRA  MRREHES
SRAEREFDNEBE AT REESENFREA -

A5

Nomination Committee
REEEE
Corporate Governance Principle

TEERRA

In carrying out its responsibilities, the nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the principles under
Sections A.3 and A.4 in the Code.
REZEGETBER ARHZELEEATHEAIRALETANRA

- TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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chaired by the chairman of the
board or an independent non-
executive director and comprises
a majority of independent non-
executive directors.

NEERVIREEESG  AESY
FRIEBIFMITEREEER
g%@w&ﬁ#iﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%

The nomination committee should
be established with specific written
terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.
NRIEEMERRIEREZEAED
%ﬁé%ﬁ CERFRAEBENSE

It should perform the following
duties:
RELZESRBEITATELE

(@ review the structure, size
and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the board
at least annually and make
recommendations on any
proposed changes to the board
to complement the company’s
corporate strategy;
ZLOBFRVEFEHRE
AN B (BIEREE - B
K& mE) - MRS
BRREBMBEERESIEDL
B BN TR R

identify individuals suitably
qualified to become board
members and select or make
recommendations to the board
on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

MeEREERERAETES
AT WHGEREBBAL
E%%%Eﬁﬁﬁtl‘ﬂ%%@%ﬁ

assess the independence of
independent non-executive
directors; and

??Egﬁﬁ#%ﬂﬁ%% ok AV

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2238 | FARX B (el DEERER
Ab5.1- |- The company should establish a C e The Board has established the Nomination Committee on 27 March
Ab.4 nomination committee which is 2012 for nominating potential candidates for directorship, reviewing

the nomination of Directors, assessing the independence of each
independent non-executive Director and making recommendations
to the Board on such appointments. The full terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com).

ARBIER - E-——F=ZA -+ +tRARURELZESHEUREZAE
ENEENE BRERANES  IREEBEVIFNTESNE
YRR EBERERNEETSRIES - FHREZERERE
K1 35 8 8 78 X AT 48 Ik (hitp://www.hkexnews.hk) Kz 728 A &) 48k
(http://www.singamas.com) ©

The current members of the Nomination Committee include one
executive Director being the Chairman of the Board, namely, Mr.
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David.

REZESRANEOE —SNTESHREFT LT - RILBEE
(XfF) RMBBILIEITE R - BIn e £ MR e A -

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BREFR RELECIFRCNESSERLERNEE -

In 2019, the Nomination Committee met twice and attendance of

individual members at Nomination Committee meeting in the year is

summarized below:

géj:_%*ﬂi CRAREEGERMIR - AERIK B EERE R
UENE

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEERE HERE
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) RIAE (/) 2/2
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2n] 5t 2/2
Cheng Fu Kwok, David BB Y 2/2

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties. The Nomination Committee is accountable to
the Board and minutes of meetings/resolutions are circulated to the
Board for information.

REZESHEMERRERUBITHRE - REZEQENES
CARRAGRCHE R ARIESSEM -

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination
Committee during the year under review:

ERBEFEN  REZEEWTERLNT -

(@) made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and assessed
independence of independent non-executive Directors;
RBFERBHTEEF AL ZAXEHFLZEIETANESTE
RMEZEIORTEBR « ANGTB L IENTE S 2B
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Comply (“C”)/

Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX R (E)) PEERER
Ab.1- (d) make recommendations to the (b) identified suitable individual qualified to become Board member
Ab.4 board on the appointment or and make recommendation to the Board on the nominated
(cont’d) re-appointment of directors individual for directorships;

€]

and succession planning
for directors, in particular
the chairman and the chief
executive.
HEFEEREFEZEARE
B(LEEERRITHAER)
FrrElmESSRHER -

The nomination committee
should make available its terms of
reference explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the
board by including them on the
Stock Exchange website and the
company’s website.
REZBGEREBMABLRATE
MWuk FNFEBESE - REREA
BUNEEEERTHOES

The company should provide
the nomination committee
sufficient resources to perform
its duties. Where necessary, the
nomination committee should seek
independent professional advice, at
the company’s expense, to perform
its responsibilities.
NAEAREEZEGRHTZER
NEITEBE - RELZEQBETH
BERNETE  ESFBEIHEESR
R BRABRAEN -

MEABABERAETIERNAL  URRERBBALHE
BExREEIREER

(c) reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board;
MANEFERE LT

(d) developed and reviewed the nomination policy; and

HE MRE iR AR &

(e) reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and
assessed the balance of skills and experience of the Board
as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.

WA EESNOAS - BERZ T - WHEEESREMER
B9 - REEZ TTILAEA RAFIRARAIHEB RN -

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy effective from 1
September 2013 (“Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board, details of which are summarised
as follows:

EEGH T =FNA—HEBRWNEETSRE L TLBER - #5)
EERREBKESIUEMEIM T - AFBERAT

(@ In considering the Board’s composition, a wider range of
perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service will be duly considered in the
selection of candidates.

B EEABRREZTGNHEN  WEZEBRGHFEES
B BIEETRAIER - FiE - XERHAEER  BELR
B - AFBFAREFIR -

(o) All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria.
FBEESNRENARARES SR - WAFEIREE BRE
A o

(c) To ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination Committee will review and discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

REZ B G TRRA RAwEA A gt R E20ER] - RRE
EEREZ BRI BN  TEREFTTHRRIEEM

FEIEET -

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy effective from
26 March 2019 (“Nomination Policy”) setting out the criteria and
procedures when considering candidates to be appointed and re-
appointed as Directors.

EEGH_T-NF=ZA T NEHRITERMBAEEE - JIEHNE
BIREANZERENZERESK 2 ERIRER ©

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FAKX R (E)) PEERER
Ab.1- Nomination criteria
A5.4 RE%EA
(cznt d All new appointments and re-appointments of Directors are based on
(48) the following criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

FIEESNNEZAREFZERATERFHREASSAE
(@) Integrity

WA=
(b) Independent mindedness
BUHER

Possession of core competencies that meet the current needs
of the Company and the ability to complement the skills and
competencies of the existing Directors
BEEEMBWFEALRBEREE  TEEHERRBEESENR
EEPSEIE]

Readiness to commit time and effort to carry out duties and
responsibilities effectively

AR RIS - WERUEERS KBS
(e) A good track record of experience at a senior level in
corporations/organisations
FERR/ REHTREISREEENBAERITLS
Financial knowledge
BB Fe e

These criteria are for reference and not meant to be exhaustive and
decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate
any person, as it considers appropriate.

EEHRIH2E USRS ARZ - b N EREMEIER -
REZEGAERABHARRBEENAL ©

Nomination procedures
RERF
The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee for consideration of a proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider and
make recommendations to the shareholders for election as Directors
at general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies or
as additional Directors. Proposed candidates will be asked to submit
the necessary personal information in relation to the candidates
as required in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee may request candidates to provide additional information
and documents, if considered necessary. In order to provide
information of the candidates nominated by the Board to stand for
election at a general meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders.
The names, brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any other
information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the
circular to shareholders. According to the Articles, the shareholders
may also propose a person for election as a director, details of
which are set out in the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a
General Meeting, Put Forward Proposals at Annual General Meeting
and Propose a Person for Election as a Director” of the Company
and available on the website of the Company.
k%iaﬁwiﬁﬁﬁk%isaaﬁfk%iaﬁéﬁk%m%
BA RELZESANEZGREES CAMEEEERELM
k%%%%k%ﬁﬁi Eﬁ§$ &{§$Aéﬁﬁﬁ$uﬁﬁ
RIS ZERGERITIZE S - BE AEKSWE IR BRIE LR A
%BSH)%WﬁﬂZﬁﬁF%A%%mmAﬁﬂoﬁ%ééﬁm
RRELE TMKIMLAhﬁﬁﬂéﬂ&X# %h{ﬁﬁﬁ

©

@

@

%%ﬁk%ﬁﬁxiﬁﬁiﬂkﬁ’]ﬂ“g)\ﬁﬂ EAN ﬁﬂxiﬁé
e u Bl 15IE ARVRE A ?ﬁf(“?ﬁéﬂ&*ﬁ%ﬁ g8 -

1 B e REMREERAAR  RARROIF RN X %Hx
Rim uE!’Jéﬂ RIBSEMA - RRIAREDEESNAE - B
B BEHIIR AR A AR ERABRERERS - RIRREFRKSIEH
BEMRERENALZEEEZZIEFIA - YEBHNAA R -
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX @ (el DEERER
A.5.5 | Where the board proposes a resolution C e Mr. Ho Teck Cheong will stand for election as the independent
to elect an individual as an independent non-executive Director of the Company in the 2020 AGM of the
non-executive director at the general Company according to article 98 of the Articles.
meeting, it should set out in the circular RRERMAIE 08K - MESEEBRNARB ZE_SFREFF
to shareholders and/or explanatory REEEARNNBEIIENITES -
statement accompanying the notice of
the relevant general meeting:— The Company’s circular of AGM set out the information in
REEEHNRREAT LIRERETE considering the election of Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, having due regard
E% ATABNIENITES & Eﬁﬂxi to the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy and assessment
=l Fﬁf&[fﬁﬁ’]@(ﬁx% NPT of Mr. Ho’s independence.
EHI_MCFEF JEZZFIEA RABRRBEFRGWEEFZFERAEE L ENHA - THEE
BERRABENESS WE&E{KE&%M&&HH%EZ%L
1. the process used for identifying 14 o
the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be
elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be
independent;
AUmEZa ANTHRE T8
RREEEZ B AT HIR R A LA
MRRZAALTBELALTHR
;
2. if the proposed independent non-
executive director will be holding
their seventh (or more) listed
company directorship, why the
board believes the individual would
still be able to devot sufficient time
to the board;
MR IFNTE S HLES
t%tmuﬁtﬁ AINES &
El " Eui%/\iﬁ}iﬁy\)\/‘i )]H;I
METESETNRR
3. the perspectives, skills and
experience that the individual can
bring to the board; and
ZENLTAREREHIRAE B R
AE - REERER &
4. how the individual contributes to
diversity of the board.
ZBRNTIREEEGHRES T
1t o
A.6 Responsibilities of directors

B

Corporate Governance Principle
ﬁ% 5} /l:l l? H'J

Every Director must always know his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and its conduct, business activities and

AR ARIHEETRA - R SLER -

development.

BREFARAR

HIERARERHRE -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Code Ref.
2540

Code Provisions

FAKX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
E3(ch)/
B (el

Corporate Governance Practices
DEERER

A.6.1

Every newly appointed director
of the company should receive
a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on appointment.
Subsequently he should receive any
briefing and professional development
necessary to ensure that he has a
proper understanding of the company’s
operations and business and is fully
aware of his responsibilities under
statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the company’s
business and governance policies.

BENZENESFHREXRZERES
FH - EAFEAEMKROMERA
HIgMEESHEONARIEERE
LARER A PIE 2 RV B MR TSI B i
BB - ARSTERABAFEER N
A - ERAI RERAMEER
EARA RN EHREABRR TR

g o

C

On appointment, new Directors are given a comprehensive
briefing and related materials of the Group’s business activities,
induction into their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.

MEFEZIRGEY E2HERNAHEN  ETEEEEX
BET  BEFEERBHBEN - REMEFEL -

All Directors, including non-executive Directors, are regularly
provided with comprehensive reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial information, etc.
FEER(BREFNTER) erPAERERHEXBUEFRN2E
s ERRTERER - MBEHSE -

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements.
%gﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁ@iﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%%i%i%%
¥ ,\\': °

A.B6.2

The functions of non-executive
directors include:

FERITESEMNMEL R

— bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct at board

meetings;

2BEEERRH  EFRER K
®ARIERE BMEM-BR
ERERETEUZEE L - 2H]
BUHER

— take the lead on potential conflicts
of interests arise;
TEH IR B R A R 1F EE5A o
B

— serve on the audit, remuneration,
nomination and other governance
committees, if invited; and
EERHEEZREZE®  FMZE
g IREEEEREMELREZES
KB &

- scrutinise the company’s
performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives,
and monitoring performance
reporting.

B R RNRERESEIME
MEEREMEN  WERERD
AIRBNEE -

Non-executive Directors are well aware of their functions and have
been actively performing them. On an on-going basis, Directors
review with management in respect of the Group’s strategic
development and direction, emerging risks and opportunities
available to the Group.
FPTEEBFRANBHEBN B IEEEITENRE - EFHRE
BEAFENEEETASENREIBRLAM - ARKREE R 8L
HIRMEE RS -
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX @ (el DEERER
A.6.3 | Every director should ensure that he C e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year.
can give sufficient time and attention to Please refer to A.1.1 above for the attendance records.
the company’s affairs and should not FAREFERILLFBESCARNE - HERHFR EXFEAA
accept the appointment if he cannot do I8 o
SO.
FEEEEEREN AR RS e Al Directors have in-depth industry knowledge and established track
B ARINER  SRITEEZESZ record, whose interests are aligned with that of the Company. Every
- Director has given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs. The independent non-executive Directors have brought
a wide spectrum of their extensive knowledge and experience in
their respective business undertakings to the Board for the fullest
performance of its functions.
PREFHABRENTENIRCETNEELDSE - BENTR
BN RINARE — B - BREBREHAR A Z B H B R &
1518 - BYEMTEEMABNRSE B XBHENEZEE M
RS - BHEFLLEBETHRAE
A6.4 |Board should establish written C e The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for relevant employees.
ExgREMEERTERES - 15
SINBEZ PRSP R RER ©

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

RABEERA EHRAPTETPIEE EHBEITAEFETESFRZS
rERESP A ([1R2ESF R ) AR R RIREZNE SRR HITATAI ©

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the Directors
have complied with, for any part of the accounting period covered
by this report, the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
RRBIMAEESELETEE AR  MEESEAREMBEZE
FTHAR 2 (R - B PRSP RIFTIRE AP 8

Written guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code relating
to securities transactions for relevant employees are set out in the
“Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees” of the
Company.

2 BIRHIE

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Code Ref.
2540

Code Provisions

SFAIRX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
E3(ch)/
B (el

Corporate Governance Practices
DEERER

A.6.5

All directors should participate in
continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant. The company
should be responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training, placing
an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.
FIAESE2MEEEEELRE - 2R
SERTELAN G M AE - DARBR LB A
HEEEARNEMENEATHES
BIELER - ARIEB ETHSENE
A RHEEELE - UEYEELT
NEIEENAE B REE -

E

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Directors
are updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to
time to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors. All Directors
are encouraged to attend external forums or training courses on
relevant topics which may count towards continuous professional
development training.

ERHERRHERI 2 —3B0  EFEIREFEHE EmARRE
EREERTECEMEREN  NEREBEFTETHHNT
RAREBEEEE LRI ABINARE A IIFHIRE
ERRBEEERRIEI —H5 -

Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. For the year ended 31 December
2019, with the exception of Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, all Directors
namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, Mr. Teo Tiou
Seng, Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, Mr. Tan Chor Kee, Mr. Kwa
Wee Keng, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David and Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan had
confirmed that they had complied with the code provision A.6.5 of
the Code during the year ended 31 December 2019 by participating
in appropriate continuous professional development activities either
by attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to the Directors duties and responsibilities.
Mr. Ho has not participated in continuous professional development
activities because his appointment as Director of the Company
commenced on 2 October 2019.

RFTR BEEE2B2BEHEHLER - NBRILEHFENZ L
Bt URRHEBTEFIHEARYAMBENEATHESS
EHER - BE—ZT-NET_A=1+—HILFE  KRAZEELE
Hh - REEE R (BIERINE LA - BRBIRL & - REAB T4 - &M
Rt REBELE  WEELE  BEHELEERIAALEE)H
TR - BRI E IR EE AR R ¥ S E R KB E
BENSE AR 2ES B HEZEERIZIEDHE BT ZSF
A EABSIEZIRE - ERNAEEERRRZEFEHN_Z
—NEFETAZRARSR  RARDEFBEFEERBEIED -

A.6.6

Each director should disclose to
the company at the time of his
appointment, and in a timely manner
for any change, the number and nature
of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant
commitments. The identity of the public
companies or organisations and an
indication of the time involved should
also be disclosed. The board should
determine for itself how frequently this
disclosure should be made.
BREEENEXLZARMAREEE
RABRR B SHABBE TR AEE RIT
AR B A B RRGE - g A #
B IS HEER o WINTIEREE PTS M
PR A AR RS A 1 LA N R B
BB MR - EESEATT
IRTEAERE % AMEH —IRIRER

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their
appointment and at least once a year thereafter the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments, identifying the public companies or
organisations involved.
EERNEXZARERARFRE(WRERFGFEL—IR) HRA
BRATIHABEERA SR RS - AREAMSEREE - Wi
ZENRARRMARE BT -
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX @ (el DEERER
A.6.7 |Independent non-executive directors E e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board
and other non-executive directors, as Committee meetings, the meetings between the Chairman and
equal board members, should give the the independent non-executive Directors and the general meeting
board and any committees on which during the year. Please refer to A.1.1, A.2.7, A5.1- 5.4, B.1.2, C.3.1
they serve the benefit of their skills, and E.1.2 for details.
expertise and varied backgrounds FANEELZLLH EFSRTZELEH  TREBIENT
and qualifications through regular BETgRMRERE2HERHSAME - F1BHL2HEA11 -
attendance and active participation. A2.7Ab1-54. -B1.2 -C31K&E1.2IH
Generally, they should also attend
general meetings to gain and develop a e Extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both
balanced understanding of the views of quantitatively and qualitatively.
shareholders, SEEBLIEL TR RS E R E B AETE -
BUIENITEE REMIEATERIER
HEMEEEAERSHUNESTS/K e Due to other commitments, one non-executive Director had not
8 ETHYFEEIeNERBEEIE attended the Annual General Meeting and the Extraordinary General
BgNENZEgN R ERSHE Meeting held on 26 June 2019.
% DAEREE - ERABERTENS R —HIIFNTEFAEMEEMEABLERE - NFAAAZ+RBEE
RERELHER o I & EREA TORRAFRE MRREFRIRE -
T HRARRRNERBRENTHE -
A.6.8 |Independent non-executive directors C * Please refer to A.6.7 above.
and other non-executive directors FELHLENEABTIE -
should make a positive contribution
to the development of the company’s
strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed
comments.
B IENITE R REMIENITE SRS
BREEY EERUERBRENER
A RGIE R RBCREL EE SR ©
A7 Supply of and access to information
BRI N ER
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make
an informed decision and perform their duties and responsibilities.
EERERMEZNEREN  APANZEREEFHNEEZEERENNER TMELRE - YRBTEBRERRE -
A.7.1 | Send agenda and full board papers C e Board/Board Committee papers are circulated not less than three

to all directors at least 3 days before
regular board or board committee
meetings.

EEgrHeRNFIEERg R
BEMERFEREEES  TEDESR
NEEERHETZESgRHEN=
RADGAH e

working days before the regular Board/Board Committee meetings
to enable the Directors/Board Committee members to make
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board
Committee meetings.

RERES HBETZEgNENESTe HETZE2gR LR
P2 ARFEEERDERNUELRTE  SRNHFIREFTE H

o

E%gé%@iﬁﬁ@%@ AT PR =ZEEERRRES HETE

il
]

\

\
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

8238 | FAKX R (E)) DEERER

A.7.2 |- Management has an obligation C e The Company Secretary who is also the Chief Financial Officer of the
to supply the board and its Company attends all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate
committees with adequate and governance, statutory compliance, and accounting and financial
reliable information in a timely matters, as appropriate.
manner to enable it to make RAARZ AN EREREMBEEYEMEEEEEHEE - Uit
informed decisions. PEES - BOIEERGHRVBEEEENEERESR (4@
EREEREENEEFSREETE ) e
EERUTERAIENERER
FEEERENEZEREABERNG e The Directors have separate and independent access to the
SURELARE © Company’s senior management to keep themselves abreast of

business activities, financial performance, internal audit and internal
- The board and individual control progress in the Group.
directors should have separate BEETATREEBAARNSRERAL - USRETHEAR
and independent access to the SENEKTDY - BBERE - AHBERRABETER o
company’s senior management
for making further enquiries where
necessary.
EEghERNEFEEETEBA
Al BEEABNE LSRG - DE
REZHIBE—FER -

A.7.3 |- All directors are entitled to have C e Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by
access to board papers and related Directors and committee members. Senior management of the
materials. Company has taken appropriate steps to respond promptly and fully
FrEEEYAERETHEEe Y H R to any queries raised by Directors.

HEER - EENZEEKENEHESENHRE R FAEEREM
B eSREREAESRIEE SRURRIEL 2 HEACE
—  Queries raised by directors should
receive a prompt and full response,
if possible.
HRERREOME - QRN AER
AIBEE R & 2 E ) [EIFE ©
B REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD EVALUATION
EEREREBEAENTMEESSTZ
B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
e NG A Op S TNEE)5Y
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
The Company should disclose its Director’s remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive Directors’ remuneration and all Directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent.
ggﬁ%}ﬁg%%;%%ﬁ%&ﬁ@é@%%ﬁE@E’\J$E CERBERMEAEAENER LGRS TEEMe k2 EE
HET B o
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FAKX #E(E) PEERER
B.1.1 | The remuneration committee should C e The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman about
consult the chairman and/or chief proposals relating to the remuneration packages and other human
executive about their remuneration resources issues of the Directors and senior management, including
proposals for other executive directors but not limited to succession plan and key personnel movements as
and should have access to independent well as policies for recruiting and retaining qualified personnel.
professional advice if necessary. THEZECCESREREEABZHFIEEZREMANERRE
FHEZ S SRR EMANITE RN H MR B(REETRNEIAE  EZAFEY  UREELKBESE
BARAERERRITBEE - EF BAABER)BAERHER -
2 HFHLZESEUSIBFUEEE
"o e The emoluments of Directors and Senior Management have been
determined with reference to the skills, knowledge, involvement in
the Company’s affairs and their individual performance, and to the
profitability of the Company and prevailing market conditions during
the year.
ARBIZEERRREEASMEERBERNALZAH - MK
FRE2EARNFNEBEZRERKE  WERFARRE 2B
RiSREmEE
B.1.2 | The remuneration committee’s terms of C e The Board has established Remuneration Committee to make

reference should include:

FHEEerREBETHERRE

— recommend to the board on the
company’s policy and structure
for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;
MAREERSREREAENDE
FNR SRR - RERRRSLIER T
EA RS A2 e 5T Hr MR - 1)
EEgRHER

- review and approve the
management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the
board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
HREESema XA kA FRm
At ML E IR R BB

— either to determine, with delegated
responsibility, or to make
recommendations to the board
on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and
senior management;
NTREZ —: BEFEEERE
£ EEEpIMTESRaRERE
ABMHBFS  AMESFES
EREITEE R REREA BN
B8

recommendations on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management.
No Director and senior management can determine his own
remuneration.
EESCRUFWEZESHUREEARREFT RS RERAEN
iﬁ%ﬁ\ﬂ%ﬁ&?ﬁi\%zgﬁ cEBEREMERASH T ETEEAN
ST o

The current members of the Remuneration Committee include two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David (Chairman) and Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and a non-executive
Director, namely, Mr. Tan Chor Kee.
FMEESRMENEBEMUBEIFRNITES - DR AEEHELE
(%) RBIFTEEEAE - AR—RIIENITES - REBELE -

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports the findings
and recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
FRrREe#E  FHWEESIRgRNEFIRRABRRES

In 2019, the Remuneration Committee met four times and
attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee
meetings in the year is summarised below:

RIZ—NF - FNEEESRMNR: FNEESENKENLE
REERAT -

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEBNE HERE
Cheng Fu Kwok, David EEEE (/%) 4/4

(Chairman)
Tan Chor Kee

(appointed on 26 June 2019)
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan

BEE(R-ZZ—NE 11
NAZHNBEZRT)
B (R=B—NE 11

(appointed on 15 July 2019) tATHRAEZM)

Yang, Victor S ER(R=ZZE—NF 3/3
(ceased on 15 July 2019) tA+RARED)

Kuan Kim Kin g (R -2 —NF 3/3

(ceased on 26 June 2019) NAZHRBEREE)

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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g#%ﬂﬁ%%%%@ﬂﬂ%%@%ﬁ
N

consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, time o
commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group;
ZERBABDZAOEHH - AN
1 FRF ) % B B DA e = 1B PR L A Bk iz
B PR g

review and approve compensation
payable on loss or termination of
office or appointment;

RS R B/ B B R AR IS s =
EMmAZTEEE

review and approve compensation

arrangements relating to dismissal

or removal of directors for

misconduct; and

B RBERERITRAKRE MERE

%?&%ﬁ@%%%ﬁﬁiﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ?
3

ensure that no director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

R E S BB AT
DHEBETERSHFH o

Comply (“C”)/

Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2EF8 | FAKX R (E)) PEERER
B.1.2 |- recommend to the board on the e The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
(cont’d) remuneration of non-executive to discharge its duties. The Remuneration Committee is accountable
€)) directors; to the Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board for

information.
FNEEGHERETTERUNBITERS - FiHE
CEARRHGHOHARIESSEMN -

B®BERES

The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration
Committee during the year under review:

EEEFA - FMZE SN TERmOT

(@) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s Directors’ fees for the financial year of 2019;
%Eﬁ:%fni,ﬂiﬂkiJ%‘Z%i%@@&m%%@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁE’\Ji%
B

reviewed and approved the salary adjustment of the Company’s
executive Directors and senior management staff;

EHRHEARBRITEZ NS REEA BB

reviewed and approved gratuity granted to retired senior
management; and
EHRAERKSRERABNAMM SN &

(d) reviewed and approved the Company’s annual performance-
based bonus policy.

ERMAEA R TR FERR 2 BOBE

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to be responsible for
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors and to consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group.

FHEZEeEMEv RESEN  AEEBEEENNMTESERER
EBASHNHMGTE BREFSENG RASEMNEREESR
(PIEFRRSNR LB ZENFEE) - WHIERITESNHMAE
EEREEZNEEREAB D RIPATEVEIN - 281 A9 K
B AR S B A E B 0 BB 1R 1E o

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any remuneration
payable to members of senior management for the year under
review are set out on pages 202 to 204 and page 290 of this annual
report.

REEFERN  AASEEERTAASNTREEEARKBR
THEHEE N A FRE202 EEE 204 EREFE290 8 °
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

8238 | FAKRX @ (el DEERER

B.1.3 | The remuneration committee should C e The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted
make available its terms of reference, on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
explaining its role and the authority FMEE g BiEHE D T &N AR R T MBS, o
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange e The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
website and the company’s website. making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
HE B 2 BB P & A R A8, structure for the remuneration of Directors and the management, and
FRREEEEHE  BELACKESE determining with delegated responsibility, the senior remuneration
EFREENEN - packages of all executive Directors and the senior management

and to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives of the Board resolved from time to time.

FHEEG T EBACOERARAEENSRERAS 2 HMEK
EREBRNEFSELES  W2REFSTRBIRZCEBER
Hit EERTFENDEET  BEEMNRTEERSRERAEN
FolEE  UHIFRITESFNTMMESSREES -

B.1.4 | The remuneration committee should C e The Human Resources Department provides administrative support
be provided with sufficient resources to and implements the approved remuneration packages and other
perform its duties. human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration
TNEEeEERETEERAEITH Committee. The Remuneration Committee also has access to

(& o independent advice at the Company’s expense if considered
necessary.
ANEREE B RETHZERATEFNE S SR HES
REMANEREERE - FHEEGHARERRETERSK
BUHEXER  BRARRAXN -

B.1.5 | The company should disclose details of C e Please refer to notes 12 and 51 in the Notes to Financial Statements
any remuneration payable to members for details of the remuneration payable to the senior management.
of senior management by band in the EASRERE AT FEB2M M BRRMTE 12 %5118 ¢
annual reports.

NAEEEEFRNRFHEREESR
EREASHNBSFE -

C ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
& RZE

CA Financial reporting
B IE R
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects.

ERGRETE B REEMFZARNERE  BEAKATR

C.1.1 | Management should provide sufficient C e Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business
explanation and information to the activities and key financial information on a quarterly basis in each
board to enable it to make an informed board meeting.
assessment of financial and other EENBREFESRIEREEESE IR XK EHLBERE
information put before it for approval. BB ER -

EREENEFSRMET Y NRERE
K BEEGRIUARIER A IHED
B R EAMER - (LA IRBARTE ©
C.1.2 |Management should provide all C e Monthly updates have been provided to all members of the Board,

members of the board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the
company'’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable
the board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties.
ERERGARNEEEXERETHE
k- SPEAARNERI - MBI &
ATREALE R ZRIRFHR L - AR
NEEEREITHEE -

for the purpose of providing a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient detail and to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.
EEEMAKECERHEAETHEN  FRAVBFRAARAEX
I BRI SN AERSRER TG WEESEREE
FRITHREE -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2EF8 | FAKX B (el DEERER

C.1.3 |- The directors should acknowledge C e All Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing

in the Corporate Governance the preparation of financial statements of each financial period,

Report their responsibility for which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group

preparing the accounts. and of the results and cashflow for the year.

EREECEE WS ARMM PREFARBRSEEERUGEVBIPR MBRERNEE - I

ERBFRENERE - %E%Eéﬁ%’/}ﬁi@&ﬂgiiﬁﬂi%%ﬁim{%ﬁ AREBERRERE
BJL °

— There should be a statement by
the auditors about their reporting e In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
responsibilities in the auditor’s December 2019, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
report on the financial statements. policies and applied them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong
W EEM I ETE A R B RS SRR ML Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are in conformity to
MR E P MR HRE EELE the International Financial Reporting Standards, made judgments
AR o and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared the

accounts on the going concern basis.

—  Unless it is inappropriate to assume EREBE - E-NWF+_A=1+—"BLFEZHEHRRE &5
that the company will continue EERUOEASEN B - WE2HMRAEBM B MEREL
in business, the directors should NG A BIBR B S 2R - 30 B S B S B VR — o) JIU BT R
prepare the accounts on a going BENRBEEURRRFELSE BEM -
concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as e With the assistance of the Company’s Finance Department which
necessary. is under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer who is a
BRIEREBE AR B EFELEERI professional accountant, the Directors ensure the preparation of the
TeE - BE EEHHENERERE financial statements of the Group are in accordance with statutory
URARSERES AENE  BEER requirements and applicable accounting standards.
BEHABRRIREER - RACIMGHEAATESHMER  SRVBREEE 20

WET  BERREEVMBRROGRTEEMERER 2G5

— Where the directors are aware 2RI o
of material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may e The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial statements
cast significant doubt on the of the Group is in a timely manner.
company’s ability to continue as BB WIERE BRI ERE T LATIE -

a going concern, they should be
clearly and prominently disclosed e The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their
and discussed at length in the reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
Corporate Governance Report. set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 103 to 113 of
HEFEMEFERTHARAEM S this annual report.
AARE BB E N AIRELER RABVZEEN G E B ERERFTE 2 RRETERIIER U FRE
BB BERRECEELRRERE 103 EEF 113E 2B ZHAIHMEA
BERERFAIRLSTABRRE
=-° e The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
BEW B AR AR A FEL L8 DB E RS H I
EBRTHRAEE -

C.1.4 |The directors should include in the C e The Board has included in the Chairman’s Statement a discussion
separate statement containing a and analysis of the Group’s sustainable development strategy on
discussion and analysis of the group’s pages 8 to 13 of this annual report.
performance in the annual report, an EECRLFRECHEFE1IBEZ [EFEME | AR mELT
explanation of the basis on which the EE A HEERFEEER MUl -
company generates or preserves value
over the longer term (the business
model) and the strategy for delivering
the company’s objectives.

EEREFHANTREAONMEEREN

BAAGRA - BRAQ A RIRE A SR

BEENER(EBENX) RERAA

PRI B IR ERES
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX @ (el DEERER
C.1.5 | The board should present a balanced, C e The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
clear and understandable assessment assessment of the Group’s performance and position in all
in annual and interim reports, and other shareholder communications.
financial disclosures required by the BEESNPTAREEAT - HEEZ KRR MIORIELER - TE R
Listing Rules. It should also do so for SRERALE -
reports to regulators and information
disclosed under statutory requirements. e The Board is aware of and updated with the statutory requirements
BESeEAFERSE NP EHHRE N under the applicable rules and regulations. The Board aims to
BB FTiRAE T A TR ENE B present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
BRI - WARIKRIBEL TE - BW & Group’s position and prospects. The Company Secretary and key
AZIBRETTE o ILHN - HINETERE officers of the Company Secretarial Department work closely and
EERTHREE RIEE AR TEIHE in consultation with legal advisers to review the materiality and
K ERHAVE L RIS AI BRI © sensitivity of transactions and proposed transactions and advise the
Board accordingly.
EREMELEEERRUNBRO EFTER  EFSHIEE
FENEM T SR RN RS BIRR RATRAE o RAMERAE
WENEFZASEZFBRMETSE AR HIFEARHEZNE
EMRBBREEZAEER  WHELRESSREES
C.2 Risk management and internal control
JEVB T IR % A B B
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the issuer’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The board should oversee management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems, and management should provide a confirmation to the
board on the effectiveness of these systems.
EXRHETMEREBEEITAENRRBIERMESENNRRMEERIZE - WHERETARY RERSERERHRR
EENANMPEREZRS c EFRREEEEEYRAREERATEZERZFNR  BRAER MERBERNEESREHES
B RGED AR -
C.21 |The board should oversee the C e Please refer to C.2.3 and C.2.4 below for the details.
Company’s risk management and FHFELETNEC23KC.2.478 -
internal control systems on an ongoing
basis, ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s and
its subsidiaries’ risk management and
internal control systems has been
conducted at least annually and report
to shareholders that it has done so
in its Corporate Governance Report.
The review should cover all material
controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls.
EFERFEEEATNAREERA
BB R4 - WHRGDBFRT —R
NEI R EME A AR R EE &N e
TEMERAN  WEBEBE A®RE)
H AR R FE R 4 SRR A AR - B
BAEREMBEENEITHE @ B1E
BGEREE BRI N AREE -
C.2.2 |The board’s annual review should, C e The Board has conducted annual review on the adequacy of

in particular, ensure the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and
budget of the company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting
function.

ERGETFEERAE - ERRARIE
Bi - AEEZ R ERBEE S E
BIR - BETERREE  UREBTI A
EMEIRIEREAEER GRS -

resources, qualifications and experience of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting staff as well as their
training programmes and budget and considers as adequate.
EZRERARAEGE  ABEZLMBEBRHETINER - EF
RESHAEEERH  URBTIEZNFIRERBBEEENE
BRBETFERS - URAEEH -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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particular, consider:

i

SEFRINERERH2E T

IR

(@)

the changes, since the last
annual review, in the nature and
extent of significant risks, and the
Company’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the
external environment;

B EFmatig - EREREIEE R
B ERRE S AR AT ERE
ETEE RIMEEIREE AL

the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control
systems, and where applicable, the
work of its internal audit function
and other assurance providers;
EREFREERERRAEER
FrE el =S - R (WER)
Wi%&%%&ﬁm%%%ﬁ%m
T :

the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring
results to the board (or board
committee(s)) which enables it to
assess control of the issuer and the
effectiveness of risk management;
MEFS(HEETLZEE)EER
BERNFRRE RS - LB
EEEIRBITANERERRE
BREENERIRE

significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been
identified during the period. Also,
the extent to which they have
resulted in unforeseen outcomes
or contingencies that have had,
could have had, or may in the
future have, a material impact on
the issuer’s financial performance
or condition; and
AN S RERKRNEERN
EAEESIE - UREREBUREY
FERMERA BB RER
B MZEERIENEEITAN
PBRESIENCEE - AIRECE
EHERAIGEGEENEATE
K

the effectiveness of the Company’s
processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rule compliance.
NEIABAMBHRE BT TR
AT BB B -

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£58 | FAKX R (E)) PEERER
C.2.3 |The board’s annual review should, in C e For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board, with the

assistance of the Audit Committee, the Group’s Internal Audit
Function, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and the
management, has conducted regular review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal controls systems, including financial, operational
and compliance control and risk management systems and no
irregularity or material weakness was noted within any function or
process. The Board considers the risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a
whole. The Board further considers that there was no material
issue relating to the controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group.
Please refer to C.2.4 below for the details.
BE-_Z-NF+_A=+—HIFERN EFZEES 1~£EE
NEpEEREE  CERREEZEGLERENHGY T  BFEC
TR AREAMLEIER R (REVRE  SERARER) MR
BEIRRF A - WAREER TR BRARIBEZ ZENE
RiRK - EFERE - BREERAPEZEZREAEEEENS
BEMKGRE - EFGAURL  AREERTE - 2B LA REZEI
&@@E@ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ&ﬁﬁk%@ﬁ%oﬁ%%%%Tiﬁ
C.2.4314 -
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘")
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£58 | FAKX #R(E) PEERER
C.2.4 |The Company should disclose, in ¢} RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

the Corporate Governance Report, a
narrative statement on how they have
complied with the risk management
and internal control code provisions
during the reporting period. In particular,
they should disclose:
NEIEECREE A RS )N AR =
WEEE Al TE SRS BN B TR bR B I8
AEBEARH)FANRX - BEEM = - B
NEERLE

(@) the process used to identify,
evaluate and manage significant

risks;
ARHER  HEREREENRRD
B

(b) the main features of the risk
management and internal control
systems;
%@%@&W%%E%%WIE%
H

(c) an acknowledgement by the board
that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control
systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material
misstatement or loss;
BEARHEANRERER KA
ERZRSEE  WASERAZS
FIENERE - EFRSINEBEEZ
ERGEEEEMIEBERAREEERX
*¥BEENER  MERERTE
BEARKRERM IR EL &2
MIEBEEIIRRE

(d) the process used to review
the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems and to resolve material
internal control defects; and
FA DA% & B B B 2R B PR B R 2 R A
BRI RIIR Fr M R R B & ) A 2R BS
AR - &

(e) the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.
Bal8 J B N R E SRR T A A ED

BoYEEE -

[\ I Ko A BB EE R

Purpose

Sk

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, and for
reviewing their design, operational adequacy and effectiveness.
EEARARAERBREBUNRERER RAIBEIEGE - I
B BRIRRAT - BIER D MRERIE -

The Company has adopted a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for ensuring the smooth operation of business in order to
facilitate the effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate
goals and objectives by allowing it to respond appropriately to
significant business, operational, financial, compliance and other
risks, maintaining proper records for provision of reliable financial
and corporate information, safeguarding the Group’s assets and
shareholder’s interests, ensuring all the transactions are executed in
accordance with the management’s authorization, and complying
with the requirements under the applicable rules and regulations,
and also with the Group’s internal policies and conduct. However,
the risk management and internal control systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to mitigate, rather than eliminate, the risks
of failure in operational systems when business objectives are being
sought.

RRRENEE - B REAREZETEEN—E2HEEBUR - ERIR
R ARREBEGIREE G ENEARER 28 UK -4
5 Eo At LR RS B & - (20 BLE RUCR B B R E B
FERLRE REZERH UWEHAEMBEREEER : R
FEAREEMEE MR : BRMERSHEREEBHRER
77 LB STE B EAR SRR R AR B AR M7 RS
o A1 - EREIR R NI RS AR YA B AR
SRR AIREIFRYE 2 RE - WHERER B R REEIEM
BeERELE I ERE o

Framework

R

The Company has established a reasonable, effective and balanced
internal control and risk management systems, with clear division of
work among the Board, the Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee, the management, functional departments
and business departments within the structure of the entire internal
control and risk management systems.

ARREL T AIE - B BARGIEH) AP B E N E R B IR R A
ETESE  ERXEEY  PEEAREEZES  BTEE - Bl
PIM TS EBPITE B (A N BB BA 15 SR AR & B2 R4t p 9 AR -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Comply (“C”)/

Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX R (E)) PEERER
C.2.4 e The Board is responsible for maintain a sound and effective
(cont’d) implementation of internal control and risk management. The Board
(%) has established the Audit Committee which is responsible for

assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities for reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee, through discussion
with management and engagement of internal audit team of PIL,
to review the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and to report to the Board any
significant risk issues. The Board will provide its own view on the
effectiveness of the systems after reviewed the works and findings
of the Audit Committee.

B RN BERAUNANTEEREAREREE - EEGT
RECZEE  BEBPERERITERERIAEERREER
NBERRGEERD REN - EREZEQHBHEEEEN®HR
B R FsrNai st - Mt MEPEa i R E R E I8 R 4t (4%
B gEEAREEREREIRINE) WAL TREFSR
EEAEREREER - EFSREMERZ RGN TERMGER
& SREEHEORBREEER -

Relevant executive directors and senior management have been
delegated with specific authorities and responsibilities for monitoring
the performance of designated operating business units. The
management is responsible for organizing and steering the daily
operation of the internal control of the Company. The management
would report the business plans and development to the Board
on a quarterly basis. This helps the Board to monitor the Group’s
business operations and plan on a timely basis in response to the
changes in business environment. Each operating business unit
also maintains internal controls and procedures appropriate to
its structure and business environment whilst complying with the
Group’s policies, standards and guidelines.

HARATEE RSN ERECERTRERNREXERESETE
BEBBEMN KD - ERREBEEBNEERRAANIEZNETE
BT - TREESFEREFFAMRERTERS - WBEYPEF
SHEEHREEESEEAEERELE NTE - REEEM
T EA BB R EBRR L AR EERIEF - YRR ETFAE
EEeR - ERIKRIES -

Internal Control System
RBEPEIE RS

The Group’s Internal Audit Function has been performed by internal
audit team of PIL which undertakes regular reviews of the Group’s
operations and system of internal controls. By adopting a risk-based
approach and operating on an on-going basis to evaluate risk level
on control environment, the annual audit plans which covers major
activities and processes of the Group’s operating business unit on
a rotational basis was submitted to Audit Committee for approval.
Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific areas of
concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management
from time to time.

REBN AN EZBEBRNTHBOANBEAEAST - HEHEMN
REEREE RN EZE RS o FFENT TIEA2IRAARR &
EROAR - WAREEEEE - AHASERENERKT - &
MREAEELEXBBEUNETEEY BT WESRITEZ
ZEgEM N TETRREZZEGREREMATNEE
SIS HET TR E R A
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Comply (“C”)/

Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£58 | FAKX R (E)) PEERER
C.2.4 e Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of
(cont’d) individual business units, the scope of work performed by Internal
(%8) Audit covers all material controls including financial, operational

and risk management functions. During the year, Internal Audit
deeply inspected, investigated and assessed one subsidiary, one
joint venture and one associate of the Company respectively. It has
reviewed and assessed their systems on procurement, operation
flow, internal control, financial, contracting, safety and environmental
protection, human resources and administration etc.

BT R E S B A EBIEE RARERME - AT TIER
CRERT  BERAREASMAEEET - UREREER
B8 o TN - AEZDRRAZE « AERLFHEAR T —HHBER
A —HEAGER—HEBEQF WK TZERANK
B 2ERE - NEER - B 410 REEERRBRE - A
RMANERBATEE 247

The internal audit findings are preliminary discussed at management
level and the follow up actions are taken in response to the Internal
Audit’s recommendations. The internal audit findings are also
presented to the Audit Committee and the Board on the immediate
meetings following the issue of the internal audit report. The
responsible heads of departments will be notified of the control
deficiencies noted for rectification. The management would urge
the relevant business segments and units to implement rectification
measures in a timely manner, so as to ensure the internal control
system of the Company is effective. Follow-up reviews will be
conducted in due course and discussed at the Audit Committee
Meeting and Board Meeting to ensure that audit recommendations
are being properly implemented. During the year, corrective actions
were taken based on the audit findings and no significant control
failure which might affected shareholder’s interest has identified. The
Audit Committee reviewed all internal audit findings, management
responses and the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
controls. Significant risk issues and its recommendations, if any, are
referred to the Board for consideration. No suspected frauds and
irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement
of laws, rules and regulations have come to the Audit Committee’s
attention to cause the Audit Committee to believe that the system of
internal controls is inadequate.

NMEZAERG LR TEIRE N - WHEEAIPEZ A EZ IR
BRAEITE) - AMERERTNERE LA T MERNEE LR
ETEREZEGRETE - XML EHERMEEIET R LA
EITIELE - EREERBMES D MR EMRREEEIEEE
RABINIBEEIT R G A RBUEIE - RIEREBEZER A BUORM -
EREERETRERY  YNERZEGEZNEEST R
o FN BRMEANBERSELE - WEIIR AL BIRAEE
B BNERERAE EREZECBHMENNERER &
BE IR RABEEIE 2 TR R - WREEGEREARRS
BREEE (WA) o AR AR BEEE R IER AR
ARERAE  RAIRERMSIREREZERIE - BEWEZ

ZEEHREAREERGR T RN -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Comply (“C”)/

Explain (‘E")
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2538 | FAKI R (E)) PEERER
C24 Group’s risk management
(cont’d) SEERERE
()

The Board oversees the Group’s risk management system and
reviewing its adequacy and effectiveness. The Group has set
up an Enterprise Risk Management Committee, composed of
senior management and heads of key corporate functions, with a
mandate for overall risk management activities of the Group. The
Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s main responsibilities
include a comprehensive understanding of the Company’s major
risk exposures and its management status and maintaining the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management system.
EERRRERASERRERRG R AR REHL - K
FEBECEEREELZE S  AAEREREIZLERINE
EHR  BREARASEREARERES c PERREERE
EIZBEELERRARNRRENSHERNRR REEERR -
DA R M F5 R B R ATE R B U

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee is also responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s risk
management matters such as the overall objectives and policies as
well as its working mechanisms of the Group’s risk management
system, the establishment of individual risk management unit at
company level, risk assessment of major operating activities, provide
recommendations for the mitigation of major risks and to carry out
any other assignments from the Board.

tERBEEZESNAERAEERGERRRENESSRRLE
= WASEEREEZRGNEEHERBUR - AREEERER
FEAREmRERNREREREA 3 B &S E L BT
g éﬂﬁﬁfﬁ%éﬁ%&ﬁﬁiﬁwﬁ A REBITESSREFHEREA

I8 o

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee reports to the Board
and Audit Committee at least twice a year. It will report on the
Group’s risk management activities, risk positions and management
measures for mitigation of major risks noted. The Enterprise Risk
Management Committee will also submit the risk evaluation reports
which evaluate the risk level of major activities and processes of
the Group’s operating business with focuses on financial risks,
operational risks, strategic risks and market risks to the Board and
Audit Committee twice a year.
TCERREEZEEBFRIMANESTERERLESERLT
BANAEERARERED  ARALRERTZREMRNERE
i TEFFRAMNEESREREEQRERMBT RS - 11
iR - 2 ERM - KRR ETISRARS - FHEREEZEE
BEZEHLBIRNERIZE

With the support of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, Audit
Committee and the management, the Board identifies and assesses
the key risks, existing or emerging, facing the Group, and formulates
relevant strategies and measures to mitigate the risk exposure.
EhEREREREZES BRZEGREBRERYT  EE=2WH
Nt AEBEEREG R BSOEE 2 T 2R - W HFTHER R
e - DUBEE R R o
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX R (E)) DEERER
C.2.4 INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY
(cont’d) N H BB EOR
(&)

e |n order to ensure compliance with the continuous disclosure
obligation under the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and
the disclosure of inside information of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”),
the Board has adopted an “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”
effective from 29 June 2016 which sets out the guidelines to the
directors, officers and the employees of the Group, who is likely to
be in possession of the unpublished inside information to (a) monitor
the Company’s business developments so that any potential inside
information is promptly identified and report to the Board to enable
them be timely informed of any circumstances or development that
may constitute inside information of the Company and to make
timely decisions on disclosure, if necessary; and (b) take reasonable
precautions to preserve confidentiality of inside information and the
relevant announcement (if applicable) before publication.
RERFEABZ M ETRNBEFERRET  URBFLHAEK
Bl (TFEH LRGN ]) (BEEGIFES71E) BRABENREEAH
o EBERESGEE_T-AFANAZTNBEREN [ NEEEEER
Kl BEEMASE EE e ABREE (HARRERARZ
NEES)IREIES] - @B RNARNEBBRRETER  UESR
REBRMEMEENAREE WAEFGER  WEESGREE
AR RE B AR RN E B RRER - WIELIRTE - 115
ZREHERIREE RO HMAEER  BASBEREBAAS
(Em)R=E - EE R RFIERL -

C.2.5 |The Company should have an internal C ® Please refer to C.2.4 above for the details.
audit function. Issuers without an SFELRE EXEC2418 -
internal audit function should review
the need for one on an annual basis
and should disclose the reasons for
the absence of such a function in the
Corporate Governance Report.
NEIER L AEPEZINGE - )R B NEBE
B BT AR F R AT E2E
RULIATHEE @ W R EBIAME)NF
BRI AEEDEE -

C.3 Audit Committee

BERLE®

Corporate Governance Principle
EERRE

The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it will apply financial reporting, risk
management and internal control principles and maintain an appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors.

ERGEMNAIERBTSER - B E IR KRR R R A R AMAT A SR R AN E B OB R IEAR R BB E M RHE -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Code Ref.

Code Provisions

SFAIRX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
E3(ch)/
B (el

Corporate Governance Practices
JJ‘_# E/nﬁﬁ

C.3.1

Full minutes of audit committee
meetings should be kept by a duly
appointed secretary of the meeting.
EZEZEGNTESRCHERLE
f?ﬁ‘ﬂﬁ =} uﬁﬂf‘iﬂ%ﬁ ©

Draft and final versions of minutes
should be sent to all committee
members for their comment and
records, within a reasonable time
after the meeting.
Qﬁﬁﬁmm%& XA ETRIETE
HiE— ﬁ%ﬁWﬁ&%L;E
@%%W CURHKEREER
B BEERERDESA -

C

The Board has established the Audit Committee to investigate
and handle matters within its terms of reference and make
recommendations to the Board for any necessary improvement.
EXQERUBRE B QAT E REIERIEH RS E AT
FIH  URMEF SRR ERS -

The current members of the Audit Committee include two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit,
Ivan (Chairman) and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, of which at least
one independent non-executive Director possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications of accounting or related financial

management expertise.
ERLZEGRAXNERIEMBIIIFNITES - HHl A2 EEE

(XF) RBBESLE U —UFATESR - WRELLE  EHE
DB IFMTES AMEEERER  LARBEENGFEM

BSGERER -

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

BREHE  BERZERIRGRNESERAERNER

The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least twice a year.
In 2019, a total of three meetings were convened and held with
satisfactory attendance. The details of Audit Committee members’
attendance in 2019 are as follows:
ERLRESTHRTER  HOBFMKR - —NEF - BiZE
BeHARRRITZREH  HHEERS Aﬁ%oﬂff HF

BHERZEERENHFEFBIEDT -

Number of

Attendance

Committee members EZEGRE HERE
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan (Chairman) 2n () 3/3
Cheng Fu Kwok, David W (R=ZZ—h%F 2/2

(appointed on 26 June 2019) 7~ A _‘f'/ <H BZE)

Kwa Wee Keng FEE(R=T—NIF 2/2
(appointed on 15 July 2019) tATHRAEZEM)

Kuan Kim Kin iR (KM= —NF 1/1
(ceased on 26 June 2019) RNAZHRBEREE)

Yang, Victor SER(R=ZZ—NF 1/1

(ceased on 15 July 2019) tA+HRARED)
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£58 | FAKX R (E)) PEERER
C.3.1 e The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of
(cont’d) meetings are circulated to the Board for information.
(&) EZZERANERRAE RAGR AR ESSEM -

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee
during the year under review:

EOBEEA  ERZEEN THERMMT

(@) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial reports for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and for the six months ended 30
June 2019;

EHEHE T - \F+_A=T—HIEFERHEE-ZT—NF
<A E+EI¢/\ B A AR B A B IS

(b) reviewed the external auditor’s statutory audit plan and the
letters of representation;

EHIMNEZ BRI EE RSB RIERERE

(c) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal
auditor;

2RI M ARZ BED SR h A BRAT A R R

(d) considered and approved the 2019 audit fees and terms of
engagement for the external auditor;

EERHE TN EINEZIEN B N ELEE K

(e) reviewed the “Continuing Connected Transactions” set forth on
pages 82 to 87 of this annual report; and
HHEHANANFRERAZFET A2 [FHHERERS] &

(f) reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group.

E RN E R ER BRI K A b B IR R AT RBE

On 25 March 2020, the Audit Committee met to review the 2019
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with
external auditor. Based on this review and discussions with the
management and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed
the accounting treatment adopted by the Company and had, to the
best of its ability, assured itself that the disclosure of the financial
information in this report complies with the applicable accounting
standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee therefore recommended the Board’s approval of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 for public release.

RoZ-RE=ZA"+HH ERZESBRMNERBAMER T
—NEENGEEMBERE  DEREHNASERBZ @ RRER
£ o $Eﬂ§ﬁt%%&ﬁ,%% C AR BB IR B R IMNEZ BT R R - B
2Z EQBRARBIMEM TREFR - WERNBREARSE
%&ﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁ%éﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁz SRR E R R ER 7% o B
BRLZEEERHE T NF T AT —HILFELREMBER
SN B RS A BT o

The Audit Committee also recommended the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor for 2020
and that the related resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’
consideration and approval at the 2020 AGM.
ERZEENERENZARY « WERH SHMEHMAAKE
= if%?\\ﬂ;ﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁﬁi WREFER-_Z_ZTFRIAFAG
ERRBEEELE

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
E3(ch)/
B (el

Corporate Governance Practices
DEERER

C.3.1
(cont’d)
(8&)

During the year under review, the fees paid to the Company’s
external Hong Kong auditor for audit work amounted to
HK$2,730,000 and for non-audit and review activities amounted
to HK$1,922,000 (including HK$1,400,000 for acting as reporting
accountants in relation to the very substantial disposal transaction,
HK$285,000 for interim review, HK$52,000 for tax review and
HK$185,000 for other related services).

REIEFA - AAR X AINEEBZEAD 2 %22 A % 2,730,000
BT BEIER B R ER 2 RGE A R1,922,000% T (BEEE
FEERLNERSHIREGHAEM 1,400,000 7T - FHENE
F 285,000 7% 7T ~ Bt 7% % B B A 52,000 7 7T K H th A8 B AR 75 &
185,000/ 7T) °

C.3.2

A former partner of existing auditing
firm shall not act as a member of the
committee for two years from the date
of his ceasing to be a partner of or to
have any financial interest in, the firm,
whichever is later.

WA BRI RRE OB ARRA
FERAEMBZ IR BZ AR ERAR
HES - st NE=AZ A aEA R
) A B (LA B BRI 18 & R 2%E ) B ET
FR - MFEEEREEGNKE -

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
existing auditing firm of the Company during the two years after he
ceases to be a partner of the auditing firm.

HERE 8 EFRARFRE OZE AT RES B AR HZ
RBAFAEABHRIMEA - BEARREZEEGKE -

C.3.3

The audit committee’s terms of
reference should include:

ERZEENRERERESE

— recommendations to the board on
the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor
and approval of their terms of
engagement;
PONBZERINEE - EHEER
B mE R REEE R EINE
T2 BN A EE R IRER

— review and monitor external
auditor’s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of
audit process;

AT R BE BRI AZ SR ) 08 L F
RAZER T oA RIE

— review of the company’s financial
information; and

EHATMMBER - Rk

— oversight of the company’s financial

reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures,
including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes
and budget of the company’s
accounting and financial reporting
function.
EENRMBREGEE - EREE
RAHEEIZEEF - BIEEE RAE
Gat RBERBE S A ER -
BETERRKEBEERA UKE
IAEXNEIIRERERBAER
BRE °

The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms
of reference which have complied with the Code requirements and
are modified from time to time. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is made available on the website of the Company and
Stock Exchange.

B2E B GHNRLIRTRIFRFEIAS H AT H RS E N B A RHED
BN - EREE G v BEHER BN AA T B -
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EEERER

C.3.4

The audit committee should make
available its terms of reference,
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange
and the company’s website.

BZE B REA A R AR
TRAREBEGE mERAGRES
BERTHNEN -

C

Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for the details.
A2 EXEC.3.1 X C3.31E -

C.3.5

Where the board disagrees with the
audit committee’s view on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors, the company
should include in the Corporate
Governance Report a statement from
the audit committee explaining its
recommendation and also the reason(s)
why the board has taken a different
view.
NEFETREBRZEGHEE - £
T BERBRIINEREMEENE
R RAEECEE AMEPIIHEFZ
ZESMMHEZNEH  ULERS
HIrEAERNRA -

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject
to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be re-appointed as the
Company’s external auditor for 2020. The Board agreed with the
recommendation made by the Audit Committee.
EREZEQRNETGER  SNMEERY « R gstiniTHE
RRAB T _ZFEHINEIZEED - HEERRRANERITHIRR
AFERG L - FAEE - EEGREEREZEQZES °

C.3.6

The audit committee should be
provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

EREZERRERGREERABITA

BE -

The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary
can arrange independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company should the seeking of such advice be considered
necessary by the Audit Committee.

ERLZEQDERY EERZEGRARBLESKBUEEE
R RAWERARATH - BAAARRRAXN -

C.3.7

The terms of reference of the audit
committee should also require it:
ERLZEENBESEIERE

— to review arrangements employees
of the company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The
audit committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and
for appropriate follow-up action;
and
BRI ARIRENA TR - AAE
5 7] AE LA AR R - A ED B sk
Hib A E A ge B AN T EZ (T RR
LT - BEREZEgRRREES
T BARENEEEELRLQT
BUMHEERREETE 0 &

— to act as the key representative
body for overseeing the company’s
relations with the external auditor.
BERRIEINEZEE 2 HFE
RE BEER_EHENBEK-

Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for details.
FES2B X EC.3.1 RC.3.3F -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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2EF8 | FAKX B (el DEERER

D DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
EESRINER

D.1 Management functions
EIRTHEE
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to
management.

AREE—EERNEEE SR BE R MO EEREREREATN S -

D.1.1 | When the board delegates aspects of C e Management meetings are held periodically where executive
its management and administration Directors and heads of senior management of the respective
functions to management, it must, at business divisions are present and clear directions are given as to
the same time, give clear directions the managements powers
as to the management’s powers, in EEEeTHRTHE  TEELREEEEBANSREEAS
particular, where management should kx g.}\,\ @ 1 g;% C WHE IR BV 45 FIEMTIES| -
report back and obtain prior board
approval before making decisions or e Any issue that is considered to be material will be referred to the
entering into any commitments on the Board for approval.
company’s behalf. ARAMEERZFHARHFHIXHESTSER -
BEEGGAEIRERITRINAE T A
HERTFERER - NWARRBIEIERE e Any materials matters requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules
HEES - AT IEMIIES] - BRIRERS or other applicable rules or regulations, appropriate disclosure
BEEAEESERURERERARE will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and
HAE DR E S ET S FGE R RS & shareholders’ approval will be obtained in accordance with the
EeMAESEEAE - requirements of the applicable rules and regulations.

RE EmAR RISk B @ A AR RIS AR BImZE TiRTE v« EEE1E - 15
SELEE CHE - WRHERRBER CRAIRBROESR - 2
i R EUSAR R 2 #EE o

D.1.2 |Formalise functions reserved to C e Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer who is also the
the board and those delegated to Chairman of the Company, management is responsible for the day-
management and to review those to-day operations of the Group.
arrangements periodically to ensure TERETREBE(BMARRRZER)TET  EEEAEASE
that they remain appropriate to the R B EEE -
companys needs.

NREREBLRE FEFZ B KAD e The Company has established clear terms of reference for the
Jﬁbiﬁn% =18 B BEE D BIFET TR - Board which are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain
I E BER AT AR IR B AL R & A F appropriate.

WRE - RRAFIEREREHIFIEMOBESE - WA BERERES
i o

D.1.3 |The company should disclose C e The respective responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions
the respective responsibilities, of the board and management have been discussed through this
accountabilities and contributions of Corporate Governance Report.
the board and management. EEGHEREESENBEERNLEEE RSPl o
RRAEREEESHERESSNE
B HEBWAMEAREBERELHE

D.1.4 |Directors should clearly understand C e Directors are given formal letter of appointment setting out the key

delegation arrangements in place. The
company should have formal letters of
appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their

appointment.
§$$/z**%ﬁ¢ﬂimmtéﬁ§FﬁEF
NEIEBEANERLREE  FTHEM

éﬁ%ﬁ’oixtlﬁk&ﬂ%ﬁ °

terms and conditions of their respective appointment. Each newly
appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
FEEREWRIEALZEE  UEBFREZEZEEBRRKLE
"o BENEAESTIHERLEEE -

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
8238 | FAKRX R (E)) DEERER
D.2 Board Committees
EEERTHNLZES
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
EEERTSZEeNN B AEANEERESE  FRISZEGEIREE
D.21 |Where board committees are C e Four Board Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration
established to deal with matters, the Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee,
board should give them sufficiently have been established with specific terms of reference. Please refer
clear terms of reference to enable them to A.5.1-5.4, B.1.3, C.3.3 and D.1.2 for details.
to perform their functions properly. FEe KU NESETEZE S EXZES  FHEES 18
EERIEERRIEEE EE2kN FLEEEREREES  ZSERARERE - FAF2HEXE
ERZESRHRFRENBEHRE A5.1-54-B1.3 C.3.3KD12%H
EHELEE BT TR -
D.22 |The terms of reference of board C e Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and
committees should require them to recommendations at the Board meetings.
report back to the board on their FRRR T ZERN RO RN EOERL AT RS -
decisions or recommendations,
unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so (such
as a restriction on disclosure due to
regulatory requirements).
EERRE TS L ESNBRSERAT
ZEERZMERFERIRTRE
B RIEZE LB AENEE R
FRIR 1 BEVE L FE 3R (] 40 H B2 B 47 7E
i pR Hl )
D.3 Corporate Governance Functions
EERBEE
D.3.1 | The terms of reference of the board (or C e No corporate governance committee has been established. The

a committee or committees performing
this function) should include:
Exg(RITHBENZES) B
EHEERE

— develop and review the company’s
policies and practices on
corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board;
HE R ARET A RIS BRI K
B WREFSREER

— review and monitor the training
and continuous professional
development of directors and
senior management;

B REREEREREEAEN
BN EERER

Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions with the
following duties:

RABWESR I CEERZES  bEEABEHEFERE I
BTHRE -

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

BRI MR AR AR EERERBE L ER - WhhES

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors;

a REREENIE MFEEEER

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
A MERARNREETEEREER T ENBERLER

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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8238 | FAKX R (E)) DEERER

D.3.1 |- review and monitor the company’s (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

(cont’d) policies and practices on compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

(&) compliance with legal and Directors;

regulatory requirements; HIET - E REREANEE REFMIRTTRIRA R FM (0
B RERAREYTERERES B)
BEPEMBERER
(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
— develop, review and monitor the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and
code of conduct and compliance B ARARETTFTANBERARREEE RS RIEHOEE
manual (if any) applicable to 5
employees and directors; and
ST B RERESENRESHIR () such other corporate governance duties and functions set out in
TR R AR FM(0E) - & the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board is
responsible.
- review the company’s compliance HINTFRIANEFSEENZFEMEEE QRS K (K81
with the Code and disclosure in the & .J)
Corporate Governance Report.
A RE ST E R ST RIMER
&Eﬁé% B /u#ﬁilﬂﬂ’ﬁ)}i&% °©

D.3.2 | The board should be responsible for C * No corporate governance committee has been established. The
performing the corporate governance Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions. Please
duties set out in the terms of refer to D.3.1 above for details.
reference in D.3.1 or it may delegate Zli AIWER I EEREZES  CEERAMEEESEESEE - F
the responsibility to a committee or A:E28 FX$D31E o
committees.

EEQEASEITD.I I KHESE
HWPEERRE - TASEEHERT
—(EAZEEES -

E COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
HIRR R 088

EA Effective communication
BRUER
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.

EXERAFMERRFSERNEE  LEHRRRRAFAGHEMRRA S HER TSR RS PIR 26 -

E11 For each substantially separate issue at C e Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of
a general meeting, a separate resolution the Company on each substantially separate issue, including the
should be proposed by the chairman election of individual Directors.
of that meeting. The company should BHEERBUMNEE HEARFRREANE FLAERARRRS -
avoid “bundling” resolutions unless they PIEERERES -
are interdependent and linked forming
one significant proposal. Where the
resolutions are “bundled”, the company
should explain the reasons and material
implications in the notice of meeting.

EREARE L @RFFEEEEEER

B EEERIRERER - RIFEE

IREERZ MBI RERE - SRS

P—IAE K - BANAIEESE H@

. 9&.:%%2 cHE L ARER 2

AEEE®HA %iﬁﬁéﬁl&“@%ﬁ&ﬂ’]
BBAYE o
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #([cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2£58 | FAKX #R(E) PEERER
E1.2 |- The chairman of the board C e The 2019 annual general meeting (2019 AGM”) at which the

should attend the annual general
meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, he
should invite another member of
the committee to be available to
answer questions at the annual
general meeting.
EXeIRELERREFRE -
WHFEEZEZES HNEES
REZEGREIMEMEZE S (R
AEEAME)NEFLTE - 58
MZEGXFRARLR EF8F
EEBGES —EEEHEERRE
FRE FEIERM -

The chairman of the independent
board committee (if any) should
also be available to answer
questions at any general meeting
to approve a connected transaction
or any other transaction that
requires independent shareholders’
approval.
EEgRTITNBEYZES(WAE)
B R IR EFE A SLE A TR S8
MR AS FEIERRE  AIRERS
ol {a] L h 78 4 98 37 AR R HE A ) 32
2o

The company’s management
should ensure the external
auditor attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.
N E IR 2 FEMEAR SMIEAZ BRI
FREEAFAE  LEFRAETL
1 REZEMRELEARNE g
ST DA R Az B RD 0 08 7 1 &

Bo

external auditor attended was convened on 26 June 2019. A
general meeting of the Company was also held on the same date
(“General Meeting”) for approving a very substantial transaction in
relation to the disposal of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

ZE-NFEZRRAFAG ([ ZZ-NAFREAFREHEN=
T—AFRAZHRBEET  INERBENIRE HFFE - AATTRRRAE
HETTRERE HEULEREARARFTETHBARTMNETERKR

%5

Details of Directors’ attendance at the 2019 AGM and General
Meeting are set out below:

TREJNEFHFE T NFRRAFRGMBRAG ZFHE

2019 AGM
—E-NEF General

Name of RERAE Meeting
Directors EEHE & REAE
Teo Siong Seng SRANES 1/1 1/1
Chan Kwok Leung ~ BREI#R 1/1 1/1
Teo Tiou Seng SREAE 1/1 1/1
Chung Pui King, BN 1/1 1/1

Rebecca
Tan Chor Kee BRAE 0/1 0/1
Cheng Fu Kwok, ER R 1/1 1/1

David
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2n] 1/1 1/1
Kwa Wee Keng TR 0/0 0/0

(appointed on (R=Z—hE

26 June 2019) ANA=+AH

BEE)

Ho Teck Cheong fAfESE 0/0 0/0

(appointed on (R=ZT—hE

2 October 2019) +A-BHEZE)
Kuan Kim Kin R 1/1 1/1

(retired on (R=F—NF

26 June 2019) SNAZ+NH

RE)

Yang, Victor 5 &8 1/1 1/1

(resigned on (R=F—NF

15 July 2019) +A+HR AT

In 2019, the Chairman of the Board (also served as Chairman of
Nomination Committee), the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the
then Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the Company’s
external auditor attended the 2019 AGM and were available to
answer questions during the meeting.

RIZ—NF EFXF (RERERZESERF) EXEEST
& ERNFMEESEERARRIINEZBMAELEE_S—N
FREEFRE - ARG EOERA -

In 2019, the Chairman of the Board attended the General Meeting
and were available to answer questions during the meeting.

RZT-NF BFEIFBERRAE IR LEERM -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Code Ref.
2540

Code Provisions

SFAIRX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
E3(ch)/
B (el

Corporate Governance Practices
DEERER

E1.3

The company should arrange for the
notice to shareholders to be sent for
annual general meeting at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and
to be sent at least 10 clear business
days for all other general meetings.
MRREFREMS @ AAELHEX
BRTAEZL R HEZERMARRE
KA MetAAEMRRASmE
ABERGRITAZEL R TEEE A%
A -

C

The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2019 AGM of the
Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and the notice for the General Meeting was sent at least 10
clear business days before the meeting.
ARBIBE_ZE-NFREFFRERTHELE_HEZEXHR
%;ﬁ%‘%ﬁEﬁ%%ﬂ&&ﬂi%t@%ﬁﬁﬁi&ﬁﬂ%% HEHEH
A -

The board should establish a
shareholders’ communication policy
and review it on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness.
EEEERIEREBAECE - WEHR
S DAREIR LR ©

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
and made it available on the Company’s website. The policy is
subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
EEHTERRBABCE - WEEHRARRHE - ZBORASE
PEHAR AT ARBIR B AR <

This policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring that the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”), both
individual and institutional, and, in appropriate circumstances, the
investment community at large, are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about
the Company (including its financial performance, strategic goals
and plans, material developments, governance and risk profile), in
order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment community
to engage actively with the Company.

BEECR Pl i B E MR A A RIIRER ([RRER ) - BIEEA R R
R REAEBATEE-RKREAL HFEFRE2E - HA
RBSGEBROALRER (BREAMBKRE HEAEKSE &
RER - EakERER) - —HEEREAIEMGER FITER
N B A EEERRERIRE AT EARR B NEER o

The Company should have a policy
on payment of dividends and should
disclose it in the annual report.

NAEIERT A R B B R I P A B

B

The Board adopted a dividend policy which aims to allow
Shareholders to share the Company’s success whilst preserving
the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth opportunities.
The Board devotes to achieving prudent capital management and
meeting Shareholders’ expectations with the dividend policy.
RABRMREBER - BERRRDZARALLHR - ARER
ARRFREREE D IMMERRAIE RS - EFSHHNBBAK
SEFERFEOERER - WinSBERAHE

Under this policy, the normal dividend payout ratio of the Company
is about 30% of the net profit attributable to Shareholders in any
financial year but no more than 50% thereof unless otherwise
approval by the Board.

IRIBRZIR - AR M) B R 2 4 T AR R A9 ARER P15 )54
FB0R R EZ AT - RIFEF G SITIAE - BRI GBBAR R EG
JFm N 4AFEEY 50 % ©
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2£58 | FAKX R (E)) PEERER
E1.5 e The declaration of dividends, whether as interim and/or final
(cont’d) dividends, is subject to the discretion of the Board in considering the
(&) following factors in each financial year:—

BEMEIR (TmalfERT BRI ARPRE) HEREESNEE
MHFEBBERATEE

— Financial performance and liquidity conditions;
MBRARRBE SRR

— Retained earnings and distributable reserves;

BRI A ] 2 R A

— Company’s debt level to equity ratio and return on equity;
R BE TS B 2 L R AR AR [ R 2R 7K T

— Dividend received from the Company’s associates and
subsidiaries;
KRN T M A B B A FERR RS,

- Expected working capital requirement and capital expenditure;
RS EE TR EERFAX;

— Future expansion, other investment plans and other funding
requirements;

RER - BMREA IR A MESHEI,

— Global economic condition and other internal or external
factors, including any restrictions under the applicable laws and
regulations and the Articles or contractual restrictions as may
apply from time to time; and;

IRBRECEAOR, - M BN EB Sk INER A & (B8 A] AR AR 1538
EVARTEAR R EI2ARIR T B EAR IS E KRS ¢ &

—  Other factors that the Directors deem appropriate.

E=RRAENHEBER -

Final dividend declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of Shareholders at an annual general meeting
and must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The
Board may, without the approval of Shareholders, also declare an
interim dividend if it appears to them that they are justified by the
distributable profits of the Company.

RARPME IR AR S NBTER R EFERE AT BREZER
Rtk ETSHBEFERENHE - ES Q7 ALRSHRERL
o BIRERBRBEARRAIDIANES AP ERE

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.
BEEGH R SEUR o

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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8238 | FAKX B (el DEERER
E.2 Voting by poll
RIEEFARR
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
The Company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
NEIERRIRRAE AR R ETRARNF@IZT o
E.2.1 | The chairman of a meeting should C e Detailed explanation regarding the procedures for demanding poll by
ensure that an explanation is provided Shareholders had been provided at the commencement of the 2019
of the detailed procedures for AGM and General Meeting.
conducting a poll and answer any BRARRERKURZFARANEFNFAREER S —NFR
questions from shareholders on voting HEATKERBEEASHARRE -
by poll.
R FERERES S FRBREREI e At the 2019 AGM and General Meeting, the Chairman of the
WEFFHETRORDFMAEF - WEE meeting put each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way
REBRLER R TR ERERRA o of a poll in accordance with the Company’s Article.
RZZ-—NFERRAFAGIRREAG L KGFRREAR
ERMAA - IRREAFRGBREAZ SERBRETRERR
e Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were
appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at
the 2019 AGM and General Meeting.
$’AETH%%%.:EJ%Z1J@€Z%§(£7%*7 hifﬁﬁﬁ%%ik@&ﬂﬁ
RAEMERE @ UERKEREHER
e All the resolutions put to vote at the Company’s general meetings
were taken by poll.
FIERARBIREAE FIR2 ZDABREFBREFXEITRR
e Poll results were posted on the websites of the Company and Stock
Exchange.
REFRRER OB EHPOR R T B3P, o
F COMPANY SECRETARY
NEMmE

Corporate Governance Principle

ﬂé%%/nﬁﬁw

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

RAMBEIREFTG I RESEAC BREFENEZMEARRRE  UREBREFFHRRELER - ARIWEEE
BRERR/ JERTRAENESSRETATEIERER  TRHEENABEIIREEEE -
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F1.1 The company secretary should be C e Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca ("Ms. Chung”) (a certified public
an employee of the company and accountant), who was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
have day-to-day knowledge of the Company on 10 September 2013, is also an executive Director of
company'’s affairs. the Company. Ms. Chung is currently the Chief Financial Officer of
NAWMEERRATIMER - HAFMHA the Company. The biographical details of Ms. Chung are set out
HBEBERHE - under the section headed “Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior

Management Profile”.
@i+ ([Ea+]) IRt RS- =F LA +HEZE
RARB 2 ARAWE - RINBARRITES < SR TIREEAR
Al ARVBEE BLT 7 ERFBEHN [REBXR EFhS
EEBAG] —H -

e The Company Secretary ensures the Board meetings are conducted
under appropriate procedures.
NEAMERRESSSENEEREF TH#T -

e The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes
and keeps records of substantive matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board and Board Committee meetings.
NEMERBTEESERABRTZE R EMARRAGERT
8 WAcHs FRRNEEFRSCERRRE -

e During 2019, the Company Secretary undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training to update her skills and knowledge.
RZZ—NF » REWEDET TIN5/ NG FEEBIIARAE
Bge A -

F1.2 |The board should approve the C e The selection, appointment or dismissal of the Company Secretary
selection, appointment or dismissal of is approved by the Board.
the company secretary. NEMENEE  ZERREHRESSHE -
NEMENZE - TEXREELCHE
FERE -

F1.3 The company secretary should report C e The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman
to the board chairman and/or the chief whilst all members of the Board have access to the advice of the
executive. Company Secretary.

REWERANEEEEE R RITHHE NEAMEBBEIFERNEESER  MABEEEXEHFEIISAAE
FAMERR o MEZER -
F1.4 All directors should have access to the C e All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the

advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable law,
rules and regulations, are followed.
FrAEESEIRGATMENERNE
B R - ARRRESSIZF KATE
BRUEE - RAIRROIHEFEST -

Company Secretary and legal and professional consultants of the
Company, whenever necessary, to ensure compliance with all
applicable law, rules and regulations, and corporate governance
practices.

PRESVYI2EAENARRNAGIWE REEREXBR (0E
HE)MERRRE - URREEMEBERERE - R KEIA R

FE)
CEEABR -

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA
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Report of The Directors EEF @&

The board of directors (“Board”/”Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management services to its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 52, 21 and 22, respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 114
to 116.

Based on the operating results of the Group, the Board
did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK7 cents per
ordinary share). Subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the Board recommended the payment of a
special dividend of HK13 cents per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil) in respect
of the disposal of subsidiaries during the year 2019. As
the Board did not recommend the payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2019 (six
months ended 30 June 2018: nil), the total dividend for
the year would be HK13 cents per ordinary share (2018:
HK7 cents per ordinary share).

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2020 Annual General Meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 30 June 2020 (“2020
AGM”). For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at 2020 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 24 June 2020 to Tuesday, 30 June
2020, both days inclusive, and no transfer of the shares
of the Company will be effected during such period. In
order to be entitled to attend and vote at 2020 AGM, all
transfers of shares of the Company, duly accompanied
by the completed transfer forms and all relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 23
June 2020. The shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 30
June 2020, the record date of 2020 AGM, will be entitled
to attend and vote at 2020 AGM.

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed special dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 7 July 2020
to Thursday, 9 July 2020, both days inclusive, and no
transfer of the shares of the Company will be effected
during such period. In order for a shareholder of the
Company to qualify for the proposed special dividend, all
transfers of shares of the Company, duly accompanied
by the completed transfer forms and all relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
6 July 2020. Subject to the approval by the Company’s
shareholders at 2020 AGM, the proposed special
dividend is payable on or before Friday, 31 July 2020 to
those shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Thursday, 9 July 2020
(the record date).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of our business and performance

A review of the business of the Company and a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year and the material factors underlying
its results and financial position are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement from pages 8 to 13, Financial
Highlights from pages 4 to 5 and Frequently Asked
Questions from pages 14 to 19 of this Annual Report,
which discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors for purposes of Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). The outlook of the Company’s
business is discussed throughout this Annual Report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and are in
addition to the matters referred to in the Chairman’s
Statement and Frequently Asked Questions of this Annual
Report:

1. Economic Conditions and Market
Competition Risks

The impact of global economic conditions and
market sentiment would directly affect the demand
of dry freight containers of the Group. Although
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”/“China”)
and the United States of America (“US”) signed the
“Phase One” trade agreement on 15 January 2020
relieved trade tensions for the last 18 months,
next stage of negotiations may remain create
uncertainties to the world trade and export from
the PRC.
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The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
(“COVID-19”) started in December 2019 in Wuhan,
provincial capital of Hubei Province in China would
cause significant impact across different industries
and commercial activities globally. China only
resumed limited commercial activities after Lunar
New Year holiday, which largely disrupted normal
trade flows between China and other countries.
This disruption may further affect the market
demand in new dry freight containers.

The industry faces intense competition from
container manufacturing companies concentrate
in the PRC. The competitors may attempt to gain
market share by offering products at prices at or
below those typically offered by the Company.
The Company may be required to reduce prices
when facing competition, which may affect the
Group’s profitabilities and growth potential. The
Group had disposed certain subsidiaries of the
Group in 2019 (the “Disposal”) for reducing the
Group’s dependency on trade-driven market and
focusing on developing higher-margin specialized
containers.

Product Diversification and Market
Expansion Risks

Following the Disposal, the Group put more
resources on developing customized specialised
containers for meeting various demand across
different industries. The level of market acceptance
on the new products and the Group’s capability
in meeting technical requirements set forth the
products would affect the product diversification
and market expansion process. The Group
continues to recruit engineers and technicians from
various sources for strengthening the research
and development team. In addition to self-
development, the Group may cooperate with other
patent owners for entering into unique markets.
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Manpower and Retention Risks

The competition for talents has led to the risk that
the Group is not being able to attract or retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence for meeting
the business objectives of the Group. The Group
will conduct regular reviews of its recruitment and
retention practices, remuneration packages and
succession plan to mitigate the risks. Moreover,
in view of continuing increase in wage rate in
manufacturing industry in China, the Group will
increase the level of automation in production in
order to reduce manpower requirements in the
future and to minimise the labour cost.

Financial Risks

In the course of business activities, the Group is
exposed to a variety of financial risks, including
credit, liquidity, currency and cash flow interest rate
risks.

a. Creditrisk
The Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group and the
Company due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts, if necessary.

Details of the credit risk and impairment
assessment are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants or to timely negotiate
with the lenders if any non-compliance is
expected.

Details of the liquidity risk are set out in note
47 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases, bank
balances and cash and bank borrowings,
which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge against its exposure to
currency risk, however, the management of
the Company manages the risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the currency
rates.

Details of the currency risk are set out
in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow
interest rate risk primarily relates to floating
rate borrowings and variable rate bank
balances. Interest rate risk on bank balances
is considered immaterial due to short
maturity. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
In order to hedge against the interest rate
risk arising from the potential increase in
interest rate in relation to the term loan, the
Company entered into certain interest rate
swap contracts to partially swap the term
loan in floating rate to fixed rate.

The management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

Details of the cash flow interest rate risk
are set out in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(@)

The outbreak of the COVID-19 in the PRC and
other countries since early 2020 could have an
impact on the operations of the Group. The Group
suspended certain of its manufacturing activities
in January 2020 due to mandatory government
quarantine measures putting into effort to control
the spread of the epidemic. The production
resumed lately in mid of February 2020. In
addition, the operations of certain of the Group’s
customers and associates are also affected in
different aspects, which in turn, may affect the
recoverability of Group’s trade receivables that are
subject to ECL assessment and also the carrying
amounts of the Group’s associates. The directors
of the Company are still assessing the financial
impact that the COVID-19 will have on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as at the date
that these financial statements are authorised for
issue, and the actual financial impact, if any, will be
reflected in the Group’s future financial statements.

Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 March 2020. As disclosed in
the said announcement, the Group endeavours to
enter into a commercially feasible agreement with
PIL Group in relation to the repayment of trade
receivables (the “Repayment Plan”) as soon as
reasonably practicable. As at the date hereof, no
definitive agreement in relation to the Repayment
Plan has been entered into and the entering
into and consummation of the transactions
contemplated under such agreement (if any) will
be subject to, among other things, agreement
among relevant creditors of the PIL Group and
compliance with the applicable requirements by the
Company including the announcement and, where
applicable, independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. The definitive agreement in relation to the
Repayment Plan may or may not be entered into
as contemplated or at all and the entering into and
consummation of the transactions contemplated
therein will be subject to condition(s) precedent.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the Company’s environmental policies
and performance as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are published in the separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report which will be available at
the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) not later
than 3 months after the publication of this Annual Report.

Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular,
those have significant impact on the Group. As a listed
company in Hong Kong, the share of the Company is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since
8 July 1993, the Company continuously complies
with the requirements under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange including
the disclosure requirements, corporate governance
code and Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers therein. Under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571), the Company is
required to maintain a register of interests in shares and
short positions and a register of directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged
to the disclosure requirement of inside information. The
Board will monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation
units from time to time.
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The Group believes that employees are the valuable
assets of an enterprise and regards human resources
as its corporate wealth. The Group is committed to
comply with the requirements of the applicable laws
and regulations, such as the Privacy Ordinance,
ordinances against disability, sex, family status and
races discriminations, the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance and the ordinances applicable
to occupational safety so as to safeguard the benefits
and interests of the Group’s employees.

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has endeavoured
to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopted effective
environmental technologies to ensure its operations meet
the standards and ethics in respect of environmental
protection.

To protect the Group’s intellectual property rights, the
Group has registered its domain name and its trademark
have been applied for or registered in various classes in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other relevant jurisdictions and
takes all appropriate actions to enforce its intellectual
property rights.

During the year, the Group has obtained all the approvals,
permits, consents, licences and registrations required for
its business and operations and all of them are in force.
There was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with employees, suppliers
and customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims
at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the
products and services to its customers. During the year,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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Employees as the valuable assets of the Group, the
Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the
market standard. The Group also organised staff-
friendly activities for employees, in order to provide
communication opportunities among staff, which are vital
to promote staff relationship and physical fitness.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 307 to 308 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 54
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2019, calculated under section 297 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to US$179,901,000
(2018: US$123,655,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes
52, 21 and 22, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$119,032,000 (2018: US$119,879,000)
and total interest-bearing debts of US$23,584,000
(2018: US$380,436,000). This represented a gearing
ratio, calculated on the basis of the Group’s total interest-
bearing debts over equity attributable to owners of the
Company, of 0.04 (2018: 0.58). With cash proceed
received after the Disposal, the Group was in net cash as
at 31 December 2019, calculation of a net debt to equity
ratio was not applicable (2018: 0.40).

As the Group incurred loss before taxation due to soft
demand, the calculation of interest coverage ratio of
the Group’s profit before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) to total net interest expense for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was not applicable (2018:
7.6).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US
Dollars (“US$”). However, certain operating expenses
are transacted in other currencies including Hong Kong
dollars (“‘HK$”) and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). To match
with the revenues stream, the Group’s interest-bearing
debts balance as at 31 December 2019 consisted of
97.03% in US$ (2018: 97.32%).

Of the total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December
2019, all bank borrowings are repayable within one year.
The Group’s interest-bearing debts are principally on a
floating rate basis.

In order to hedge against the interest rate risk arising
from the potential increase in interest rate in relation to
the term loan, the Company entered into certain interest
rate swap contracts to partially swap the term loan in
floating rate to fixed rate.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the
Company are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements. No interest was capitalised by the
Group during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following continuing connected

transactions during 2019:

>

Nl

On 14 December 2016, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master services
contract (the “Master Services Contract 2017”) with
Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL”)
(for and on behalf of PIL and its subsidiaries (“PIL
Group”)), for the provision of container depot and
logistics services to PIL Group. In view that PIL is
a connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Master Services Contract 2017 constituted
a connected transaction. As the Master Services
Contract 2017 involves transactions, which occur
on a recurring basis over a period of time, the
transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). The Master
Services Contract 2017 took effect from 1 January
2017 and has expired on 31 December 2019.

As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant
to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of
the proposed annual Caps for the transactions
exceeds 0.1% but all of them are less than 5%.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Services Contract 2017 are subject
to annual reporting, announcement, and annual
review but are exempted from Shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcements published on 14 December 2016
and 23 December 2016 in compliance with the
Listing Rules.
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On 30 October 2017, the Company (for and
on behalf of the Group) entered into a master
purchase contract (the “Master Purchase Contract
2018”) with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group),
for the sale of the Equipment to PIL Group. In view
that PIL is a connected person of the Company,
the entering into the Master Purchase Contract
2018 constituted a connected transaction. As
the Master Purchase Contract 2018 involves
transactions, which occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules in respect of the proposed
annual caps for the transactions exceeds 5%.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Purchase Contract 2018 are subject
to annual reporting, announcement, annual
review and shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. After
obtaining the approval from the shareholders on
12 December 2017, the Master Purchase Contract
2018 took effect from 1 January 2018 and will be
ending on 31 December 2020. Details of these
continuing connected transactions have been
disclosed in the announcement published on 30
October 2017 and the circular dated 17 November
2017 in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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On 29 December 2017, Singamas Container
Holdings (Shanghai) Limited, (“SCSL”) entered
into the renewed tenancy agreement with Pacific
International Lines (China) Ltd. (“PIL China”) for the
renewal of the 2015 Renewed Tenancy Agreement
for a further term of three years commencing from
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, both dates
inclusive (“2018 Renewed Tenancy Agreement”).
SCSL was previously a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company but ceased as a subsidiary following
the very substantial disposal of certain subsidiaries
of the Company completed on 2 August 2019.
The tenancy agreement signed between SCSL
and PIL China was terminated after the Disposal.
As PIL China is a wholly owned subsidiary of
PIL and SCSL (prior to the Disposal) is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, PIL is a
connected person of the Company and PIL China
is an associate of PIL under the Listing Rules.
The 2018 Renewed Tenancy Agreement involves
transactions, which will occur on a recurring basis
over a period of time; accordingly, the transactions
constitute a continuing connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio which shall not
apply) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the annual cap for the
transactions is more than 0.1% but all of them are
less than 5%, under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions therefore constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is only
subject to the annual reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements and is exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 29 December 2017 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions
have been approved by the Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed these transactions and are in the opinion
that:

(@) those continuing connected transactions
between the Group and PIL Group for the
provision of container depot and logistics
services to PIL Group are entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, conducted on normal
commercial terms and entered into in
accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole and on terms
no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The
total amount of such transactions for the
year ended on 31 December 2019 was
US$3,727,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$29,070,000) and did not exceed the
annual cap of US$5,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$42,680,000).

(b)  those continuing connected transactions
between the Group and PIL Group for the
sale of the Equipment to PIL Group are
entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group, conducted on
normal commercial terms and entered into in
accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole and on terms
no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The
total amount of such transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was
US$29,140,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$227,292,000) and did not exceed the
annual cap of US$150,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,170,000,000);
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(c) those continuing connected transactions
between SCSL and PIL China are entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group, conducted on
normal commercial terms and entered into in
accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole and on terms
no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The
total amount of such transactions for the
year ended on 31 December 2019 was
RMB1,410,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$208,000) and did not exceed the
annual cap of RMB 3,396,407 (equivalent to
approximately US$520,124).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the external auditor of
the Company to report the continuing connected
transactions of the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The external auditor has
reported to the Board and confirmed that for the
year 2019 the continuing connected transactions
(i) have received the approval of the Board;
(i) are in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Company; (iii) have been entered into
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and (iv) the continuing
connected transactions in paragraphs (a), (b)
and (c) above have not exceeded the relevant
caps as disclosed in the announcements dated
14 December 2016, 30 October 2017 and 29
December 2017 respectively.
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The Group entered into certain transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2019, some
of which constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Group and were set out in note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report
(“Annual Report 2019”). Including in note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Annual Report
2019 in respect of related party transactions, sales to
immediate holding company, sales to fellow subsidiaries
and rental expense to a fellow subsidiary were the
continuing connected transactions as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms
that it has complied with the requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 25 April 2017, the Company entered into a facility
agreement (the “New Facility Agreement”) with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
as Co-ordinator; The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.,
Hong Kong Branch as mandated lead arrangers and
bookrunners; Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong
Kong Branch, Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited,
Hong Kong Branch, DBS Bank Ltd., United Overseas
Bank Limited and Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
as mandated lead arrangers and Oversea-Chinese
Banking Corporation Limited as lead arranger for a term
of three years for the purpose of (a) first, financing the
repayment of the existing banking facilities entered into
on 24 September 2013 (“Existing Loans”) in full; and
(b) once the Existing Loans have been repaid in full,
financing the capital expenditure of the Group’s container
manufacturing operations. The New Facility Agreement
includes conditions to the effect that Mr. Teo Siong Seng
and his family members shall maintain the management
control of any member of the Group. A breach of the
above conditions will constitute a prepayment event
under the New Facility Agreement. If such prepayment
event occurs, all amounts outstanding under the New
Facility Agreement may become immediately due and
payable. The loan balance under the New Facility
Agreement had been fully repaid on 30 August 2019.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, no asset of the Group (2018:
Nil) was pledged as securities to any third parties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2019, the Company provided guarantees to
banks as securities for credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. The Group does
not provide any guarantee to any third parties and does
not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and has taken appropriate
steps to adopt and comply with the applicable principles
and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
the Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this annual
report, the required standard as set out in the Model
Code.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng
Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca
Mr. Kuan Kim Kin*
(retired on 26 June 2019)
Mr. Kwa Wee Keng*
(appointed on 26 June 2019)
Mr. Tan Chor Kee*
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan*®
Mr. Yang, Victor*
(resigned on 15 July 2019)
Mr. Ho Teck Cheong*
(appointed on 2 October 2019)

# Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”), at each AGM one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an AGM at least once every three years
but shall be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to articles
92 and 92A of the Articles, Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Mr. Chan
Kwok Leung and Mr. Teo Tiou Seng shall retire from office
at the 2020 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Pursuant to article 98 of the Articles, Mr. Kwa Wee Keng
and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong will hold office until the 2020
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for election.

The term of office for non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is for three years
and is subject to retirement and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules
from each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit,
lvan and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong and considered them as
independent.

Report of The Directors &£ & W&

%
REARBEAFHREPILZEEMT -

SRINE A

PREQER ST

SREAE S

IR+

efl e
(RZE—NFARNAZ+HRBRET)

WEESE
(RZE—NFANAZ+HBHEZET)

PREEE S

B (3 S A

EI GRS ot o

SRR E
(R=ZZF—NFEA+ABET)

(GER=Fiaa
(RZE-NFTHAZBEZT)

i’ FFHITEE
HIIFHTTEF

RIEANE ZEBERMAB ([ZRMAR]) 2R
- BERRAFAEL Mﬁ%@iﬂz—
MEFYEWERT HERETAZLS
FRBREAFRE ERE—IX ﬁTﬁAéﬂ
[E#EE - BIBEZERMANFE 02 KRAK - &K
MESEAE  RERCERRBABLERNE
“EFRBRAFAS LRE  UHFEEREBEE
BT

RIFZRMAIEISIE  MEEBLERMEE
S ZAHE T _TFERBEAFARE AL
WHEERER—LIRTAES -

ARRRZIFMTES (BREBIUIFMTES) Z
EHR=F  HREERMRAIZRE - ARKR
REFRG LERRAERET -

ARRRERIE £ A 3.13 (R & 2 5 B
A BlR R A RS A FEBIUE
RE  UMERSTZBIIE

TE-NEFR - BREECERARAA

N
g

89



1 Report of The Directors E=&R&E

90

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company (the “Subsidiaries”)
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this report, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

Current directors of Subsidiaries:
CHAN Kwok Leung
CHENG Chih Hsin
CHU Chee Leong
CHUNG Pui King, Rebecca
DING Zhong Fu

LAI Zhi Yong

LIU Kecheng

PAN Chun Ling
QIAN Ming

SONG Yan Yan

SUN Da Peng

TEO Siong Seng
TEO Tiou Seng

TEO Teng Seng
WANG Ge

Tony WANG

WANG Zhi Qiang
WENG Sheng Qiang
WU Bing Hong

WU Ding Xiang

XU Jin Yong

YIP Ching Han
ZHANG Tian Bao
ZHAQO Pei Cong

Resigned or ceased as directors of Subsidiaries during the
year:

LAM Gar Wing, Debbie

MA Wei Bo Kirby

REN Yu Dong

WANG Wen Zhen

YANG Shao Peng

ZHAQO Bing
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions
of the Directors or chief executive in the shares of the
Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which (a) were required notification
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Director
or chief executive is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company; or which (c)
were required, pursuant to Model Code contained in
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:

(A) Ordinary Shares of the Company
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Mr. Teo Siong Seng (Note 1)  Beneficial Owner 44,045,250 - - 44,045,250 1.82
KINERAE (it 1) ERBAA
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung (Note 2) - Beneficial Owner 500,000 - - 500,000 0.02
FREVRE & (H1it2) ERBAA
Mr. Teo Tiou Seng (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 276,780 - - 276,780 0.01
REABLE (Wit 3) ERBAA
Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca  Beneficial Owner 278,625 - - 278,625 0.01
(Note 4) EafAA
EMmLt (Hit4)
Mr. Tan Chor Kee (Note 5) Spouse Interest - - 6,000 6,000 0.00
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(B)

Notes:

(1) The personal interest of Mr. Teo Siong Seng represents
the interest in 42,377,250 Shares and interest in
1,668,000 underlying Shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “Share Options”.

2) The personal interest of Mr. Chan Kwok Leung
represents the interest in 500,000 underlying Shares in
respect of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are stated in the following section
“Share Options”.

3) The personal interest of Mr. Teo Tiou Seng represents
the interest in 196,780 Shares and interest in 80,000
underlying Shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are
stated in the following section “Share Options”.

4) The personal interest of Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca
represents the interest in 195,291 Shares and interest
in 83,334 underlying Shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of which
are stated in the following section “"Share Options”.

5) Ms. Lee Tew Guan, spouse of Mr. Tan Chor Kee holds
6,000 Shares. Mr. Tan Chor Kee is deemed to be
interested in 6,000 Shares held by Ms. Lee Tew Guan.

All the interests disclosed above represent long
position in the Shares and underlying Shares.

Share Options

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 1 June 2007 (the “Option
Scheme”) are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Option Scheme was in
force for a period of 10 years commencing from
1 June 2007 and was expired on 31 May 2017.
Options complying the provisions of the Listing
Rules which are granted during the duration of
the Option Scheme and remain unexercised
immediately prior to the end of the 10 year period
shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with
their terms of grant within the option period for
which such options are granted, notwithstanding
the expiry of the Option Scheme.
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Movements of the share options under the Option RER - BARER S TaEREZ BN
Scheme during the year are as follows: e
Number of Share Options
BREsR

As at Asat

1 January 31 December

2019 2019
i 1 Exercise
Name/Category ~ #%/88% —Z-hE Granted  Exercised Lapsed =Z-AE  GrantDate Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 247l -B-A R i %% +=R=t-8 RHAH s e
(Note a) HK$
(Wia) BT

Directors EZ

Mr. Teo Siong Seng  SRIMELAE 1,333 - - - 1,333 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
833,333 - - - 833,333 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
833,334 - - - 833,334 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

1,668,000 - - - 1,668,000
Mr. Chan Kwok RERLE 166,606 - - - 166,660 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
Leung 166,667 - - - 166,667 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
166,667 - - - 166,667 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

500,000 - - - 500,000
MrTeoTouSeng  REELAE 40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - - 40,000 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

80,000 - - - 80,000
Ms. Chung PuiKing, &RZ&L 1 - - - 1 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
Rebecca 83,333 - - - 83,333 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

83,334 - - - 83,334
Mr KuanKimKin ~ BSELE 40,000 - - 40,000 - 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
(Note b) (Hizn) 40,000 - - 40,000 - 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - 40,000 - 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

120,000 - - (120000 -
Mr. Yang, Victor BERLE 40,000 - - 40,000 - 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
(Note c) (fitc) 40,000 - - 40,000 - 1/7/2010 1/7/2012-30/6/2020 1.38
40,000 - - 40,000 - 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

120,000 - - (120,000) -

Sub-total e 2,571,334 - S 0000 233133
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Number of Share Options
BRER

As at Asat

1 January 31 December

2019 2019
I S Exercise
Name/Category ~ #%/88% —Z-hF Granted  Exercised lapsed =Z-AE  GrantDate Exercisable Period Price
of Participants 247 -B-R R e %M +=R=t-8 RHAH s e
(Note a) HK$
(Wiita) BT
Employees in A4 84,668 - - - 84,668 1/7/2010 1/7/2011-30/6/2020 1.38
aggregate (Wita) 96,667 - - - 96,667 1712010 117/2012-30/6/2020 138
(Note d) 96,665 - - - 96,665 1/7/2010 1/7/2013-30/6/2020 1.38

Sub-total Nt 278,000 - - - 278,000

Total @t 2,849,334 - - (240,000) 2,609,334

Notes:

(a) The share options with the exercise price of HK$1.38
are vested and exercisable in three tranches on 1 July
2011, 2012 and 2013 respectively and up to 30 June
2020.

(b) Mr. Kuan Kim Kin retired from office at the 2019 annual
general meeting held on 26 June 2019 and did not offer
himself for re-election.

(c) Mr. Yang, Victor resigned as director on 15 July 2019.

(d) Employees are working under employment contracts
that are regarded as "“continuous contracts” for the
purposes of the Employment Ordinance.

At no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its
subsidiaries a party of any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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Save as disclosed above, none of Directors
nor their associates, had any other interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which (a) were required notification
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Director
or chief executive is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b)
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered into the register maintained by the
Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to
the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange
and none of Directors, nor their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, according to the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, and so far as was known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the interests of certain Directors disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above),
had an interest or a short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:
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Percentage of

Total Issued
Number of Ordinary Shares Shares
EERRE H2E
Name Notes Direct Interest Indirect Interest 21T
A Wizt Hizws BEERz ROBIH
Mr. Chang Yun Chung (1) 493,291 993,825,345 41.14
R EE
Pacific International Lines (1) 993,825,345 - 4112
(Private) Limited (“PIL”)
REMBAR AR (TR
PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. (1) - 993,825,345 4112
(“PIL Holdings”)
Y. C. Chang & Sons Private Limited ~ (2) - 993,825,345 4112
Madison Pacific Trust Limited (3) - 993,825,345 41.12
Hyder Ahmad (4) - 438,452,359 18.14
Broad Peak Investment 4) - 438,452,359 18.14
Management Ltd.
Broad Peak Master Fund Il Ltd. 4) 438,452,359 - 18.14
Temasek Holdings (Private) (5) - 496,912,673 20.56
Limited
Wellington Management Group LLP  (6) - 265,974,894 11.00

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019



Notes:

(1)

@)

)

(4)

®)

A total of 993,825,345 Shares are directly held by PIL. PIL is
100% owned by PIL Holdings and Mr. Chang Yun Chung is
interested, in aggregate, in 497,225,882 shares representing
89.69% of the issued share capital of PIL Holdings. Mr. Chang
Yun Chung'’s interest in shares of PIL Holdings comprises a
personal interest in 79,700,882 shares and corporate interests
in 175,500,000 shares through South Pacific International
Holdings Limited, a company in which he holds 2.02% of the
issued share capital and 242,025,000 shares through Y.C.
Chang & Sons Private Limited, a company in which he holds
5.71% of the issued share capital. Messrs. Teo Siong Seng and
Teo Tiou Seng, Directors, both of their interests in shares of
PIL Holdings comprise personal interests in 3,600,000 shares
and 2,400,000 shares respectively and representing 0.65% and
0.43% of the issued share capital of PIL Holdings.

PIL is a wholly owned subsidiary of PIL Holdings in which
Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited holds more than one-third
of interests in PIL Holdings. Accordingly, Y.C. Chang & Sons
Private Limited indirectly controls one-third or more of the
voting rights in the shareholders’ meeting of PIL, in accordance
with SFO, Y.C. Chang & Sons Private Limited is deemed to be
interested in PIL’s interests in the Company’s issued Shares.

Madison Pacific Trust Limited is the security agent of the shares
pledged by PIL in favour of the third party lenders as security.

Broad Peak Master Fund Il Ltd. is the lender of record which
has direct interest on the shares pledged by PIL, Broad
Peak Investment Management Ltd. holds 100% interest in
Broad Peak Master Fund Il Ltd.. Hyder Ahmad is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of Broad Peak Investment Management
Ltd.

Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited is the indirect sole
shareholder of SeaTown Lionfish Pte. Ltd. (“SeaTown”).
SeaTown is the lender of record and has direct interest on the
shares pledged by PIL.

@

3

4

©)
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(6) A total of 245,749,161 Shares and 20,225,733 Shares are
directly held by Wellington Management Singapore Pte. Ltd.
and Wellington Management Company LLP respectively.
Wellington Management Global Holdings, Ltd. holds 100%
equity interests in Wellington Management Singapore Pte. Ltd.
and Wellington Investment Advisors Holdings LLP holds 99.99%
equity interests in Wellington Management Company LLP in
which Wellington Management Group LLP indirectly holds more
than one-third of interests in Wellington Management Global
Holdings, Ltd. and Wellington Investment Advisors Holdings
LLP respectively. Accordingly, Wellington Management Group
LLP indirectly controls one-third or more of the voting rights
in the shareholders’ meeting of Wellington Management
Singapore Pte. Ltd. and Wellington Management Company
LLF in accordance with SFO, Wellington Management Group
LLP is deemed to be interested in Wellington Management
Singapore Pte. Ltd.’s and Wellington Management Company
LLP’s interests in the Company’s issued Shares.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position
in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person
known to the Directors or chief executive, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who, as at
31 December 2019, had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2019, no Directors or proposed
directors had any existing service contract or proposed
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than transactions disclosed in note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements (which were approved
by the independent non-executive Directors and in the
opinion of the Directors were carried out on normal
commercial terms and in ordinary course of the Group’s
business), no material transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its immediate and
ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or an entity connected with a director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has insured and maintained directors’
and officers’ liability insurance throughout the year,
which provides appropriate cover to certain legal actions
brought against its directors and officers. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) when this report prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a)
of the Companies Ordinance.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

TEERRMER

AEEBEEIEEETREIZHERLE
PzantmT

Percentage
BOL
Percentage of purchases attributable to REESAHERFLEESE 15.2%
the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to AEBRAHERMEEERE 48.3%
the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of sales attributable to REESARE PGS X 7.3%
the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of sales attributable to RAEERAREFATIHE X 28.1%

the Group’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 20 to
26 under the “Honorary Chairman, Directors and Senior
Management Profile” section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the
Company is set by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group, including
subsidiaries employed 2,108 (2018: 7,934) full-time
employees; its associates and joint ventures employed
1,064 (2018: 1,237) full-time employees in total. Staff
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
US$98,615,000 (2018: US$193,956,000) for the year.
All full-time salaried employees, except for factory
workers and contract employees, are being paid on a
monthly basis, plus a discretionary performance bonus.
Factory workers are being remunerated based on a
basic wage plus production incentive. Share options are
also being offered to selected grantees of the Group.
The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees
are competitive and employees are awarded on a
performance related basis within the general framework
of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To further
enhance the capability of its human resource, the Group
provides on-the-job training to its employees.
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Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the
Company nor any of its other subsidiaries has established
labour union. The Company and its subsidiaries, however,
are not subject to any collective agreements. The Group
has maintained good relationships with its employees.
None of the Group’s employees is represented by a
labour union.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board

Teo Siong Seng

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report &/ {Z Z AT RS

Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Singamas Container Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 114 to 306, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BARENEE
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AEEEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ETNAREZBEESE

Impairment assessment of trade related amounts due from immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries (the “Trade Balances with Related Companies”)

BEZHERNEREREZRATARERERMNE X RARE

We identified impairment assessment of the Trade
Balances with Related Companies as a key audit
matter due to the significance of such balances to
the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of subjective judgement and estimates in
evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL”) of such
balances at the end of the reporting period.

BPSBAE AR E S ERRBRI AERETSFE
RARZEREUHESEZSMBRARREEZ - I
ERBEMNRTAHEEREIRBNRHEEERE
(TTRHAEEEE D) RS R E 8 #H R fh 5T

As at 31 December 2019, the net carrying amounts of
the Group’s Trade Balances with Related Companies
amounting to approximately US$137,871,000 in
aggregate, which represented approximately 20% of
total assets of the Group.

HEZZ-—NF+ZA=1T—H0 ESEHBAKAF
B S RARFEREFES 477 137,871,000% 7T * 4
EEEBEERTF20% °

B ([ B A ) B 5 1 2R ER%E 1) Rl E RS

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of the Trade Balances with Related
Companies included:

B E R R B SRR EN MEITZREF £
ZEE

° Understanding the key controls on
how the management estimates the
impairment losses on the Trade Balances
with Related Companies;

PR e IR B E st AN R R B S REERE
BREFEEZNERET

° Discussing with the management
to obtain an understanding of the
management basis and method in
estimating the amount of lifetime
ECL for Trade Balances with Related
Companies and the key quantitative and
qualitative information considered by the
management in assessing the credit risk
characteristics of the Related Companies;
and
FREEREN R BREEEHERA
A8 SERBRRBREFELEw AHELE
RBEANFEARANERN T AR ER
JE 7 & 5 B2 BA R X T 0 (5 A I B 45 R P
EZRNFEZENRENER ARk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRESER

AEEEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ETNAREZBEENSIER

Impairment assessment of trade related amounts due from immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries (the “Trade Balances with Related Companies”) (Continued)

EZHBENEREEZRARRERERKEARFIEN (BB AR E S ARG ) BERE(E)

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates
the amount of lifetime ECL individually for each
significant trade balances based on expectation on
cash flows after assessing the credit risk characteristics
of individual debtors taking into account the financial
position and/or historical repayment records of the
Related Companies and forward-looking information
that is reasonably and supportably available to the
management of the Group without undue costs or
effort. The management of the Group also considers
other quantitative and qualitative factors that include
the operating and financial performance, operation
update and other market factors relating to the Related
Companies in determining the loss rates.
HIARE B MR T 4PIEEE - EEEEEEREXR
BIERGEEBEABRELEwEAPEABERELS
B G AR RReRERY ZRHERRAERRE
AR AR MBI R, SBEERCHEUARE
SEEBEETRERSZHASE N TRENATEE
BHESLINGEREBERARSE  EEEEEE
mEEEMECRECRE  BREEBKRAREH
MEBMP RN FHREFMEMHEEER -
MREBKEK o
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o Assessing the reasonableness of
management’s loss allowance estimates
on Trade Balances with Related
Companies by:
FERUTHFEEEEHRBARIES
ERGEERRERRBEATANEIE
:|\$ .

- obtaining an understanding on how
the management evaluates the
operating and financial performance
of the Related Companies as a part
of the credit risk characteristics
assessment;

FEE i ' 3 [ A0 {AT AT Ak BB B X A1 A
LENMMBRER - ARMERERR
AR —3 D

- examining the information used
by the management in the credit
risk characteristics assessment,
through reading the operation
update of the Related Companies
and performing searches in public
domain for other market factors in
relation to the Related Companies
and relevant forward-looking
information; and
BRBEAMARNRBENRE
RERFE N R AR H M mE AR
MAEEEENEREEEEER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FAREFEE®)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
B ET S BN ETTNAEEZBRETSEE

Impairment assessment of trade related amounts due from immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries (the “Trade Balances with Related Companies”) (Continued)

EZHBENEREEZRARRERERKEARFIEN (BB AR E 5 ARG ) BERE(E)

As disclosed in note 47(b) to the consolidated - evaluating whether the loss rates
financial statements, the Group recognised an are determined based on credit risk
amount of US$8,142,000 of impairment loss of the characteristics assessment of the
Trade Balances with Related Companies for the year Related Companies.
and the Group’s impairment loss on Trade Balances STfhiB e KA DIEE R A RS
with Related Companies as at 31 December 2019 B ERSEmRE

amounted to approximately US$9,551,000.

WA E R BHERMT470) IR EEEARFEY
BN B E S LR ERRBEIRKR8,142,000%
T BEE-E-NFE+-_A=+—Hit  E£B8H
B N A B 5 REREE 2 R E 18 K 4 519,551,000

7TE o
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
R ] BN ESNAEEZRRENSIE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the
manufacturing segment

BRFGES EHERAYE - BBERKRBNEREEE ZRER G

We identified the impairment assessment of property, Our procedures in relation to the impairment
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating assessment on property, plant and equipment
to the manufacturing segment as a key audit matter and right-of-use assets relating to the
due to the involvement of significant judgements and  manufacturing segment included:

estimates in determining the recoverable amounts of  F{FIpt BiRsE S A EREY) 5 - 128 MR E e
the respective cash-generating units (‘CGUs”) to which & E 7 B EFERITZEFZE8HE ¢
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

relating to the manufacturing segment have been e Obtaining an understanding of the

allocated. management’s process and basis

B RS S EBEAA YR - K RREBNE AR adopted in preparing the value in use

BEZRENGHEAERETSE  RERERTE calculations of the CGUSs, including key

DERELEDEEBNYE B NRENEREER inputs;

ERBRIGR € BAL ([ FEIR £ 847 |) ATl E & 5 ERREREGTERINGE S EUERAEER
s RTERHEMGE - HmIE R ER - BFEEEHBAE

. “E-NFFR - BREECERRAA 107



/ Independent Auditor’s Report 371 Eiff &

108

AEEEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B ETNAREZBEENSIER

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRESER

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the

manufacturing segment (Continued)

EEGEDMERYE MBRRENERREE ZRENML(E)

In view of the financial performance of certain CGUs
of the manufacturing segment during the year, the
management of the Group performed impairment
assessment on the relevant CGUs which contain
certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets by preparing value in use calculations.
As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the value in use calculations require the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGUs, based on key inputs, such as the
expected selling prices, budgeted sales volume, gross
profit margin, growth rate, and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value.
ERNAFERED X LRNAE ELNM B R
B BEEEEEENCERAEEYUEEEEYE - #aE
RENMEAEEENRNA B ET T RER
fih o MR E M WMERMT4PARE  FREBEHE
FEXEEEERFTERAE(NEHHEEER BE
HE - EME  EREXURBFTEREGEANGHED
RO ) (hETREUR & B EE R KRR ER R °
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Comparing the expected selling prices,
budgeted sales volume and gross
profit margin used against historical
performance, recent sales transactions
and the management’s budget;
TRERHEER MEHEREN KR
TEE THHEERXHIREREREET
PLER

Evaluating the reasonableness of the
growth rate applied by the management
of the Group, by referring to the industry
information and discussing with the
management of the Group on revenue
growth strategies in respect of the CGUs;
RAZEZTERENNEEEEHMRNE S
BRI MEBRAERERETA R - A
EEEEREERANERXELSIE

Working with our internal valuation expert
in assessing the appropriateness of the
discount rate applied by the management
of the Group;

EEMHABEEERAE  FEEEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

REEITEER

AEEEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BFNETNEEZBEETEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the

manufacturing segment (Continued)

BB

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the
manufacturing segment for which the management has
performed impairment assessment as at 31 December
2019 are US$48,011,000 and US$6,873,000
respectively. No impairment losses in respect of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
have been recognised by the Group during the year.

B EMERERMTATEE  BE-F—LF
+ A=+ HEBECETREFHNRED T
HEYE “RERLBENEAEEERAREES A
48,011,000 7T . 6,873,000% T - EEB A F[E K
EREEYE  MREERREBENEAEEEETRER

RHER ©

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the

MARYE - MBERRENEAREE ZRENG (EF)

Comparing the assumptions adopted
in the prior year’s management budget
with actual results for the current year,
investigating significant variances
identified and considering the impact
on the current year’s impairment
assessments; and
tt;*?tiﬁ*éﬁr‘%ﬁi I RAREEER
CHEBRINERBLETHEEEZR
Efﬁi&ﬂﬁ.ﬂé%%% AR

Evaluating the potential impact on the
value in use calculations of the CGUs
based on the reasonably possible
changes of the budgeted sales volume,
growth rate and discount rate applied by
the management of the Group.

BESEEEEREEEANEREHE  BK
?ﬂ%ﬁ?zA@T%ﬁm&ﬁﬁﬁ%m

ReBUFERABEFENEERE -

N 1 1|=| l%\

BERARESHRYREMERAR - HBEE8%
TERFHRANEES - BETEREGEMHHRER

Independent Auditor’s Report EI%%E@&%\

other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

K BRAPIHAZ AR

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements ﬁTFﬁ‘”fﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%i&%%%ﬁﬂﬁT\?&ﬁ%ﬁ@%
does not cover the other information and we do not RPN ZEEMER RIS
2 ok 2

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. %EM A ©
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OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

BB & R A M R R RIERY
B5E
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Lee Wing Cheong,
Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

D\/

/\

IN=

H b % e

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —FE—NFE+ _-A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
“E-hE —N\F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
llogz3 TER FTEx
Revenue EEH 5] 712,209 1,807,819
Other income HA 7 5,049 2,902
Changes in inventories of finished goods &A% i M FE &L T &Y
and work in progress FEE (10,469) (21,483)
Raw materials and consumables used R K KEFEMR S H (545,580) |  (1,377,444)
Staff costs EEMA (98,615) (193,956)
Depreciation and amortisation expense ~ #T& K4 (29,434) (34,542)
Allowance for credit losses, MErEE 2 EREX
net of reversal R 8 (7,961) (924)
Exchange (loss) gain P& 5 (B518) s (2,282) 4,452
Other expenses H & A (118,877) (151,793)
Finance costs HEER 9 (14,515) (18,549)
Investment income BEWA 10 9,629 7515
Fair value (loss) gain on eI AL
derivative financial instruments NAEE(BE) ke 41 (382) 47
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR e 45 7,771 65,604
Share of results of associates JEREE N R 2 ER (829) (2,512)
Share of results of joint ventures EIEEBRE &M 127 37
(Loss) profit before taxation BREEAT (B518) B F 11 (94,159) 87,173
Income tax expense SRR S 14 (16,638) (13,791)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BB =7 (110,797) 73,382 .
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HIFFZ

2019 2018
—E-hE —NE
US$’000 US$'000
TER T=r
Other comprehensive income Hit2EK s
Items that will not be reclassified to FE#E#H 7 HZ B4
profit or loss: FE :
Fair value gain (loss) on equity instrument 1R AR BET A
at fair value through other PEKR ERTAZ
comprehensive income NABEERE (EB18) 1,515 (3,052)
Gain on revaluation of prepaid lease RERREMERER
payments and property, plant and BRNEERBERYE
equipment upon transfer to Hees KR Ea
investment properties - 16,297
Deferred tax liability on recognition of RERREMERER
revaluation of prepaid lease payments ~ EfFEMNEEZIER
and property, plant and equipment M - s KRG
upon transfer to investment properties ~ EA£REIEHBEE - (4,783)
Items that may be reclassified BETHEREN T HEZ
subsequently to profit or loss: BmpEE -
Exchange differences arising on MEINEREERE
translation (2,023) (3,300)
Release of exchange translation reserve  HE—SE L EERZ
upon disposal of a joint venture SNEHT E 1,467 -
Other comprehensive income FRHEMZEKG
for the year 959 5,162
Total comprehensive (expense) FREE(ZH) REEE
income for the year (109,838) 78,544
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income #3418 R H M2 EK R
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F— N F+=-A=1+—HIFE
2019 2018
—E-NEF “T-N\F
Note US$’000 US$'000
iz FExn FET
(Loss) profit for the year ~ ANFEFE(L (E1E) BF
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AAEIRE (110,230) 72,252
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR AR R M2 (567) 1,130
(110,797) 73,382
Total comprehensive PEE2E () 85 -
(expense) income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company Z/NEI (109,245) 77,660
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR R i 2 (593) 884
(109,838) 78,544
(Loss) earnings per share &k (&#8) 2|
Basic BN 16 |US(4.56) cents %1l | US2.99 cents il
Diluted g 16 |US(4.56) cents 1l | US2.99 cents 1Ll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

4= AR

sre AR

As at 31 December 2019 R —FE—NFE+—A=+—H

2019 2018
- Skl T )\F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hizz TEn T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - H2R RS 17 84,200 362,708
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 43,986 -
Investment properties "EYHE 19 18,504 18,068
Goodwill Bl 20 - 3,589
Interests in associates RN W - e 21 43,782 44,509
Interests in joint ventures REBRE R 22 7,355 21,671
Equity instrument at fair value through &2 f2 BEH A EA
other comprehensive income FHRE EmTH 23 18,997 17,482
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmITA 41 - 1,061
Prepaid lease payments FEMERIE 24 - 88,415
Other receivables H b FENCRIE 28 29,090 -
Deposits for non-current assets EREBEEZLS 25 775 19,077
Amount due from immediate holding U & &% A% A B 7118
company 29 105,602 -
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries J&U% [ 2B A A 30 32,269 —~
Amounts due from associates JrE it Bt & R A FRIB 32 13,003 —
397,563 576,580
Current assets RBEE
Inventories A= 26 76,136 222,039
Trade receivables JEHER TR 27 33,350 191,069
Prepayments and other receivables  Fafst & E b fE U 7018 28 38,152 128,076
Amount due from immediate holding FEUW B #EIA FIFUE
company. 29 - 108,234
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries &Y [F Z B E A FFIA 30 - 33,325
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW & EERIA 31 - 2
Amounts due from associates JE Wi 2 R B FRIE 32 8,421 18,538
Derivative financial instruments PTHESmTA 41 41 —
Tax recoverable QR E P 717 694
Prepaid lease payments FENHERIE 24 - 1,547
Bank balances and cash RITEEBRNIR S 33 119,032 119,879
275,849 823,403
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/ Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %34 B &k 3&
As at 31 December 2019 R=—F— N F+—-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-AF eIt
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Wizt FEx FET
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FETER X 34 23,240 122,264
Bills payable ENEE 35 1,608 80,216
Lease liabilities HERE 36 2,270 -
Accruals and other payables FEFtER RAMERERRK 37 22,490 60,178
Advances from customers TEUBR TR 38 18,259 43,114
Amount due to immediate holding N B &1L A B ZKIE
company 29 103 -
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary BN —RERXWEBARFKE 30 14 =
Amounts due to associates JE (Tt & A R kIR 39 265 63
Amounts due to joint ventures JERTE B HERIE 39 76 9
Tax payable eI IR 11,112 5,137
Bank borrowings RITIEK 40 23,584 169,796
103,021 480,777
Net current assets REEEFE 172,828 342,626
Total assets less current liabilities EEZLLERRE & & 570,391 919,206
Capital and reserves BEXK#E
Share capital [N 42 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits 25 A 216,655 327,270
Other reserves H A 41,006 61,278
Equity attributable to owners AR FIRRIEIL =
of the Company 525,810 656,697
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AR R R A 36,897 39,082
Total equity S 562,707 695,779
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %74 &t ﬂ‘%ﬂﬁﬁi’%\
As at 31 December 2019 R =—ZFE—NF+—-A=+—H

2019 2018
b LbE:l T )\F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hiat TER T=r
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank borrowings RITER 40 - 210,640
Lease liabilities HEBE 36 1,196 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIRAE 44 6,488 12,787
7,684 223,427
570,391 919,206
The consolidated financial statements on pages 114 to #HRFE 114 BEEF 306 B 2 iR 6 B WMELE
306 were approved and authorised for issue by the board ~£& B/\\\ZD—?\:%?EEH TN B IR REED
of directors on 26 March 2020 and are signed on its & ' WH FNIIESREKESE
behalf by :
Teo Siong Seng RIAE Teo Tiou Seng REAE
Director % Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

H= N/
/ N Il\EIII\
/\\/T\ T Eb i.%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —

—NFTZA=

+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARRELR.
Exchange Property  Investment Non-
translation revaluation  revaluation controlling
Share reserve General Development reserve reserve Share option Other Accumulated interests
capital  NEHE reserve reserve NEE  REEf reserve reserve profits  Sub-total  FERRR Total
B& B -REF  RERE  HERR G BRERE  HEEE  2HEH ] i a%
US$1000 US$1000 US$1000 US$1000 US$1000 US$1000 US$1000 US$1000 US$1000 US$1000 US§'000 US§'000
= = Txn S i S Tin e S i i i
(Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 1)
Wiz (W) (i)
At1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-A 268,149 1,326 39,039 8503 1,361 13,926 U7 4,364) 268,821 587,108 46,39 633,502
Profit for the year REFEF - - - - - - - - 72,25 72,25 1,180 73,382
Fair value loss on equity ERAEETAL
instrument at fair value through 2 & ZERT &
other comprehensiveincome 224 EEFE - - - - - (3,052) - - - (3,052) - (3,052)
Adjustment upon transfer of KEEENSEANE
previously sefi-occupied Z%&’ CUEPA 3
propertes to investment ik
properties, net of tax effect - - - - 11,514 - - - - 11,514 - 11514
Exchange differences arisingon ~ ESNEfEZE
fransaton ) - - - - - - - B o (3300
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ AFE2AMGEE
income for the year - (3,054) - - 11,51 (8,052) - - 72,252 77,660 884 78,544
Share option forfeited BRERRY - - - - - - ¢] - 8 - - -
Share option lapsed BREXY = - - - - - 67) - 57 - - -
Acquistion of additional interest ~ WE—HIB
i asubsiday % - - 82 - - - - g8 288 (108 (&N (B0
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—H - - 0,797) - - - - 6,754 3043 - - -
Share of reserves of an associate  [EBE LR 258 - - - - - - - 719 - 719 - 719
Dividend paid to non-controlling & ZEERERER RS
Interests - - - - - - - - - - 876) 876)
Dividend paid to owners IHFRARERE
of the Gompany - - - - - - - - (7,702 (7,702 - (7,702
Transfer from accumulated profits &7 5 Z5titA| - - 2,007 4 - - - - (2,047) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\E
+-A=1-A 268,149 (1,728) 32,131 8543 12,875 10874 282 (1,699) 321,210 656,697 39,082 695,779
Loss for the year KEEER - 5 5 - - - - - (02 (110230) B (10797
Fair value gain on equity B EEFAL
instrument at fair value through 2 2R T A
other comprehensive income ZM{“ e - - - - - 1515 - - - 1515 - 1515
Releass of exchange transiaion &~ ERERERZ
reserve upon disposal of a MNENERE
foint venture - 1,467 - - - - - - - 1,467 - 1,467
Exchange differences arsngon 8 EFE£E
fransaton S (e - - - - - - S e R
Total comprehensive (xpense) ~ AEERE (%) /s
income for te year g - 530 - - - 1515 - - (020 (109245) 593 (109,838
Share option forfeted BiRERIN - - - - - - (23) - 23 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (19.854) 2,156) (1,361) - - 1,047 2,124 - - -
Disposal of a joint venture HE-RELE - - 12 - - - - - - 12 - 12
Forfeiture of dividend previously  RRBERRE
declared - - - - - - - - - - 268 268
Dividend paid to non-controling B FEERRRERRE
interests - - - - - - - - - - (1,860) (1,860)
Dividend paid to owners TRALARERE
of the Company - - - - - - - - (21,654) (21,654) - (21,654)
Transfer from accumulated profits &8 R5taF| - - 715 163 - - - - 679) - - -
At 31 December 2019 R=B-hE
tZA=1-A 268,149 (2,258) 13,004 6,550 11,514 12,389 259 (452) 216,655 525,810 36,807 562,707
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Notes:

(1)

@)

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity #:& s EE)R
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —F— L F+=H=4+—HIFE

Other reserve included the difference between consideration
and book value attributable of the related net assets arose
when acquiring additional shares of subsidiaries.

In March 2018, the Group acquired 9% equity interest in Hui
Zhou Pacific Container Co. Ltd. with consideration amounted
to US$8,408,000. The increase in equity interest was an equity
transaction. Difference between the proportion of ownership
equity interests held by the non-controlling interests before
and after the capital injection with amounted to US$4,808,000
was debited to the other reserve. Subsequently, the aggregate
amount of other reserve, amounting to US$6,754,000 was
transferred to accumulated profits upon the disposal of the
entire equity interest in Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co. Ltd. in
December 2018.

In August 2019, the Group disposed entire equity interests
of certain subsidiaries with details as set out in note 45(a)
and other reserve related to the subsidiaries disposal of was
transferred to accumulated profits upon the disposal.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) (other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)
applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, these entities have
to provide for the PRC statutory reserves before declaring
dividends to their shareholders as approved by the board of
directors. The reserves, which include general reserve and
development reserve, are not distributable until the end of
the operation periods of the respective entities, at which time
any remaining balance of the reserves can be distributed to
shareholders upon liquidation of the subsidiaries. The general
reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses of the
entities. The general reserve and development reserve can
be used to increase capital upon approval from the PRC’s
relevant authority. The distributable profits of the subsidiaries
are determined based on their accumulated profits calculated in
accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations.

(1)

@

E 1 F 1 E I AIE T IE 2 TR SN R 1 5 i 2 (B 42
1B F B E R AR (B (8 < R 247

REZF—/NF=F  KEELAES408000%
L — BRI FEEERA A9 % RHE -
AR RIEIZ I BIRIER 5 o JF B HI 17 FEFERIRF
W 155 1 BT B 121 2 I )2 £ 4,808,000 % T
FIAERMGEE - B RZF—\F+-AHE
BIA FEBREGRAAIZERER - M7 ER
56,754,000 7T B 1% R 515 F

RZFB-—NFNA FEELEETHERFZ
ZEBRIE - F IR 45 (a) - TTEEL] EHTE
R EIE R B EEE R ERFEREE R w T

WRIFEAR AL R EALRHFIE ([F )
(BE - BPIR GBS ZHE 2 7]z F B 166
ED  WER AR EE S EIREREFHE
TR B a2 E R © 1T B — R R #
REEEEZEA A2 EEFREREIGT A2
IR ° TEZZHTE L ADEARRT » £F T2 [# R LR
BARIE « — R A IEADBZ 5 2 A2 Rt
BB o —RE1ER BER B EAST B H B
VR AT IR © KT 2 7.2 AT R EEFE TS
WRIZH B &5 TR R 3 E R T i Vet B i e

=

iE °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,/T\/\Eﬁdi//iliiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &= — &

—NFTZA=1—HIFE

2019
—E-hE

US$000
TER

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for :
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on property, plant and
equipment written off
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Investment income
Interest expense

Fair value loss (gain) on derivative

financial instruments

Fair value gain on investment
properties

Loss on right-of-use assets
written off

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of a joint venture

Allowance for credit losses,
net of reversal
— trade receivables

— trade related amount due from
immediate holding company

— trade related amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries

— amounts due from associates

— other receivables

Notes
M
EETE
BrART (B8 & A
TR -

WE  BERRBINE

HEME -~ WK
R BE
AEIHIR - B R
R B8

i N ol =
IEEERR T
B THE SR i

EREEENE
BREBA

MBS
TTHEEMTIAEZ AR
BEEE (W)
BREMERZ AR EBERE

AR ETHER

HEMBARIZHKE  45(@)
HE—EBREZEHE 22
Mk B2 ERER
i
- FEYERTK
- B EZIERR A A
E%*HF%W\
- ERAIRME A
2 S MEEsIA
- RN A A
2 A
- HAb Y GRIE

(94,159)

24,981
714
8,549

829
(127)

4,453
(9,629)
14,144
382
(436)
8,694
(7,771)
1,210
(290)
6,238

1,904

98
11

2018
—WF
Us$'000
T

87,173

32,159
113
443

2,512
(37)

2,383

(7,515)
18,025

(65,604)

381
1,072
(625)

96
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows i?éﬁéﬁ%i‘%\
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B2 —F— L F+=H=4+—HIFE .

2019 2018
“E-NF EIiNGE
US$’000 US$'000
TER T
Operating cash flows before EELESBHAZ
movements in working capital EEHEERE (40,205) 70,529
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE(gm) s (10,665) 30,801
Decrease in trade receivables JE W BR FOR 52,104 121,420
Decrease in prepayments and TEf K EAth FE UL
other receivables FOER 10,714 50,203
Decrease (increase) in amount due ~ FEUREHZIZAY A A
from immediate holding company ~ ZRIEE 2> (340) 339 (107,406)
Decrease in amounts due from e [R] [t A R
fellow subsidiaries IR 359 65,226
Decrease in trade payables FETERFOR (10,089) (134,083)
Decrease in bills payable ANEZ:E Vs (25,189) (126,038)
Increase (decrease) in accruals FEETE M KA M RER
and other payables ARFIE N O ) 39,298 (6,453)
(Decrease) increase in advances TEURER X OBt ) 1 11
from customers (24,855) 15,172
Cash used in operations EEMERD (8,189) (20,629)
Interest paid ERFLE (14,470) (17,938)
Income tax paid ERAPR1EH (11,762) (14,375)
Net cash used in operating EETHFERSTH
activities (34,421) (52,942)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z —F— N F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
TE-LE it
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hiat TEx T=r
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETE
Purchase of property, plant and BEME MR RERE
equipment (25,805) (28,237)
Deposits paid for non-current assets 2T IEREIE EL S (6,583) (3,988)
Proceed on disposal of a joint venture H&E—& &R EFTE 7,015 —
Investment in associates REREE A T] 21 (2,144) (4,072)
Acquisition of an associate g — B s A A 21 - (603)
Proceeds on disposal of property, LEME - SRk
plant and equipment RAEFTZ 6,212 4,240
Dividends received from associates B UWE#& N &) &
and joint ventures BETFERE 1,089 875
Dividend received from unlisted BUIE L TRESEERE
equity investment 1,872 956
Interest received 2 U F 8 1,337 2,726
Cash inflow arising from disposal of H&EHEBAFZ
subsidiaries, net of retrenchment WEMA - HBREE
cost and other expenses FREA 2 ERER
attributable to the disposal R E A 32 H 45 364,706 32,092
Advances to associates & THE A RFIA (2,274) (582)
Advances to joint ventures BETEERERE - (1)
Net cash from investing RETHFE
activities ReFsE 345,425 3,406

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZﬁAiﬁ.ﬂillhii‘%\

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &2 —F—NF+_-H=+—HIFFZ

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
US$’000 USs$'000
TR T=r
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B EE
New bank loans RITIHER 207,982 233,155
Repayment of bank loans EERITERX (494,976) (280,479)
Dividends paid to non-controlling [SERNE =24
interests MR R AR (1,860) (876)
Dividends paid to owners of XA ARRAIRERARE
the Company (21,654) (7,702)
Repayment of lease liabilities ERHEAR (2,257) -
Acquisition of additional interest in Y& —M B A RIEEIMERS
a subsidiary - (8,408)
Advance from immediate holding BABRZEERARIFIA
company 654 363
Repayment to immediate holding BEAEEN IH
company. (551) (878)
Advance from a fellow subsidiary e A—RRM B FIFIE 53 -
Repayment to a fellow subsidiary EiE—RZMIBARIRIA (39) -
Advances from associates [EPAN G YNGIFSE] 1,528 651
Repayments to associates [ER NI O] (1,308) 673)
Advances from joint ventures 1ﬁ)\/\§¢%m 106 94
Repayments to joint ventures BESEDNERE (39) (94)
Cash settlement received from WESTE SR T A
derivative financial instruments ReEHE 638 -
Net cash used in financing R ESE B FTAE
activities BT (311,723) (64,347)
NET DECREASE INCASHAND RE&RERBEEZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA ERE (719) (113,883)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HzB &
AT 1 JANUARY FERRE 119,879 234,774
Effect of foreign exchange R o2
rate changes (128) (1,012)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=HA=+—HZ
AT 31 DECEMBER ReREEARE 119,032 119,879
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 KEREBE£EH :
REPRESENTED BY:
. Bank balances and cash RITEHER KRS 119,032 119,879
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GENERAL

Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
is PIL Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“PIL Holdings”) and its
immediate holding company is Pacific International
Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL”). Both companies are
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The
addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section of corporate information of the annual
report. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in United States dollars (‘US$”), which is
also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the businesses of
manufacturing of containers and other related
products and providing logistics services.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs
that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial position and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
the consolidated financial statements.

R E REIERT Z
B E £
([EFEMBHRELER D)

RAFERFATHEHREE
R 2 EHRMBHREER

AEBERAFEAERERANATHES

SEFEARRN 2 2R MEEFTNEE
FIms R 2R -

BRI RS HE

F165%
B (BRI BRE FEHRIE L
#EZE59) TR
- REE 235
BB REER AEERERBEN
EIRMIERT REIE U
BAQIEAE195%  FrEIBIE - R
MIEE] B8
EESIERIE 28R RBEARRAE
igfcH] ¥R
BAMBEREER #2015 FE 20174
MIEE] BB BT R

EEAMERLE

B NaLoN - RER BRI MEERT
MEBMBREEI GG HAEER
FERARFEZHBHRRRRR K,
ARG HPBERRPABWEENE

By 488
j(/?;a °
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs
that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded
HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17”), and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
1 January 2019, the Group applies the definition
of a lease in accordance with the requirements set
out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
at amounts equal to the related lease liabilities
by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening accumulated profits and
comparative information has not been restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs
that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective
approach under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group
applied the following practical expedients to leases
previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17, on lease by lease basis, to the extent
relevant to the respective lease contracts:

relied on the assessment of whether
leases are onerous by applying HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets as an alternative of
impairment review;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with a similar remaining terms for
similar class of underlying assets in similar
economic environment. Specifically, discount
rate for certain leases of leasehold land and
buildings in the PRC and Hong Kong was
determined on a portfolio basis; and

used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial application
in determining the lease term for the Group’s
leases with extension and termination
options.

RN E I RBIERT Z
ERMBEREEL
([EEMBHREEA ] E)

RAFERFATHEHREE
R ZERMBREERN 2

FEREMBHREENEI6RER
(&)

TERARBAN (&)
REEHERIER BV REELE16
SRR EEBWER - NREBE A
REESSTENEITROB/EE
MEMHEREEEEN D RIEENE
ERKHERALATRATEREE

ERAB S ERIE 37 A A
AR ERXAEEERBER
BOERITE  UHEHERS
BEEIHE

i RERERBHFECAEEE
R HRRR AR B IR AN

i.  HREELERSETAEEERHE
BEENEEFRSERNHEER
AEAE—NRX - LERRT
P B & B SR & £ i R s
MR ERIR KR AR HEE
TR
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2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2 HNEHEEERZ
AMENDMENTS TO HONG EEMBFHREEL
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([EFEHBHREER D)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs RAFEBEFRHITHEHREE
that are mandatorily effective for the R ZERMFHREED &)
current year (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EEMBRELENE16RAET

(&)

As a lessee (Continued) ER&EAN(E)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases RIERERM D BERKEHENHERR
previously classified as operating leases, the N AEERaXEABRHERAEHAE
Group has applied incremental borrowing rates SEERBNFIEETAER - 2 EAAIN
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial REFFTIGE R E R 5% °

application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied is 5%.

At 1 January
2019
R=Z—N%F
—HB—H
US$’000
FErx
Operating lease commitments RZE—-N\FE+—A=+—H
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 Fiifi 58 2 48 & FH 4 A 4,739
Add: Early termination options mn: SEMERTSITEIRA
reasonably certain not to be IR RS
exercised 5,529
Less: Recognition exemption R EREE - RIS EHR
— leases with remaining lease B-ZET-—hF—HA—H
term within 12 months from TEAARZEE
1 January 2019 (491)
Less: Discount at incremental S 0 DAFF ISR SRR SR AT IR
borrowing rates (675)
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant LAAERE#T1E (& X AR 3730 ~
incremental borrowing rates HEAE 9,102
Analysed as: DA
Current mENER D 3,429
Non-current JEMBNEE D 5,673
9,102
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁi‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs
that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1
January 2019 comprises the following:

RN E I RBIERT Z
ERMBEREEL
([EEMBHREEA ] E)

RAFERFATHEHREE
R ZERMBREERN 2

FRMBREENE16RER
(&)

ERRFN (4)
ERAEEEZRAER -2—NEF— A
—ARETHIEE

Right-of-use
assets
ERAEEE
Note US$’000
HiaE FTEr
Right-of-use assets relating to RIERE BN BHREERFE 1657
operating leases recognised upon & IEREL S ERE 2
application of HKFRS 16 EREEE
9,102
Reclassified from prepaid lease BIENEEREBENSE
payments a 89,962
99,064
By class: =R
Leasehold land and buildings TE i R 99,064
Note: Hfat -
&l Upfront payments for leasehold land and buildings in a R BT & -4 R SR 2 FANT AR =

the PRC were classified as prepaid lease payments
as at 31 December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the current and non-current portion of prepaid
lease payments amounting to US$1,547,000 and
US$88,415,000 respectively were reclassified to right-
of-use assets.

F-NFTZA=+—ASEBEANEE
HE o KB BB & ERE 165
% - BN HES BB EIF B 7725
431,647,000 7T K 88,415,000 7T * It
BT EAREE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs
that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 16, the Group is not required to make any
adjustment on transition for leases in which the
Group is a lessor but account for these leases in
accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial
application and comparative information has not
been restated.

(@) Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease
contracts entered into but commence after
the date of initial application relating to the
same underlying assets under existing lease
contracts are accounted as if the existing
leases are modified as at 1 January 2019.
The application has had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. However,
effective 1 January 2019, lease payments
relating to the revised lease term after
modification are recognised as income on
straight-line basis over the extended lease
term.

(b) Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group has
applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers to allocate consideration in
the contract to each lease and non-lease
components.

The change in accounting policies in which the
Group is a lessor upon application of HKFRS 16
has had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current
year.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs
that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessor (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 January 2019. Line items

2 HEMEHREZERZ
ERMBEREEL
([EEMBHREEA ] E)

RAFERFATHEHREE
R ZERMBREERN 2

FEREMBHREENEI6RER
(&)

ERHBANGE)
R-T—NF—A—-BHREMEINR
REDNSRIEHUATRHE - HERBHE

TESEYEYIER -

that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 2019
Al R=ZB—N%F
R=Z2—N\&F —B—BRiE
+=A=+—H EBUBRE
|EM  Adjustments  ERIFE 165
REEE ik WAREEE
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
TErx FTErx TEx
Non-current assets FREBEE
Prepaid lease payments ~ FBSFAE 1A 88,415 (88,415) -
Right-of-use assets ERERE - 99,064 99,064
Current assets REEE
Prepaid lease payments ~ JBfFE A 1,547 (1,547) -
Current liabilities REBAE
Lease liabilities MEAaE - (3,429) (3,429)
Non-current liabilities  JERBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE - (5,673) (5,673)
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating WiiF . BEE—F-—NFT-A=1—HILFE

activities under indirect method for the year ended

KB ER AL E B B 2 B T

31 December 2019, movements in working capital 5 BEELHIEEIRE L XATRER

have been computed based on opening consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January 2019 as

disclosed above.
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2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2020

In addition to the above new and amendments
to HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the
definition of material by including additional
guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgments. In particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to
omitting or misstating the information;

° replace threshold for materiality influencing
users from “could influence” to “could
reasonably be expected to influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users”
rather than simply referring to “users” which
was considered too broad when deciding
what information to disclose in the financial
statements.

The amendments also align the definition across
all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for
the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January
2020. The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Other than this, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments, equity instrument
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) and investment properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B #5R% M3 uf\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with
the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or
a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁi‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of
HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate or joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if
that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal
of the relevant associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and
joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity
method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group increases its ownership
interest in an associate or a joint venture
and the Group continues to use the equity
method, the consideration transferred to
acquire the additional interest should be
added to the existing carrying amount of the
investment without remeasurement of the
previously held interest.

When the Group reduces its ownership
interest in an associate or a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain
or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁi‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is carried at cost as established at
the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) (or group
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the CGU (or group of
CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill and
then to the other assets on pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of
the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU
within a group of CGUs), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of
the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are
tangible assets that held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than
construction in progress. Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated
useful life
Leasehold land and buildings
and site improvements outside
Hong Kong
— on medium term lease 20 to 50 years

Buildings and site improvements
in Hong Kong
—on short lease

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fittings and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

11to 10 years
5to 15 years

510 10 years
510 10 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress in the course
of construction for production, supply,
or administrative purposes are carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Ownership interests in leasehold
land and building

When the Group makes payments for
ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “right-of-use
assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or
“prepaid lease payment” (before application
of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant
and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

If a property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of that item (including the
relevant leasehold land under HKFRS 16
or prepaid lease payments under HKAS
17) at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Impairment on property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use
assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether
there is indication that corporate assets
may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGUs, when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs, for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B #5R% M3 uf\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Impairment on property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use
assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of CGUs, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of CGUs with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
of the group of CGUs. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or CGU or the group of CGUSs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or the group of CGUs)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost, comprises
direct materials, and where applicable, direct
labour, and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Costs of inventories are determined using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make
the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁi‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent

measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective
is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁi‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9, initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

= on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required
to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised
cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and
will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
(Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Dividends
are included in the “investment income” line
item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts due
from immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL
for trade receivables and trade related
amounts due from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and associates.
The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant
balances or are credit-impaired and for the
remaining debtors, it is assessed collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments (i.e. other
receivables, non-trade related amounts due
from joint ventures and associates and bank
balances), the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B #5R% M3 uf\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

- an actual or expected
significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s internal
credit rating;

= significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected
significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- an actual or expected
significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic,
or technological environment
of the debtor that results in
a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.

(ii) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default (Continued)
Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.

v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a
collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the past due
status and settlement pattern of
debtors. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group
continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, amounts due
from immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred
to accumulated profits.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including bank borrowings,
trade payables, bills payable, other payables
and amounts due to immediate holding
company, a fellow subsidiary, associates and
joint ventures are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good
or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods
or services that are substantially the same.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct good or service.

A contract liability (presented as “advances
from customers” in consolidated statement
of financial position) represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

A contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%i&i‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

)

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition:
measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured
based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of
services.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application
of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or
arising from business combinations on
or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon
application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note
2)

Allocation of consideration to
components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient
not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of that
have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)]

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon
application of HKFRS 16 in

accordance with transitions in note

2) (Continued)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

HE#®)
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REREEMHRE LS
16 5% ) ()

LS E
(EREEERABR

the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless
those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

HERBEMKRITES
CEg

s B Bgk 2z BT H B
TMEEMNK - BEAE
WCER T & 22 R

AREBEANTMISRE
BRA - &

AEBRFEMBERAEH
BE  WEEMRMESIHS
HEEEREZHEE K
R fi A P 48 7€ RO AR S0 1 EE
2R - BREZF K
ATREEFEMELSD

£ AR ERR AR Rt
EXRERBEE  YNEHESR
EENTERELAZ -

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA

169



/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B #5iR& Mz

170

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon
application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note
2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease,
the Group recognises and measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon
application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note
2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

= fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable; and

- payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease
liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to
the related right-of-use assets) whenever
the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon
application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note
2) (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification
as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope
of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the
leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease incentives from
lessor by making corresponding adjustments
to the relevant right-of-use asset. When
the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (prior to 1
January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

HE @)
EREBA(ZE—HNE—H
—Hw)

REME GBI AR D
F\Be F s BN 2 45 A TH A - BIAS
HESHEAMENE - TEERM
HESHBERE=HE -

REMENRERREEHANR
BREHERRER -

ERHAA

AEBEERHBABEED R
BEHEMKEHEE - HHEEMKRR
BE LEAEEN A ENS
B P A L B Ko [ ¥R 88 7% = A
A HIEREEDHERBREM
E-FEREMEERDBEREE

HE -

REMENHSWAEBBEY
FHREREINBRER - BE5
R e EREANYIFE
BERAEMABREEENKRE
B MZRAEHEENAZER
EHERRER  BUAAEBER
AEERNREYERIN o

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA

173



/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B #5iR& Mz

174

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

(k)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon
application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
Allocation of consideration to
components of a contract

When a contract includes both lease and
non-lease components, the Group applies
HKFRS 15 to allocate consideration
in a contract to lease and non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments from lessees.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit before tax because it
excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁi‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred
tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than
through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁi‘%ﬁﬂtﬁ\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary
differences arising from subsequent revision
to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from
remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modification that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised
to profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
group entity are presented in the currency
of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (its
functional currency). For the purpose of
the consolidated financial statements, the
financial performance and position of each
entity are expressed in US$, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (“foreign currencies”)
are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. US$) using exchange
rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated
at monthly average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the
heading of the exchange translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes
a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(m)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisitions of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Contribution payable by
the Group to the schemes is charged to the
profit or loss when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group
contributed to defined contribution
retirement schemes which were available
to certain employees of Hong Kong. The
assets of these schemes are held separately
and managed by independent trustees. The
amount of the Group’s contributions, net
of any contributions forfeited in respect of
those employees who leave the schemes
prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
is charged to the profit or loss as incurred
when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Retirement benefit costs

(n)

(Continued)

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group
operates and contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) schemes which
are available to all employees of Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. Contribution
payable by the Group to the MPF scheme
is charged to the profit or loss when
employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires
or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other
long-term employee benefits are measured
at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the
Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts
resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in
the cost of an asset.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Effective
1 January 2019, any specific borrowing that
remain outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees
The fair value of services received
determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market
vesting condition is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates during
the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

When the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to
share capital. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Assessment of impairment of trade
receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL individually for each
significant trade balances based on expectation
of cash flows after assessing the credit risk
characteristics of individual debtors taking into
consideration of financial position and/or historical
repayment records of the counterparties and
forward-looking information that is reasonably
and supportably available to the management of
the Group without undue costs or effort, and are
updated at each reporting period date if considered
to be required. In particular, in estimating the ECL
for trade related amounts due from immediate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries which
is credit-impaired, the directors of the Company
also considered other quantitative and qualitative
factors that include the operating and financial
performance, operation update and other market
factors relating to the immediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Assessment of impairment of trade
receivables (Continued)

For the other trade receivables, it is grouped
based on similar loss patterns as reflected in the
trade receivables and provision rate is applied
using the historical observed default rates of the
trade receivables taking into consideration of
forward-looking information that is reasonably
and supportably available to the directors of the
Company without undue cost or effort, and are
updated at each reporting date if considered to be
required.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes
47(b) and 27 respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets relating to manufacturing
segment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has
to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount,
which is the higher of value in use and fair value
less cost of disposal; and (3) the appropriate key
inputs to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the assets belongs. Changing the key inputs
and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the present value used in the
impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets relating to manufacturing
segment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, in view of financial
performance of certain CGUs of the manufacturing
segment during the year, the Group performed
impairment assessment on these CGUs which
contain right-of-use assets of US$6,873,000 and
property, plant and equipment of US$48,011,000
respectively by preparing value in use calculations
that require the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU based on
key inputs, such as the expected selling prices,
budgeted sales volume, gross profit margin,
growth rate, and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. No impairment losses
in respect of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment have been recognised. In addition,
there is no impairment recognised for the group of
CGUs of manufacturing segment that includes the
carrying amount of corporate assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of an associate

As at 31 December 2019, in view of continuing
losses of an associate, the Group performed
impairment assessment on an associate.
Determining whether impairment loss should
be recognised requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the relevant associate
which is the higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the management of the Group to estimate
the present value of the estimated cash flows
expected to arise from dividends to be received
from the associate and the proceeds from the
ultimate disposal of the investment. In cases
where the actual cash flows are less or more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future cash flows
estimation, a material reversal or further recognition
of impairment may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of interest in this associate amounted to
US$27,100,000 (2018: US$30,082,000) with no
impairment loss recognised during the year.
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REVENUE 5 ZEXEH
Revenue represents sales of goods from EERBRERNEEB HERDRRE 2
manufacturing and services income from logistics RIS R B FEEN - AT -
services operations, less sales related taxes, and is
analysed as follows:
2019 2018
- B IE:l — T )\
US$’000 US$’000
FErn FEr
Manufacturing FUERTS 683,925 | 1,780,404
Logistics services Wi AR 7% 28,284 27,415
712,209 1,807,819
Disaggregation of revenue from REE P AL ER S
contracts with customers
2019 2018
PN T \F
US$’000 US$’'000
TErx F=T
Types of goods or services B RS AR R E R
Manufacturing (recognised RUE % (— (AR
at a point in time): BhER) -
Dry freight containers g 23] 453,949 | 1,414,658
Refrigerated containers RIS 92,335 99,425
Tank containers A 33,830 67,189
US domestic containers ERHAPEEER 25,313 115,227
Other specialised containers HarEaEs R
and container parts SEMERY 78,498 83,905
683,925 1,780,404
Logistics services (recognised ) m AR (BE R
over time): HERRER)
Container storage and SRMARTER
handling services B 12 AR 7% 6,547 5,482
Repair and drayage services WS BB ARTS 6,313 6,731
Container freight station services SRBEELRE 9,615 9,397
Other container related services H b= M AR R AR TS 5,809 5,805
28,284 27,415
712,209 1,807,819
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5

REVENUE (Continued)

The Group manufactures a wide range of products
including dry freight containers, refrigerated
containers, collapsible flatrack containers, tank
containers, US domestic containers, offshore
containers, other specialised containers and
container parts. The Group charged the selling
price of each of containers based on the agreed
purchase order. The performance obligation of the
contract of manufacturing containers represents
producing the containers to its customers in
accordance to the standard requirements stated
in the purchase order. The Group only provides
assurance type warranty of which no distinct goods
or services is identified. The Group sometimes
requires customers to make upfront payment
before the commencement of the production
activity and the remaining amount is to be settled
within the credit term. Control of the containers
is considered transferred to customers upon the
completion of inspection through acknowledging
the acceptance notes by customers and delivering
to specific location under certain circumstances.
Transportation and handling activities that occur
before the customer obtains control of the
containers are considered as fulfilment activities.

Logistics services of the Group include container
storage and handling services, repair and drayage
services, container freight station services and
other container related services (collectively
referred to “container related services”). The Group
generally charges the container service fee based
on either fixed daily rate or cost-plus. The Group
normally bills monthly to the customers and credit
term offered to the customers is normally 30 to
60 days. The performance obligation for logistics
services is to provide the container related services
in the depot to its customers. The Group fulfils the
performance obligation by completing the container
related services for its customers. Revenue is
recognised over time when the container related
services are rendered.
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REVENUE (Continued)

All manufacturing and logistics services are
provided for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance are organised into two
operating divisions — manufacturing and logistics
services. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information under
HKFRS 8 Opearting Segments.

No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing — manufacturing of dry freight
containers, refrigerated
containers, collapsible
flatrack containers, tank
containers, US domestic
containers, offshore
containers, other specialised
containers and container
parts.

Logistics services — provision of container
storage, repair and trucking
services, serving as a freight
station, container/cargo
handling and other container
related services.
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6  TEBE Rl (%)

Information regarding these segments is presented ZEDEERZRAT ¢

below:

Segment revenue and results THEXRERES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue REBRERAMEDH 2 EFRBRE
and results by operating and reportable segment: BN

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-EZ-NF+ZA=+—HLHFE

Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total Eliminations Total

REXE  WRREB NE % ek

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
S TER TER TEn S

REVENUE EEHR

External sales HINEE 683,925 28,284 712,209 - 712,209
Inter-segment sales (Note) HEpEEE (HisE) - 3,281 3,281 (3,281) -
Total BT 683,925 31,565 715,490 (3,281) 712,209
SEGMENT RESULTS DHEE (92,352) 1,544 (90,808) - (90,808)
Finance costs BI%ER (14,515)
Investment income KEKA 4,477

Fair value loss on derivative fTEERMTAEY

financial instruments AABEESSE (382)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1 &M B A Al 2 Uiz 7,771
Share of results of associates ~ FEGHE & AR 2B (829)
Share of results of joint ventures  FE(EA B % 257 127
Loss before taxation IR AT (94,159)

Note: Mt -
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices. 5 BB E BT I B TS BISEE °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SERE R (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEEEBERESE (F)
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE_ZT—)\F+_A=1T—HIEFE
Logistics
Manufacturing services Sub-total  Eliminations Total
SUEXTS MRS NG 3 k)
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET TEn TEL TET
REVENUE L
External sales HINHE 1,780,404 27,415 1,807,819 - 1,807,819
Inter-segment sales (Note) DEPFEHE (i) - 8,135 8,135 (8,135) -
Total CE 1,780,404 35550 1,815,954 (8,135) 1,807,819
SEGMENT RESULTS PEEE 35,349 2,805 38,154 - 38,154
Finance costs HEER (18,549)
Investment income BERA 4,392
Fair value gain on derivative fTESRIAY
financial instruments A EEkE 47
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  HE—HIBLE 2 K= 65,604
Share of results of associates MBS AR 2 EE 2,512)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ E{5 & B0 % 2 &7 37
Profit before taxation BREEAT A 87,173
Note: B

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

Segment results represent the (loss incurred)
profit earned by each segment without allocation
of finance costs, certain investment income, fair
value (loss) gain on derivative financial instruments,
gain on disposal of subsidiaries, share of results of
associates and share of results of joint ventures.
This is the measure reported to the Group’s
Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

7 BRI E B IE T B T TG (BISEETE ©

DEEEEE DR (ELER) S
Mo BRDEMBER  XLEREK
A TTEERIAZ AAEEEBR) K
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AZEBRNMEEREREZEN o k)
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEHEN®E
Segment assets and liabilities THEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s total REBKERMED B BEERLR
assets and total liabilities by operating and BEITHT :

reportable segment:

R-ZZE—-hE+=BA=+—H

As at 31 December 2019

Singamas Container Holdings Limited -

Logistics
Manufacturlng services
Wk IR A
US$1000
TEnT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 405,670 38,362 444,032
Interests in associates NG AYNGIP T 43,782
Interests in joint ventures NCR-ME A T 7,355
Unallocated corporate assets APEARIEE 178,243
Consolidated total assets DREERR 673,412
LIABILITIES faf
Segment liabilities ok =V 63,069 5,994 69,063
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBRARARE 41,642
Consolidated total liabilities LEBEESE 110,705
OTHER INFORMATION Hith &R

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Logistics
Manufacturing services
MR
US$’000
TER
Amounts included in the measure ARG B D185
of segment profit or loss or F N HEER
segment assets: SEOHE
Additions of capital expenditure B AR 27,368 6,334 33,702
Depreciation and amortisation (Note) #7% K #sH (#:2) 25,563 3,871 29,434
Allowance for credit losses, itk vy
net of reversal ERBRER (7,748) (213) (7,961)
Loss on disposal of property, ﬁ’@%% KER
plant and equipment S ER (129) (591) (714)
Loss on property, plant and THEME  EER
equipment written off B 3 (8,533) (16) (8,549)
Loss on right-of-use assets TIHERAEREY
written off EiB (8,694) - (8,694)

BE-E-NF+ZA=T-HLEE

Annual Report 2019
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEER®E
Segment assets and liabilities THEERARE#E)

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2018

R-F-N\F+-A=+—H

Logistics
Manufa\cﬂgﬂn services Total
SUERT MR kS
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEL TEL TET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 1,134,917 59,770 1,194,687
Interests in associates N NI 3 44 509
Interests in joint ventures NEEDE R 21,671
Unallocated corporate assets FOBERARBE 139,116
Consolidated total assets REEERR 1,399,983
LIABILITIES fafE
Segment liabilities nNHEE 294,883 10,889 305,772
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEARIARE 398,432
Consolidated total liabilities Leakes 704,204
OTHER INFORMATION HihER

For the year ended 31 Decmeber 2018

BHE_Z—)\FT_A=+—RALFE

Logistics
Manufaptqrjr%g services Total
SUEETH RS b
US$000 US$000 US$'000
TET TET TET
Amounts included in the measure ~ ARG B D B4
of segment profit or loss or KO BEE
segment assets: MEEaE
Additions of capital expenditure EEARRAY 60,359 1,613 61,972
Depreciation and amortisation (Note) #r& Kt (#1:z) 31,117 3,425 34,542
Allowance for credit losses, HEERL
net of reversal EREXEE (1,083) 159 (924)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property,  HEW% - #EER
plant and equipment Rl (B8 & (349) 236 (113)
Loss on property, plant and EHE  BER
equipment written off w1 B (416) (27) (443)
Note: Certain amounts were capitalised in inventories during Wit : BE=-_F-NFR=-_F-NF+=-H

the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

=1t HULEFE ET2HERFEER

e =
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities
(Continued)

The amounts included in other information are part
of the operating and reportable segments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than interests in associates,
interests in joint ventures and unallocated
corporate assets, which include equity
instrument at FVTOCI, derivative financial
instruments, certain other receivables, tax
recoverable and bank balances and cash.
Assets used jointly by reportable segments
are allocated on the basis of the revenue
earned by individual reportable segments;
and

= all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than unallocated corporate
liabilities, which included amounts due to
immediate holding company, amount due
to a fellow subsidiary, amounts due to
associates, amounts due to joint ventures,
tax payable, bank borrowings and deferred
tax liabilities. Liabilities for which reportable
segments are jointly liable are allocated in
proportion to segment assets.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group’s manufacturing division
is located in the PRC. Logistics services division is
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue by geographical market, based
on the location of customers for manufacturing
segment and based on the origin of the goods/
services for logistics services segment:

6

DEER (#)

2 5 3 & 4

AEEZ EBEDHNEBRDE - A&
B BUE R KR RARE o MRS ER
EBRAE o

TRIBBERERBE D BT P AEH A
RYRRT D E R E M, RGO - E
I IO ARE 2 &K%

Year ended 31 December 2019 Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-E-NEt-A=t-HLEE B2 T \Ft-R=1-HIFE
Logistics Logistics

Manufacturing services (I Manufacturing services Total
SUEEHK YIRS A BEETS R g
US$000 US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
S TET FER T=Er TET FET

United States of ~ FF|E24 R
America (‘USA?)  ([£EL)) 169,363 - 169,363 787,227 = 787,227
Korea GE 108,878 - 108,878 94,394 - 94,394
Hong Kong B 103,854 4,476 108,330 387,059 4,823 391,882
Singapore HE 92,747 - 92,747 209,463 = 209,463
Europe vl 80,957 - 80,957 104,197 = 104,197
PRC H 32,826 23,808 56,634 39,839 22,592 62,431
Taiwan =) 52,363 - 52,363 74,839 = 74,839
Others Hith 42,937 - 42,937 83,386 - 83,386
Total B 683,925 28,284 712,209 1,780,404 27,415 1,807,819
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying
amount of non-current assets other than financial
instruments, analysed by the geographical area in
which the assets are located:

DEER (#)

WESBER (&)

AT 2 E CREFEH) DT IERED
BE(SBITARIN 2 HEEFE :

As at 31

Decembe December

019 2018

RZE—N\F

5 +=A

= =+—H

$’000 US$'000

FE

PRC H 156,451 511,587
Hong Kong B 13,304 13,992
Others Hith 28,847 32,458
198,602 558,037

Information about major customers

In 2019, no customers (2018: two customers)
contribute over 10% of the total sales. The
customers contribute over 10% of the total sales
amounted to US$394,875,000 in aggregate in
2018.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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OTHER INCOME 7 H g A

For the year ended 31 December 2019, HE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—8HLHF
other income mainly included rental income B AR ARFESFETHERA
of US$945,000 (2018: nil), fair value gain on 945,000F T (2018F : #& ) - LE W
investment properties of US$436,000 (2018: nil) WA R EE 436,000 7T (2018
and an amount of RMB13,933,000 (equivalent to FE)RREHEBBRFIBFAARE
US$2,024,000) (2018: RMB11,197,000 (equivalent 13,933,000 7T ( #8 % 7 2,024,000 % 7T )
to US$1,695,000)) received from the local —ZT—)\F : AR% 11,197,000 7 (48
government authorities for the encouragement on Z£71,695,0003€ 7T ) ) )2 B FEBR IR #Y
economic contribution to the industry development B - USEETTERRNKERR

with no specific conditions attached.

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT 8 INRREEZEHELER
LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL
2019 2018
et BR-N — T )\
US$’000 US$’000

FEx FET
Allowance for credit losses (reversed) 12 F8 %5 ([E18)
recognised on: R -
Trade receivables JEW AR TR (290) 381
Trade related amount due from FEW E B R A A
immediate holding company S RERIA 6,238 1,072
Trade related amounts due from e VNS
fellow subsidiaries g ZHEE 1,904 (625)
Amounts due from associates JE KBS & 2 B kIR 98 96
Other receivables H A e 5RIE 11 -
7,961 924
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9

10

FINANCE COSTS 9 MBEH
2019 2018
-2yl T )\&F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEFFE 13,924 18,025
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEHNE 220 =
Bank charges RITFES 371 524
14,515 18,549
INVESTMENT INCOME 10 FEEBIWAN
2019 2018
t- Bl — T )\F
US$’000 US$’000
TEx TFETT
Interest earned on bank deposits RITIF K B WA 1,337 2,726
Interest income from immediate BEERARFBUMA
holding company 3,945 1,362
Interest income from a fellow —RI R B FF B U A
subsidiary 1,207 1,761
Interest income from an associate ~ —Et& N T EZRF S A 710 710
Imputed interest income from R Bz HEFBUWA
consideration receivable 558 -
Dividend income from BRARBAEGAEMEEEE
equity instrument at FVTOCI R TARBILA 1,872 956
9,629 7,516
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
=a

W%ﬁ%%ﬁ\\\
B

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11 %A (&) &%
019 2018
=—\F
$’000 UsS$’000
FEx
(Loss) profit before taxation BrAiAT (E518) )&
has been arrived at after charging 23R 518 -
the following :
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEM B & 350 397
Staff costs, including directors’ EENAN  BREEME
emoluments
— Salaries and other benefits - %ﬁi N EL At A2 A 94,757 188,709
— Retirement benefit costs (note 13) - :EAREH LK (3£ 13) 3,858 5,247
98,615 193,956
Depreciation and amortisation e R SE »
Depreciation of property, plant Y - MR REEITE
and equipment \ 24,981 32,159
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {#HEEEFTE 4,453 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease BEEE T
payments in respect of TENHEEFIE
leasehold land - 2,383
29,434 34,542
Operating lease charges KEHEE B
— Land and buildings - TH RAEF - 4,427
— Plant and machinery - MR R - 262
- 4,689
Share of taxation charge of JE(RESE R R IR
associates 965 213
Share of taxation charge of E(EE B EMIE
joint ventures 130 165
1,095 378
Cost of inventories recognised EHRRARERZ
as expense FERA 703,516 1,676,301
Loss on disposal of property, HEYEE - sk
plant and equipment & EiE
(included in other expenses) (BEEHMER) 714 113
Loss on property, plant and FTIEMIEE - AR
equipment written off Rt E1E
(included in other expenses) (BEEHMER) 8,549 443
Loss on right-of-use assets HIEFRAEEE CBE
written off (BEEEMER)
(included in other expenses) 8,694 =
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 12 EFERIAREHMA L Z M

PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS &

The following was the emoluments paid or payable TARENKEMNT—U(ZF—/)\F :
to each of the 11 (2018: 9) directors of the ND)ESCEEHS o

Company.

2019 —E-hF

Executive Directors Non-executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
#7153 FnEs BUFYTES

Teo  Chan Teo  Chung Cheng Lau Ho
Siong Kwok Tiou  PuiKing, Kuan Tan Kwa FuKwok,  HoKit, Yang, Teck
Seng Leung  Seng Rebecca KimKin ChorKee WeeKeng  David lvan  Victor  Cheong Total

RHE RER GHB BERR BOE REE NEE UWE  H9A  BEW  MEE  £8
US$000 USS000 US$000 US§000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 USS000 US$000  US§000  US$'000  US$000
Tin T TEm TEn TEn fEm TEn TEn TEm TEn TEm TEn
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note3)  (Note d)
(K1) (Ht2) (W) (Kita)

Fess e 55 2 29 29 19 31 19 47 5 24 5 340
Other emoluments;  E-AiA -
Sdaresandother  $4 R
beneffs At 466 36 - 253 - - - - - - - 1105
Controutionsto~~~ R{#E A
refiementhengft €3

seheme PA] 17 - 12 - - - - - - - 52
Peromance rlted &R TfE
ncentive payments ~ XEES - 55 - % - - - - - - - %

544 487 2 332 19 3 19 4 53 % 5 159

2018 —ZT-N\F
Execttive Directors Non-execuive Directors  Indgpendent Non-executive Directors
§Es HES BUES
Chung Cheng Lau

Teo Chan Teo  PuiKing, Kuan Tan  FuKwok, HoKit, Yang,
SiongSeng KwokLeung  TiouSeng  Rebecca  KimKin  ChorKee David Ivan Victor Total
e RER FHE  ERR  MRE REE  Z8E MR 5E e
US§000  USS000  USS000 - USS000  USSOoD  US$000  USKOoD  USS000  USHOo0  USS000
Tt Rt R R R R Rt R R TR

(Note 1) (Note: )
(B 1) (Kis)
Fess o 5 29 29 29 46 29 40 51 49 37
Other emolumens: Hfpe :
Salaries and other benefts % R {87 451 348 - 242 - - - - - 1,041
Controutions to refiement  RIFRAIES:
benefit scheme 23 16 - 12 - - - - - 51
Performance related HERT(ERR
incentve payments g2 166 54 - 38 - - - - - 258
695 447 29 31 46 29 40 51 49 1,707
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
Note:
(7) Mr. Kuan Kim Kin was retired as a non-executive

director of the Company with effect from 26 June 2019.

2) Mr. Kwa Wee Keng was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 26 June 2019.

) Mr. Yang, Victor was resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 15
July 2019.

4) Mr. Ho Teck Cheong was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
2 October 2019.

Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

The executive directors’ fees are for their services
as the directors of the Company and their other
emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

12 EERHEARDHMA LT ZEM

& (&)

HiEt

(1) RS ER —FE—NFNA =1 AR
EARAHFHTEE »

@) HIEEEER —F—NFNA -1/ AE
BEERERNFHHTES -

3) BEHLEER = FE—NF+ A7 AET
KRB IHTTEE -

) WES LR —F—NF+ A= AELEZ
ERAER AL IFHTTESE

SRINBISTAETIARRRIEFITHRAEE - A
EREZHEE BRMESEFTTRE
EFTREMIRFE 2T -

HITESZME HERARRIESRMH
RS - B B S IR E
ERERNNCIVSEN SETE Yy Sl k) e
T o EHIFRITES KB IFITES
ZBE I RA R R 2 ES PR HARTS
BB o
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 12 EERAATSEHMALTZEH

PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS -AC))

(Continued)

The above analysis includes 3 (2018: 3) directors s EREASEEREARa
whose emoluments were among the five highest MALTHFEFZ=FR(ZF—NF: =
paid individuals in the Group. Details of the B)EF - FRESHME(ZT—N\F:
aggregate emoluments paid to the remaining 2 ME)BAEBEhEmaTMALTZ
(2018: 2) individuals whose emoluments were Pl MAWINALREEMES AN ZA
among the five highest paid individuals in the T EAFTNS BT ¢

Group and which have not been included in
directors’ emoluments above are set out below:

2019 2018
t S — T\
Us$000 US$'000

FEx FET
Salaries and other benefits e MEMER] 462 289
Retirement benefit costs RIRRBAHR 17 22
479 311

Their emoluments were within the following bands: REZMETETSEHE -

2019 2018
TE-AF eaiE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals
A AE
US$127,582 — US$191,373 127,582 371 — 191,373 %L
(Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) (1,000,000 7T —
1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000) 1,500,000 78 7T) 1 2
US$255,164 — US$318,955 255,164 3% 7T — 318,955 3 7T
HK$2,000,000 — HK$2,500,000) (2,000,000 7T —
2,500,000 7T) 1 -
2 2
No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss FRN - AEBYERNESIAEHZ= T
and inducement to join or upon joining the Group B A T2 SHER B2 - BRI N
was paid to directors of the Company or the five BAS BRAREISIERRERAME - -

highest paid individuals during the year.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated
defined contribution retirement scheme for certain
employees in Hong Kong. These scheme are
registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the scheme
are held separately and managed by independent
trustees. Under the rules of the scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. Any amount unvested
upon an employee ceasing to be a member
shall be used to offset subsequent employer’s
contributions.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
has joined MPF scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the PRC.
Subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of relevant payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes. Obligations under the scheme
are borne by the PRC Government.

13

RIRIE TR

R_ZEZZEF+_—F—HA A5EE
RETEBREERLATEHIRKE
B o BLERTE B R SR KET S 16151
it o ZEFHEICEEIDRIBRBELT
AFERER - BREFTEI A B
FRHEHESSARBFRERTE 2 L EMmE
S - MEBETHERANAEER - 8
HoRBEES 2 HFOB1EE K A AK H
HgEEZHK -

N-FTTF+-A— A AEED
AREBEARIRS RBMSHE -
A EI D BB AR S BIED)
I AR S BIERRER - it
8 AENERARENEED P 0
TUEFEARE -

REBRETTE AR BREREESR
ERERARE 2L RAFFEIHR - K
SERRIEEFT 2 M — R ERREZ
ATEIERR o IS WA TR AT ORI R
REREF 2 IR

EREZHERRRESR T BB
B2 P RRKEEIKNE - HEARIA
WREEFHEE T AR SIHK -
E S EEAEDBRTERFAE -
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13

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
(Continued)

The retirement benefit costs charged to the
profit or loss representing contributions payable
by the Group to the MPF Scheme operated in
Hong Kong and the retirement benefit schemes
in the PRC amounted to US$3,858,000 (2018:
US$5,247,000).

No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined
contribution retirement schemes was used to
reduce the current year’s contributions. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose from the employees
leaving the retirement schemes and which are
available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14 FIEHIERX
No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as F A AR E 0 A SR s ) - AR R AT
there was no taxable profit during the current year. REBNEM
PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated R (ST T A R ETE R B R
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at MIBEARERPBEL LR 2 BFITHE
the rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which E -
the Group operates.
2019 2018
—E-hE it
US$’000 US$'000
FErn FEr
Current tax: REEHIA -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax H Bl RIS
— Current year - RNFEE 18,284 13,634
— Prior years overprovision - AIFE Z (2 (792)
18,282 12,842
Deferred tax (note 44): RIEFIIE (MiET 44) -
— Current year charge - REFELZH (6) (45)
— Withholding tax on - RO BECAE R RS
undistributed profits (1,638) 994
(1,644) 949
Income tax expense for the year REEMEHEBERAX 16,638 13,791

In accordance with the tax concession applicable
to public infrastructure project, a subsidiary of the
Company are entitled to the exemption from the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first three years
commencing from the first income generating
year of operations since 2013, and thereafter to a
50% relief from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for
the following three years since 2016. As a result,
a subsidiary of the Company enjoyed a 50% tax
relief from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

BEERRALEMREIER 2B E
B ARA—KBRARBENFERS
EWAFEERE BB - =F#£g
—FRZRRPRACEMSEH  B=F
—ANFREE=FOZHEPEMEH
BAZATRSE - At - KRR —KHE
REIR T \F+A=+—HI1EF
BzHRECEMERESAED A TR
% o
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14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14 FEREHIERZ @)

2019 2018
-SR-Sl T\
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FETT

(Loss) profit before taxation BREAT (518 ) &= F (94,159) 87,173
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 25%  LAB AT X A 25%

(2018: 25%) (ZZE—N\F : 25%) 5% (23,540) 21,793
Tax effect of share of results of JE(EEEE N R 2B 2

associates Mgz 2 207 628
Tax effect of share of results of JEIhEEREENZ

joint ventures M2 (32) ©)
Tax effect of expenses that are not 751 & & 2R 5 018 F1|

deductible in determining taxable TEERS M

profit M e 12,415 7,968
Tax effect of income that are not TERT 5 e R T i M P

taxable in determining taxable BARTZBAZ

profit MR 2 (3,089) (21,332)
Tax effect on tax losses arising in RAFEERERERZ

the current year not recognised HMEEE KT E 17,071 6,073
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  {EFATEE KEWERZ

previously not recognised RIGE 1B 2 B & (2,671) (1,484)
Over provision in prior years A S 2) (792)
Withholding tax on undistributed R BEFE 2 IR E

profits I8 (1,638) 994
Tax effect of deductible temporary AR {ERER Z AI IR ET Ay

difference not recognised MEREBGE 144 -
Utilisation of deductible temporary (A RTFE R IEHER

difference previously not recognised  AJRFNE R 1= & - (114)
Tax effect of disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZFHIEFE 17,614 -
Others Hib 159 66
Tax charge at effective rate REEHIEZH R

for the year BHBE 16,638 13,791

Note: PRC Enterprise Income Tax on disposal of subsidiaries BieE - HHERE X ElR)F BT AT R 1B A
is calculated at 10% of the difference between 1 /B 2 B 1E BT Y 5 & AN ZE B Y

consideration and the registered capital of the relevant
subsidiaries in the PRC.
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15 DIVIDENDS 15 2
2019 2018
TE-AF s
US$’000 US$’000
FTER F=T
Dividends recognised as distributions F AR AEE D IRKE.
during the year:
Final in respect of the previous EFEZRRE - 27
financial year, paid — HK7 cents TE AR 7 AL
(2018: HK2.5 cents) (ZE—N\F:
per ordinary share BiRE@ER2.5811) 21,654 7,702

The board of directors does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: HK7 cents per ordinary
share, total of which equivalent to approximately
HK$169,184,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$21,602,000)).

The board of directors recommends the payment
of a special dividend of HK13 cents (2018: nil) per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2019, total of which equivalent to approximately
HK$314,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$40,282,000) in respect of the disposal of
subsidiaries during the year and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in forthcoming annual
general meeting.

BEEefERREHEE_T—NF+=
A=+ HLEFEMNRARE(=ZZ
—NF: EREBR7EN - BFFD
169,184,000 7T (18 & 7 %) 21,602,000
EIT)) °

HRAFELEWNB AR EESER
KEHE2 T NF+_A=+—HIt
FEFKREEREARISAEWW(ZE
—/\F : #|&) - #51#%7314,200,000% 7T
(FE N #740,282,000E 7T ) » MEBLEAR
ARBEREERITHRRAFAE £
HEME ©
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16 (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 16 Bk (BEiE) AT
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings RATIRREEERNREETR (EE)
per share attributable to owners of the Company is B TEA TEIRTE -
based on the following data:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx F=x
(Loss) earnings: (EE) &
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of ~ EAFTEEAR K
calculating basic and diluted (loss) ~ #E&ER (EE) B
earnings per share 2 (E8) & (110,230) 72,252
Number of shares: RI7EH -
Weighted average number of FELAGTEEAR R
ordinary shares for the purpose #E5ek (B8 &
of calculating basic and diluted 2 E AR NtE IS E
(loss) earnings per share 2,416,919,918 | 2,416,919,918

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings per
share for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options, as the
exercise price of those options are higher than the
average market price per share for both years, and
therefore, was anti-dilutive to the (loss) earnings
per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

RA M BRRME

17 0% - B RERE

EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Plant fittings and
buildings and and office
site improvements ~ machinery  equipment Motor Construction
HETHRET BER HE-£ER  vehicles inprogress Tota
RiUR #E BAERG RE  RRIE A
US$ 000 US$000 US$'000 US§'000 US$000 US$000
e e e e e e
Cost A
At 1 January 2018 RZF-/\§-A-H 262,753 261,176 13,390 16,001 56,735 509,095
Translation differences hEze (598) (366) 48) 2 - (1,035)
Reclassiied as prepaid lease ENPEARMNEENE
payments - - - - (5,946) (5,946)
Transferred o investment properties ~ EBERENE (8,018) - - - - (8,018)
Additions AE 75 6,550 1,130 524 33906 42,185
Disposals ih& (815) (8,406) (115) (2.956) - (12,09)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-MEAA (17,260) (2399) (530) (159 - (41,961)
Wite off b - (1291) (169) (689) - (2,149
Transfer 5 38,204 14,672 1,892 1413 (56,181) -
At31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1-H 264,321 248,343 15,560 13,111 285514 569,839
Translation differences hEEg (182) (98) (10) () - (299)
Additions hE 925 3,782 503 125 21,734 33,159
Disposals & (7,451) (3,695 () (1,176) - (12,327)
Disposal of subsidiaries L EHBAT (177,040) (190,326) (11,602) 8513 (6,883 (394,364)
Wite off b - (17,553) (358) (17) [4118) (22,200)
Transfer g 3440 36,164 1,304 889 (@1,797) -
At 31 December 2019 RZB-hNE+ZA=1-8 84,013 76,617 5472 4,260 3450 173,812
Accumulated depreciation ZiEHE
At 1 January 2018 R=F-/\§-A-H 68,613 127,150 6,773 9,102 - 211,638
Translation differences HEES (268) 1) (36) (15) = (530)
Transferred to investment properties ~ EBERENE (7,076) - - - - (7,076)
Charge for the year TERHERHE 10,747 18,796 1,001 1525 - 32,159
Elminated on disposals (L (505) (5,098) (62) (2,214) - (7,939)
Elminated on disposal of asubsidiary ~ HE—BA R (5,678) (13.249) (391) (103) = (19,415)
Eliminated on write off FaEa - (1,151) (154 (401) - (1,706)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=1-R 65,833 126,243 7,221 7,834 - 207,131
Translation differences hEEE (86) (2) (10) () - (153)
Charge for the year TEENERAE 8128 15,008 950 895 = 24,981
Eliminated on disposals hEH (1978) (2,540) () (678) - (5,401)
Elminated on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMEA %3 (35,962) (77,751) (4,071) (5,511) - [12329)
Eliminated on write off Rsiaf - (13,379) (127) (145) - (13,651)
At 31 December 2019 R=Z-NE+ZA=+-A 35,935 47,529 3,958 2,190 - 89,612
Carrying values HaEE
At 31 December 2019 R=B-hE+=A=1-A 48,078 29,088 1,514 2,070 3450 84,200
At 31 December 2018 RZT-\ETZA=1-H 198,488 122,100 8,329 5217 28514 362,708

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B #5iR& Mz

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17 % - BBRRE B
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Loss on property, plant and equipment and REZ 8,549,000k TeF B - #3%
right-of-use assets written off amounting to 2 2 E518 LA & 8,694,000 & JT A $H
US$8,549,000 and US$8,694,000 respectively EREEEZEERIZRNRTEM T
in the current year were mainly attributable to U B KA S B bR LS SRR 1E ©

demolition of certain terminal facilities as requested
by the local government in the PRC.

The carrying value of land and buildings of the REEH T RBF 2 REE ST
Group is analysed as follows: T
Leasehold
land and Site
buildings improvements Total
HEL
kEF TiHR k)
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
TER TEx TEx
At 31 December 2019 R=B-IF
+=-A=+—H
Held in Hong Kong ERBHERES 12,152 - 12,152
Held outside Hong Kong ERBEMIMNE RS - 35,926 35,926
12,152 35,926 48,078
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\%F
+=-RA=+—"H
Held in Hong Kong EREMEIFE 12,594 - 12,594
Held outside Hong Kong ~ EEBNIMEERH - 185,894 185,894
12,594 185,894 198,488
The land and building elements of a lease of land T REFHAOFH L RIEFHHE
and building cannot be allocated reliably between ERTHEEFE S EAESER - BH
the land and building elements, the entire lease is AR IEMSE - a3 ek -

treated as property, plant and equipment.

212 Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019 .



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements “Z& ﬁﬂ%iﬁi‘%ﬁﬂﬁ%\

18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18 (FHEEE

Leasehold lands
and properties

HELhRYE
US$’000
FxET
As at 1 January 2019 R-—ZE-hF—HA—H
Carrying amount FREEE 99,064
As at 31 December 2019 R=B-hAFE+=A=+—H
Carrying amount FREEE 43,986
For the year ended BE-Z—N&F
31 December 2019 +T=ZA=+—BLHFE
Depreciation charge TEER 4,453
Expense relating to short-term REME R AMmAEHEEH
leases and other leases with REXEREEMERE
lease terms end within 12 months 28I 1655+ — & A K
of the date of initial application HiERAE A
of HKFRS 16 1,095
Expense relating to leases of KEEEENHEBEHEEEZR
low-value assets, excluding EKEEBEEENEHESR 91\
short-term leases of
low value assets 8
Total cash outflow for leases REERER 3,474
Additions to right-of-use assets e AR EL N 543

For both years, the Group leases for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one to five years, but may have extension and
termination options. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

MEHE  AEREYSEXHKERE -
T EeRMBEEHRA—FNRE - BR
AEBIEHIMA I - HERRERIZE
J’iiﬂTé%?éﬁﬁEfEEl’\J C HR e sERR
H R IGRAT » AEEEREHEHR
MEHE ST A BEHHIRE - KAER
HE R W HEE & 7 AT SR BT TRO AR

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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18

19

214

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 18 [EHREZE®)
In addition, the Group owns several industrial BEAN » NREBEHA AR T ZAEERE
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are RENITERENMRAETF - XEEA
primarily located and office buildings. The Group ZEYE R (BEEAEEE L) AT
is the registered owner of these property interests, A A - ERAIEL — XM KA
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump BUE kR - EE M NIrIRIEEE
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these WA EDERE - HAMERHNEELS
property interests. The leasehold land components HEB D A BB o
of these owned properties are presented
separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases AEETHREELEYERPRERME
for certain premises and office equipment. As at 31 AIVEBHAE - RZE—NF+=A
December 2019, the portfolio of short-term leases =+—8" Lﬁﬁfﬁfﬁﬂm EAZR G AR
is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to HAHEET HEEHEEHAS AR -
which the short-term lease expense incurred
during the year.
During the current year, lease liabilities of RAFEE - 8 /543,000ETHHEE
US$543,000 are recognised with related right- BENMEAREERHNIFINEE
of-use assets attributable to new leases entered WEMER - R THBEARFENHEHESR
into. The lease agreements do not impose any ERNERERIN - HEBZETEINER
covenants other than the security interests in HmAE  WEFEBRHEEEETSRE
the leased assets that are held by the lessor BERER o I - XEHEEBZERER
and the relevant leased assets may not be used R FEGHAESENHERGEDLE
as security for borrowing purposes. In addition, RIEHER - WE BRI ARFERIER
certain lease agreements were early terminated R °
and certain right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
were derecognised. These are major non-cash
transactions of the current year.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19 BREYHE
US$’000
FET
FAIR VALUE NAEE
At 1 January 2018 R-_ZE—-\F—H—H —
Transferred from prepaid lease wEs ?ﬁﬁfﬁ‘%?ﬂg&%% s
payments and property, plant P A D)
and equipment (Note) 18,068
At 31 December 2018 R_E-N\F+A=+—H 18,068
Change in fair value NAEEE 436
At 31 December 2019 R_ZE-NF+_A=+—H 18,504
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁ%zzwg%\

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(Continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, the

Group leased out a formerly self-occupied industrial
unit located in the PRC and reclassified such unit
as investment properties. The properties previously
classified as prepaid lease payments for land portion
and leasehold land and buildings and site improvements
under property, plant and equipment for building
portion. The carrying value of the land and building
portion on the date of reclassification amounted to
US$829,000 and US$942,000 respectively and the
Group recognised a fair value gain of US$16,297,000
and the resulting tax effect of US$4,783,000 on the
date of reclassification. The fair value gain net of tax
amounting to US$11,514,000 was recognised in
property revaluation reserve in consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

The Group’s property interest held under operating
lease to earn rental is measured using the fair
value model and is classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2019, 31 December
2018 and date of transfer from property, plant and
equipment/prepaid lease payments have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
the respective dates by Avista Valuation Advisory
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers
not connected to the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using income capitalisation
approach. The income capitalisation approach is
calculated by capitalising the rental income derived
from the existing tenancies with due provision for
any reversionary income potential.

10 ¥EYE®)

Wi - BE=—FT—NEFEF=A=—+—HIFEF "
KEE[E T — B R B[R B T %%
7 - IHZETEFAEBIREYE - %
WEZHI# BB HE S FENTHE
HEREZY LR Y% - EESRREE
B T E 1 RIEFRFHHE - RE
FAME  THREZYBS KB E
75 % 829,000 7T % 942,000 7T * ]
KEFREF I8 A BB BE Y
16,297,000 7T % /9 It 2 4 0 7 7% 72 2
4,783,000 7T ° 227 (B 18 Wz 15 FiEE
#,2 11,614,000 T B HA7 A s &
KB Y EE (B EF HR -

REBZYEER AR EROTAE -
HARDES - ZEVEEENRRK
BMEUARABEENGE -

AEBREVENR-_ZT—NEFE+_-A
=+t—H -ZE—\F+=ZA=+—H
MARBERYE  #BSRE&H BN
& IR % B H TR IR S EE i R =
ABERAR ([ ERE]) RSB BH#ETT
REESE  NEBABIUASEREE
& B EM & BN & B M A ] B o

RSN ENDAL BIEN RSV
o (B R SRR B EIRR A -

REMENRABERARAENMOE
FEE - MABREMFTETTEZRKRE
HANHESWABEARE - A HEATE
WAREN i iE & Bt

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(Continued)

The investment properties are categorised into
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and below is a
table which presents the significant unobservable
inputs as at the date of transfer, 31 December

2019 and 31 December 2018.

Valuation technique

hENE

10 ¥EYE 2

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXFTRENGA

BENESIERARBEIEERNE
=% TRESEZEEZEA
F+-_A=+—BEk=Z—N\F+=A
=t+—HEATAIERGA

)

Sensitivity
gE

Investment properties in the PRC Income capitalisation

TR ERES WABK

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3

during both years.

216

Capitalisation rate, taking into account
the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of the property, and
prevailing market condition, of
7% - 8% (2018: 7% - 8%)

BRERT1%-8% (25— \E : 7%-8%)

ERESWAENERL - WEEER
REMHER

Monthly market rent, taking into account
the differences in location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size,

between the comparables and the property,

at an average of RMB33 to RMB36
(2018: RMB33) per sqm per month.
GAMGHE  ZRIMENZR -
ARAT LA 2 R ERIE R -
FIMEEAAD - 98 AGTHA
AREBTEBT
(20185 : AR®33TL) -

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019

A slight increase in the capitalisation
rate used would result in a significant
decrease in fair value, and vice versa

B EMENRER DA EERE
B RZIR

A significant increase in the market rent
used would result in a significant
increase in fair valug, and vice versa.

FRTSRENEZRMEERLLBE
MEZIEI  RZIAA °

RAFREEAREHE=ER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B fR& M

20 GOODWILL 20 BHE
US$'000
FE=T
Cost R AR
At 1 January 2018 and RZE—N\F—A—HK
31 December 2018 —E-)\F#+=-—HA=+—H 7,872
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 45(a)) HE&EMTE Q7] (MizE 45(@)) (7,872)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NAF+_A=+—H -
Impairment RE
At 1 January 2018 and RZZFE—NF—HA—HBK
31 December 2018 —T-N\F+=—HA=+—H 4,283
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 45(a)) H &M B AR (MizF45()) (4,283)
At 31 December 2019 R-E—NF+=—_A=+—H -
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2019 RZEBE—NF+_A=+—H -
At 31 December 2018 R_ZE—N\FE+_A=+—H 3,589

The goodwill is derecognised upon the disposal of
subsidiaries during the year ended 2019. Before
derecognition, the Group tests goodwill annually
for impairment, or more frequently if there are
indications that goodwill might be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill had been
allocated to an individual CGU.

The recoverable amounts of CGU is determined
from value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates,
and expected changes to selling prices and direct
costs during the forecast period. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU. The growth rates are based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

RBE T NFIFELHENBAT
A& EFERR PR o AR LEFERRZ AT » AN
SESRIEFABBETRENR -
MRBEBRBTIEEAESELRE
B RIS R R G AR o BUBLEIAIH
mE - AERSEE —ERRIEREE

fiz -

REUGA & B A RO R RIZEE A
BERETE - St EERBERARANE
2RZXEETEHNEBNFTRE - BE
KAMFERAHANEEERMERER
VTR E o IR RN R
BE - URREFTSE EEEREIEER
A ERFREVIR & BB AR R RO A TE AR 2 R
e MEXRARBEXENIERIBDME
E o HEBRMERERANEEHNUM
SRS IE DI FIE R KB B NV TRHER

EENER

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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218

21

20 GOODWILL (Continued) 20 ™)
At 31 December 2018, the Group prepared cash R_E—NFF+_A=+—HAKEHN
flow forecasts derived from the most recent ReneBARRERIHEEEMSE
financial budgets approved by management for the HEORKAFONTHEERE - WiR
next five years and extrapolated cash flows for the 3% Mg RERFBARAFNRES N
five years based on an estimated growth rate of 2 AUREEARSREFEEZRER
3%. The rate used to discount the forecast cash WIREEI10% - ARARIEERAEAL
flows was 10%. The directors of the Company BERMIRcEMMNITKEENEE
considered that reasonably possible change in REBEEEREMERTEES T T
key assumptions on which the directors of the HRIORSEVMEREEERHAETKRE S
Company have based to determine the CGU’s B o
recoverable amount would not cause the CGU’s
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21
2018
-SR-Sl T — )\
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FET
Unlisted shares and investments: LMD RIEE -
At cost EEZID N 61,381 59,237
Share of post-acquisition reserves, — FEIEULIEE (1 -
net of dividend received MR (17,599) (14,728)
43,782 44,509
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 are set out below:

Place of

incorporation/

registration

Name and operation
R/

25 REELS
Modex Holding Limited (“Modex”) British Virgin
Islands

EBENES

Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. # PRC
ERRBERERAR il
Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd. " Thaiand
%

Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Container PRC
Co., Ltd. * i

EFSBBAEEERAR

21

Ny

RZZE-—HhER=ZE—N\E+=8
=t+—B  AXEBEZFTEBENFZFHF

BT :

Group’s
equity interest

5@
Frft R

44.6%"
(Note 1)
(Wt 1)

40.0%"

25.0%"

35.0%"

[H]

42.9%"
(Note 1)
(FitzE1)

40.0%"

26.0%"

35.0%"

Ly

NElZ

AN
=a

BT It

=)

Proportion of

voting power held
%
RIELLHI

2018

EN\F

Principal
activities

IERH

N
g

40.0%"
(Note 1)
(M 1)

40.0%"

25.0%"

28.6%"

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA

40.0%"
(Note 1)
(FitzE1)

40.0%"

26.0%"

28.6%"

Leasing of
offshore containers
BISRERMNE

Provision of
container storage
and repair
services
BT
R#ERT

Provision of
container storage
and repair
services
REUERRHT
RAERT

Provision of
container storage,
repair and trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
REUERRET
#(&  EER
SEVRH
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21 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21 REBEARZEZR )
(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration Group’s Proportion of Principal
Name and operation equity interest voting power held activities
R/ T5E &
£ REELS Frit R SR FERH
2018
“2N\fF
ALS Singamas Logistics Limited India 30.0%" 30.0%" 30.0%" 30.0%"  Provision of liquid
g (Note 2) (Note 2) tank logistics
(HzE2) (Hizt2) operation
RALREER
MRER
Qingdao Singamas International PRC 42.0%" 42.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" Provision of
Logistics Co., Ltd.* (‘QSIL") i (Note 8) (Note 3)  container storage
BEHEHERIRERAR) (BizE3) (M5£3)  and repair senvices
R ERRRT
RIEERS
Associate held directly by the Company ‘ AR AEEFA B A]
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in & RIFEE B ED R 42 ERBE 7,2 s &
accordance with relevant laws and regulations BhE
" In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital " B Z TR EF MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ﬁéﬂﬁ%iﬁi’%ﬁﬁi\

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Notes:

On 7 February 2018, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company purchased an additional 4,970 shares of
Modex at US$3,957,000. Such transaction increased
the Group'’s interest in Modex from 30.5% to 42.9%
and the proportion of voting power held increased
from 38.3% to 40.0%. On 9 September 2019, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company purchased an
additional 2,596 shares of Modex at US$2,144,000.
Such transaction increased the Group’s interest
in Modex from 42.9% to 44.6% with no change in
proportion of voting power held.

On 25 September 2018, ALS Singamas Logistics
Limited issued 2,700,000 equity shares to its existing
shareholders on a pro-rata basis. The Group allotted
810,000 shares in proportion to its equity interest in
ALS Singamas Logistics Limited, at the consideration
of INR8,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$115,000). There was no change in neither equity
interest nor proportion in voting power held.

On 17 September 2018, a new associate, QSIL,
was formed by a subsidiary of the Company,
Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. (“SLQC”)
and the other shareholder of QSIL. A capital injection
of RMB4,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$603,000) was made during the prior year.

Summarised financial information of a material
associate:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associate is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

21

NE S NT 2R (E)

7 RZF—-—NF-HA+H XRF—F&
Kt 8 F 23 711X 3,957,000 3 7t &% S fE A
Modex 4,970 R R 17 - Z XK 5 < A EH
#f Modex #7 % ## F1 30.5% 12 1l = 42.9%
Ris B REZZEZ G #33.8%1E M2
40.0% > R=F—NEFENANH » KR
Bl — 2B M B F 2 Al 2,144,000 T
1A Modex 2,596 R BR 17 ° % KX 5%
7K 55 [F] # Modex 7 i # H7 42.9% 15 11 =
44.6% - Fris 2 R BIRIHEFF T2 o

2 RZF-NFNLA=Z+AH AS
Singamas Logistics Limited 7 #l71 5 &
R 172,700,000 RR 17 1A 2E R
ALS Singamas Logistics Limited &7 A% #
H ) # 5 B2 810,000 5% 17+ £ 1B A&
8,100,000 EZE 1L (12 747 115,000
L) o REEFFHE B RELL IR -

3 REF—NEFEANA+EH  ALE—HE
RAE B RERA GRS —RE S
BB T —RIHVEE R Al & S BRI
B ERAA] o ZEEHETEARKE
4,200,000 (1ER#7603,000%7T) °

BEAMERBNSHEENREE

BRAREEEARE QR ZMBEER
ZEINT - M MBHENRE /IR
BERBUBRE LN RENVBTRERZ
BERRMHRRPAR ISR -

e
T

BRRRARES A B RR R
N X

eell

,
e
s

Bl
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21 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21 WREERRIZEER®)
(Continued)
Modex Modex

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
-2kl T \F
US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET
Current assets MEEE 16,305 16,885
Non-current assets SEMBEE 162,651 169,032
Current liabilities nBRE (30,284) (16,335)
Non-current liabilities SERBRE (90,378) (99,502)
Non-controlling interest FEPE AR AR R M 2 (163) (a7

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2019 2018
TE-NF i
US$’000 US$'000
TER FET

Revenue EERR 44,060 42,429
Loss for the year FAEE (9,453) (5,677)
Other comprehensive expense FREMEAES N

for the year (3,189) (3,139
Total comprehensive expense FAEE XL BT

for the year (12,642) (8,816)
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

21

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest
in the associate recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

B N B) Z HE

AN
=a

)3

pll

%%ﬁ%%i\\\
B

(%)

S BA RS B R 2R B AR A B 5 AR PR
RZB RN PERRE A R

As at 31 December

B+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF eEyIts
US$’000 US$’'000
FTEx FET
Net assets of the associate B NRIC BEFE 58,131 69,903
Proportion of the Group’s RNEE R Modex 2 FiB
ownership interest in Modex Tt < LE ) 25,926 29,988
Goodwill BES 5,677 4,597
Other adjustments (note) Hpi%E (4,503) (4,503)
Carrying amount of the Group’s A5 B 7 Modex 2
interest in Modex REAREE 27,100 30,082

Note:

The other adjustments mainly relate to the difference

between the consideration for 12.4% equity interests
and the Group’s share of the net asset value of the
additional 12.4% equity interests of Modex based
on the carrying amounts of Modex as at the date of

acquisition.

Mt

Bt 5 12.4% BRIEL (B E N 5 [
JE 15 BT 4K % Modlex BE.9) 12.4% iR 1 & &=
BRIEFEZ FR)ZERE o (ER Modex FE4H

B2 AREEE)

“E-NFFER - BRE
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21 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21 WREERRIZEER®)
(Continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not FEERIEE 2 B R RIARE B R

individually material:

2019 2018
it By Rl —F— )\F
US$’000 US$’000

FEx FET

The Group’s share of profit REBEFESE 2 AE R R H

for the year 2,930 734
The Group’s share of other REE L ZH M

comprehensive expense ZHEZH (119) (550)
The Group’s share of total AEEREGEZEZE

comprehensive income W48 %8 2,811 184
Aggregate carrying amount of RTZA=+T—BA%E

the Group’s interests in (R 2 Bt A R AR BRE (B

these associates at 31 December 16,682 14,427

22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22 REEEEZER
2019 2018
b T\
UsS$'000 US$'000

FEx FET
Unlisted shares and investments: LT 2RO RIKE -
At cost i gD N 6,757 24,415
Share of post-acquisition reserves, — FEIEULIE& (S -
net of dividend received R B U A ) 598 (2,744)
7,355 21,671
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Particulars of joint ventures as at 31 December

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B fR& M

2019 and 2018 are set out below:

Name

EL

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
R/
REEL

Dalian Singamas International
Container Co., Ltd. (‘DSIC") #*
AEBRRREEEERAR "

Fuzhou Singamas Container
Co., Ltd. **
RNBHSEERAR "

Guangxi Singamas Container
Co., Ltd. (‘GSCL") * @
ERBHEREERAR °

PRC
Gl

PRC
hE

22

NEBTEZHERE®)

RZZE-—HhER=ZE—N\E+=8
=t+—B ' XEBZTESETLEFE

T

Group
equity interest

A5E
Frft R

36.8%

40.0%

55.0%

]

36.8%

40.0%

56.0%

Proportion of

voting power held

Fri
AL

Principal
activities

IRRK
2018

—EN\F

33.3%

40.0%

57.0%

—E-hEFH -

33.3% Provision of
container storage
and repair
services
REERMR
R REERE
40.0% Provision of
container storage
and repair
services
SRR
R REER
57.0% Provision of
container depot
and related
logistics
services
REERMR
ESEHR
s

BREEEERRAA

N
g

225
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
R/
REELS

Shanghai Huasing International PRC
Container Freight Transportation i
Co., Ltd. * "(*Huasing’)

FEERARSEA
HEBRAR " ([£R])

22

Group
equity interest
540
Frit R

(Note)
(k)

Equity joint venture established in the PRC in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations

Based on the legal form and terms of the contractual
arrangements, the investment in GSCL is treated as
a joint venture because major decisions relating to
relevant activities require consent of the Group and its
joint venture partner.

These companies are accounted for as joint ventures
as at respective period end date as in accordance with
the memorandum and articles of the companies, major
financial and operating policies of these companies
require the unanimous consent of all directors of the
joint ventures.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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40.0%

Proportion of Principal
voting power held activities
&
RRELLBI FEXH
2018
“EN\E
- 40.0% Provision of
(Note) container depot
(&) and related
logistics services
RALERRN
EHEBR
RERR

WRIZBBZOI RAEER KT 2 e
Bibx

WIZE [FIZPEATZ P FIIFF - GSCL
HIREWR T e BILF - F 866 L5
BB ARRFEEAEER AL BERRE
BHRE -

WRIZE R ARV S ERMERE @ AEL N Al
KERTHRAAE AERE BRALK &
LR FJr)EEH EE LR F RS EL
RO TREEE—HFAF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B fR& M

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)
Note:

In the prior year, the Group held a 40.0% interest in Huasing
and accounted for the investment as a joint venture. In
October 2019, the Group disposed of its entire 40.0% interest
in Huasing to a third party for proceeds of RMB97,000,000

22

REBERZER A

REFERE B EEE 40.0% RIFIL AR BIR
BR—BELE R-ZF—NFFH  FEEY
B2 EALEKI7,000,000 (FHZE1R 13,753,000
ET)HEELE PE40.0%BRIET—F=T - X

(equivalent to US$13,753,000). This transaction has resulted in R G5B B2 B — 1R R - 5TEZT -
the recognition of a loss in profit or loss, calculated as follows.
Us$'000
FET
Proceeds of disposal LEMBES 13,7563
Less: carrying amount of the 40% B AR FRIESI B
investment on the date of loss 40% I E M REEE
of joint control (13,484)
Release of exchange translation reserve ERINEST E i (1,467)
Release of general reserve B — M (12)
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HE—AELENESE
(included in other expenses) (PREEMER) (1,210)
Summarised financial information of material joint EREEPENUBFZELE -

venture:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

BRAAKREEXSELEZMBHERN
ZHEHINT - Tz HBEEHBIE RR
BEEBMHREEARAENOTERR L
AELEMBEMRT RIS

AR E RS SRR R A

Bk D>

BER
/£)\5§

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA

N
g
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‘/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B #5iR<MizT

22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22
(Continued)

DSIC

REECEZER B

REBWREERBERRAR

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2019 2018
- LRl T\
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Current assets MENEE 3,489 5,205
Non-current assets EMBEE 15,463 16,205
Current liabilities mBaE (4,137) (5,044)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (574) (1,894)
The above amounts of assets LM EERBESRE
and liabilities include the following: E®EATHIER
Cash and cash equivalents BehFERE® 1,588 1,446
Current financial liabilities nEBYEER (TEREEN
(excluding trade and other AR 3% B B Ath FE - BR X
payables and provisions) M) (109) (129)
Non-current financial liabilities IERBIBEE(TBEEN
(excluding trade and other AR R K FLAth FE AT BR 5K
payables and provision) KB Hs) (574) (1,897)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁi’%ﬁﬂﬁi\'

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22 REELEEZEZH)

(Continued)

DSIC (Continued) REBWEBEEREFERTRLA

(#&)
For the year ended
31 December
BET-A=1+—HLFE
2019 2018
bRl T — \F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx F=T

Revenue EEEE 11,742 15,880
Profit for the year F A A 796 1,018
Other comprehensive expense FREMEES N

for the year (237) (728)
Total comprehensive income FAEEREETE

for the year 559 285
The above profit for the year LM FEAEEE BE

include the following: ATEVIER -
Depreciation and amortisation e M 5 634 659
Interest income FEUA 6 5
Interest expense FEFZ 70 108
Income tax charge PRS2 290 354

- “E-NFFR - BREECERRAA 229
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B #5iR<MizT

22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22 NEEBLEZEERZ B
(Continued)
DSIC (Continued) AREBWMBEBEREETRAA
(&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Pt B E R E B S B R TR R P
information to the carrying amount of the interest RIRNEBMBEREREER A A ER
in DSIC recognised in the consolidated financial FREE 2 #1ER
statements:
As at 31 December
KR+=—HA=+—H
019 2018
—E-N\F
$'000 US$’000
F=T
Net assets of the joint venture B EEFE 14,241 14,472
Proportion of the Group’s ZIS l TR R 328 5 16 (B B
ownership interest in DSIC KEH EE Az
Fﬁﬁ%@é 5.2 A5l 5,247 5,332
Other adjustments H iz (85) (85)
Carrying amount of 7 5% (B 70 K 538 s O B
the Group’s interest in DSIC SRBERR
R REE 5,162 5,247
Huasing EE
As at 31 December 2018
RZZF—-N\F+HA=+—H
US$’000
F=7T
Current assets MEEE 7,646
Non-current assets EMBEE 17,911
Current liabilities mEaE (5,515)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE =
The above amounts of assets TR EERBESRE
and liabilities include EBENATHIER
the following:
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBE 3,411
Current financial liabilities mEABERE
(excluding trade and (T BEEEMNERR R
other payables and provisions) HE MR BR R N ) (1,907)

230
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B #5R#& Hi st
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22 REELEEZEZH)
(Continued)
Huasing (Continued) BEE(E)
Year ended
31
For the period December
from 1 January 2018
2019 to date BZE
of disposal —=—Z—/\fF
R-B-IF +=A
—-A-B  =+-H
ZHEH ILFE
US$’'000 US$’000
FZET FET
Revenue &SRR 9,615 20,840
Loss for the year FAEE (684) (1,056)
Other comprehensive expense FAEMEES T
for the year (780) (1,545)
Total comprehensive expense FRNEEX HERE
for the year (1,464) (2,601)
The above loss for the year M FEREIEE
include the following: BIEATHIER -
Depreciation and amortisation P& R E 651 906
Interest income FEWA 15 23
Interest expense FERXZ 77 149
Income tax charge FriSHi 213 119

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B #5iR<MizT

22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22 NREBELXEZEZ®)
(Continued)
Huasing (Continued) BE(#E
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ER S B RLRE I IS IR AT
information to the carrying amount of the interest REERSREEE LR
in Huasing recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
As at
31 December
2018
RZZE—)\F
+=—A=+—H
US$’000
FET
Net assets of the joint venture AEMEZEEFRE 20,042
Proportion of the Group’s rEBEREEZMA
ownership interest in Huasing RERE R 2 L) 8,017
Goodwil 5k 2,188
Effect of fair value adjustments FWERARE
at acquisition RN E 3,864
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBEREE 2 ERREE
interest in Huasing 14,069
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not rE B/
individually material:
2018
mt SIS — T\
US$’000 US$'000
FErx FEx
The Group’s share of profit rEBEELZ
for the year N E 5 A 165 86
The Group’s share of other REEFE(S 2 HAth
comprehensive expense FEX M (339) 97)
The Group’s share of total AEERGZEZES N
comprehensive expense 1ERE (174) (11)
Aggregate carrying amount of RTZA=1T—HBA%E
the Group’s interest in these Ehz 6B EBREE
joint ventures at 31 December 2,193 2,35
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁ%zzwg%\

23 EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

23 BRARBEEFANEMEEHINE

Unlisted security ELMES
— Equity security - RARFE S

ZHEmIR
2019 2018
S =\«
US$’000 US$’000
TR TR
18,997 17,482

The Group’s unquoted equity investment
represented 14.0% (2018: 14.0%) equity interest
of Xiamen Xiangyu Superchain Supply Chain
Development Co., Ltd., a logistic company in the
PRC.

The directors of the Company have elected to
designate this investment in equity instrument at
FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term
fluctuations in this investment’s fair value in profit
or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s
strategy of holding this investment for long-term
purposes and realising its performance potential in
the long run. This investment is not held for trading
and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable
future.

AEEFBEZIELEMEHREE BTG
EFfRIEREHREEERROHEBRA
A]14.0% (ZF— \F : 14.0%) I #EH#
& A FITRHRBEE ZYRAR

ARRESERBAZREEEREAA
EBEFAR ARG ESZTE &
RHARARRESHEERAZFREN
ARBERHRINEREARERRK
ZENRAEZSERENERERRER
RIDHRAE T o RRELIFFHEE S
AT ERAERKRHE -

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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24 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 24 FEMFHEENE
2018
—ZE-N\F
US$’000
FET
The Group’s prepaid lease AEBEZENHEERIERSE :
payments comprise:
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong  fE&BAIMbER 2 FAE T 89,962
Analysed for reporting purpose as: ~ FLREMIEH ZOMTaAT ¢
Amount shown under non-current ~ RIERBIEEE R 5B
assets 88,415
Amount shown under current RREBEEZHR SR
assets 1,547
89,962
Upfront payments for leasehold land and R-ZF-—N\FE+=-A=+—H " KFH
buildings in the PRC were classified as prepaid ME 30 MREMOBEN KBS BRTE
lease payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon NEERE - EREEM KRS LR
application of HKFRS 16, the current and non- E165% & -+ 9 Bl &1,547,000% T &
current portion of prepaid lease payments 88,415,000 £ LRI BN R IEREN BZF 75 HY
amounting to US$1,547,000 and US$88,415,000 BENHERREN D BEEEREEE
respectively were reclassified to right-of-use
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B #5R% M3 &\

25 DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT 25 ERBEERE
ASSETS

2019 2018
—E-NEF —N\F
US$’000 US$’'000
FEx FEx

Deposits paid for property, plant and 2 H#73 « #22 &%
equipment (Note j) RiEEe (MiF) 775 6,996

Deposits paid for prepaid lease EfENHEERIE

payments (Note i) 1w’ (Krati) - 12,081
775 19,077

Notes: Kt -

i At the end of the reporting period, deposit of i RIFERIRK + BIIAKHS5,404,0007T (15
RMB5,404,000 (equivalent to US$775,000) (2018: 23 775,0002TT) (ZFE—/\4F : AR
RMB48,019,000 (equivalent to US$6,996,000)) had 48,019,000t ( #8% 186,996,000 7T ))
been paid for the purchases of property, plant and ERIEEYR WS RBIBEZIZE ° BT
equipment. The remaining balance was disclosed HBEERMiF 49 EXEIEEHFE - WHE
as capital commitment as set out in note 49. The EIEEJ@“%F‘_ T -FFhL o
acquisition is expected to complete in 2020.

ji As at 31 December 2018, partial payments for i RZFE-NFF+ZHA=+—H X%
the acquisition of land use rights in Qidong, the BB 5511 A K #82913,000T (1HE R
PRC, amounting to RMB82,913,000 (equivalent to 12,081,000 7T ) tEBEA 7 ) BIEF R
US$12,081,000) had been made by the Group, for the L HEFFRERTES (D E - A ERERT L
development of new factories. T e

INVENTORIES 26 HE

2019 2018

“E-AF aayAGE

US$000 US$’'000

FEx FErT

Raw materials R 46,651 101,035
Work in progress E&m 8,288 46,510
Finished goods 2UPK ih 21,197 74,494
76,136 222,039

The entire carrying amounts of inventories as at R-FE-NFR-F-NFE+=A

31 December 2019 and 2018 are expected to be —‘f’ E' MEEE 2 REFERREA

recovered within the next twelve months. EARR+—EARBIL

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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27 TRADE RECEIVABLES 27 FEUWERFX

2019 2018
t S — T\
UsS$000 US$'000

FEx FET

Trade receivables FEUAR SR 34,049 192,068

Less: allowance for credit losses B (SRBREE (699) (999)

Net trade receivables FEU R FFE 33,350 191,069

At 1 January 2018, trade receivables from RZE—N\F—H—H BEFEA
contracts with customers amounted to &) & FE UL BR 2 A 312,870,000 E 7T ©

US$312,870,000.

A defined credit policy is maintained within AEEDHIE—ERABEERR - &
the Group. The credit terms are agreed with EHRI0KRE120RTNE(ZE—N\F -
each of its trade customers depending on the H30KRE120KTE) BFEREFPZE
creditworthiness of the customers ranging from 30 EE o

days to 120 days (2018: 30 days to 120 days).

The aged analysis of trade receivables, net of RS IR (= B 1B R % 2 FE UL BR
allowance for credit losses, which is prepared HTABRR 5 2B E H I HEAAE KA
based on invoice date of each transaction which R B ALY SIEEREHE) 2
approximated the respective revenue recognition FREROITAT -

dates or date of rendering of services, at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-AF it
US$’000 US$'000

FEx FEx
0 to 30 days TE=+XK 21,055 125,636
31 to 60 days =t+—EXTX 7,337 36,406
61 to 90 days ANT—EATK 3,293 20,294
91 to 120 days At+—ZE—8BZ+X 832 4,653
Over 120 days —BZTRHE 833 4,080

33,350 191,069
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ﬁéﬂﬁ%iﬁi’%ﬁﬁi\

Details of impairment assessment of other

. receivables are set out in note 47(b).

47(b)

27 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27 MEWERFK &)
The Group assessed the credit quality of trade AEBRBELHREREFE 2EEFT
receivables based on historical default rates and HEURR ZEEEX -
the creditworthiness of the customers.
As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s RZE-NAF+ZA=+—HB ' =K
trade receivables balance are debtors with SEvRERKERGEESERE
aggregate carrying amount of US$7,555,000 BA #7,55500E (=& — N\ F:
(2018: US$29,761,000) which are past due as 29,761,000 7T ) 2 8 B FE N AR 3K » B
at the reporting date. Included in the past due AR B & 1E 480 HA e AR 3R+ 1,619,000 3
balances of US$1,619,000 (2018: US$7,281,000) T(ZZF— N\ :7,281,000%7T) B8
has been past due 90 days or more and is not HIQO R A £ BERBERIRFH
considered as in default on the basis that these AEEEREFEBBAER AL THER
are long term customers with on-going business EH o
relationship with the Group.
Details of impairment assessment of trade JE W BR 3K B0 R (B BT 1 BF Al R B 5T
receivables are set out in note 47(b). 47(b) °
28 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 28 AT REMEWFIE
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
- LRl T\
US$’000 US$’000
FEx T=1
The Group’s prepayments and REBEEMN K
other receivables comprise: B IaeTE
Consideration receivables in B E B A R EUWERE
connection with disposal of (Hizt45)
subsidiaries (note 45) 39,456 48,653
Consideration receivables in HE—GETXEE
connection with disposal WERRE
of a joint venture 6,811 -
Advance to suppliers TAHL RS 8,594 37,823
Others HAth 12,381 41,600
67,242 128,076
Analysed for reporting purpose of:  LASRE A& B DT ¢
Amount shown under EMBEEER T2
non-current assets 29,090 =
Amount shown under MEEERE T2
current assets 38,152 128,076
67,242 128,076
| |

H A [ WORK TRURL 18 R {7 R 1B SR BT R

o

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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29

AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) 29 FEW(FERT) B A RIE
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY
The general credit term for trade balances with ERERATNBESEEEEH KR
immediate holding company is 60 days (2018: 60 BOKR(ZZF—/\F : 60K) °
days).
The aged analysis of amount due from immediate RS B NER (5 A B R 245 7,315,000
holding company, net of allowance for credit EFX(ZZF—/\F : 1,077,000 T) Z
losses of US$7,315,000 (2018: US$1,077,000), BREZEERARIRBNERRHZ
which is prepared based on invoice date of each BEAGE - WEERKARE B HE
transaction, which approximated the respective 2)) 2 BRECDATIAT -
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
2019 2018
- IRl —T— \F
US$’000 US$’000
FErn FET
0 to 30 days TE=+XK 947
31 to 60 days =+t—E=XT+X - -
61 to 90 days NT—EATK - 56
91 to 120 days AT+—ZE—BZ+X - 43,830
Over 120 days —BZTRAE 103,530 63,401
105,602 108,234
Analysed for reporting purpose of:  LASRE A B EDHT ¢
Amount shown under EMBEEEE T2
non-current assets 105,602 -
Amount shown under MEEEIEE 28
current assets - 108,234
105,602 108,234

At 1 January 2018, trade receivables from

immediate holding company amounted to

US$543,000.
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R-ZE—N\F—H—H KEEEZEK
NAIME P W FIE & 543,000 37T ©



29

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁ%zzwg%\

AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO)
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, amount
due from immediate holding company with
aggregate carrying amount of US$103,530,000
(2018: US$107,287,000) was past due. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. In
addition, for the trade balances in relation to sales
of containers overdue, a 4% of interest per annum
is charged to the immediate holding company.

As at 31 December 2019, in the opinion of the
management of the Group, these balances are
not expected to be repaid within the next twelve
months and therefore presented as non-current
asset.

Details of impairment assessment of amount due
from immediate holding company are set out in
note 47(b).

The non-trade nature amount due to immediate
holding company is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

29

FEUT (FB1T) Btz RIFKIR
(%&)

R-EBE—hhE+-_A=+—08 " 25
HMWEKREEZRAARELER
{8 /108,530,000 jt( =& — N\ F :
107,287,0003E7T) ° AN B EFL L 4E
BRIF A EMER R o toh - HRE
CERBHEE IR EEERAR]
4% BYEF| B o

R-_ZE-hF+_A=+—B  F~£E
EEERSELHRBRT T EET
AREE » FIiESRIERBEE

&I B #2151 A B F B BB A 5 A4
M EE47(b) ©

ENEEERARSFE S ERARE
HH - BB REEEREH -

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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30 AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) 30 MW (ES) RRMBARKIE
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES
The general credit term for trade balances with ARMBRARMNEBESEEEEH—KE
fellow subsidiaries is 30 to 60 days (2018: 30 to 60 B0E60KR(ZZE—/\F : 30E60K) °
days).
The aged analysis of amounts due from fellow REEHRITKEREXER
subsidiaries, net of allowance for credit losses 2,236,000 7T (ZZ& — /\£F : 332,000
of US$2,236,000 (2018: US$332,000), which FE7r) 2 R R E A RIFIE (AEFR
is prepared based on invoice date of each RPZEZHFE - WEARKARE
transaction, which approximated the respective BEIEA) 2 BRER DA -

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
t- SRl — T )\
US$’000 US$’'000

FEx F=x
0 to 30 days TE=1X 838 929
31 to 60 days =+t—EXTX 214 286
61 to 90 days AtTt—EATR 635 188
91 to 120 days Nt+—&—8=Z+X 157 83
Over 120 days —BZTRHUE 30,425 31,839

32,269 33,325

Analysed for reporting purpose of:  LARE & B KD ¢

Amount shown under EMBEEIER &%
non-current assets 32,269 -
Amount shown under MBEERE T8
current assets - 33,8125
32,269 33,325
At 1 January 2018, trade receivables from fellow RZZE—NFE—A—B8 ' RERRXHEB
subsidiaries amounted to US$97,122,000. NAIHE 5’ FKIE A97,122,000 3
7TE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁ%zzwg%\

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries with aggregate
carrying amounts of US$31,431,000 (2018:
US$32,396,000) were past due. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. In
addition, for the trade balance in relation to sales
of containers overdue, a 4% of interest per annum
is charged to fellow subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2019, in the opinion of the
management of the Group, these balances are
not expected to be repaid within the next twelve
months and therefore presented as non-current
asset.

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries are set out in note 47(b).

The non-trade nature amounts due to a fellow
subsidiary are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT
VENTURES

The amounts due from joint ventures were
unsecured, interest free and fully repaid during the
year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM
ASSOCIATES

Non-current portion of amounts due from
associates included a non-trade balance of
US$10,000,000 (2018: US$10,000,000) bearing
interest at 7% per annum, unsecured and
repayable on demand. The remaining non-trade
balance is unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand. Both amounts are not expected to be
repaid within the next twelve months and therefore
presented as non-current assets.

30

31

32

e (FEAT) B & BB 2 B SKIR
(%&)
R-ZZE—AFE+=-A=+—A0" 23
HHOEERANE AR KBELRE
8 /31,431,000 (= F — N5
32,396,000 7T ) ° NEBE W EpL % F
A ERER R o 1o - BRER
MERMHEEZIRBURREARMBE L
7 4%EFERE

JE U [R) 22 B B A &) 30 I B (B AR s 4
EHRHIFEA7(D) ©

N —RRNBRRIFFEZEEFAR
EEM B ORBEEERAH -

BIEE&E EXMKIR

A BREFARELA - REMBR
MRFRZRER -

FE YU Bk = 2 Rl SRR

FEU B & N B IR IER BN B D B IR IE
E 5%:%810,000,000F L (=T — N\F :
10,000,000%7T) * IRFFIET7BETE -
IR MR B ETERBE - FIHAIE
BoOMBAEER  RERSBETE
A - BEHEMERIEI TEERK
+-EARNEE  ALE2RAEIERHE

= ©
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32

33

AMOUNTS DUE FROM 32 [EUWENE AR KIE (#)
ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Current portion of amounts due from associates EWEE S NAIRIENREB BN RE S
represented trade balance of US$8,421,000 (2018: 4 828,421,000 (= F — /A F -
US$6,082,000), net of allowance for credit losses 6,082,000%7T) * MERERBERER
of US$98,000 (2018: US$151,000). The general 98,0003 7T (=& — /U4 : 151,0003%
credit terms are 30 to 90 days (2018: 30 to 60 L) —MREEHABEVAR(ZFE
days). —\fF : 30E60K) °
The aged analysis of trade related amounts due RwERRIORERBRERZ B
from associates, net of allowance for credit losses, BE N ESHEARB(UAERXSZ
which is prepared based on invoice date of each BEAGE - WEMEERAER B
transaction, which approximated the respective #)) ZBRECDATIAT
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
2019 2018
- LRl T — \F
US$’000 US$’000
FErx F=x
0 to 30 days TE=1X 505 123
31 to 60 days =F+—ZE,TX 69 13
61 to 90 days AT—EATRK 540 139
91 to 120 days At+—=Z=2—8B=+X 306 172
Over 120 days —BZTRKHUE 7,001 5,635
8,421 6,082
At 1 January 2018, trade receivables from RZZE—N\F—A—8 ' KREHKZEQF
associates amounted to US$5,579,000. K FEURBR R A 5,679,000 % T ©
Details of impairment assessment of amounts due JE W Bt & R R FOR BB E R A A E R
from associates are set out in note 47(b). BFIEE47(0)
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 33 RMITHEBRRRE

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 2.75% (2018: 0.01% to
4.10%) per annum.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019

RITEBIZ0.01% E2.75% ( —ZF — )\
F:0.01%E4.10%) Z T 5 FEF| Rt
B o



34

35

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %ﬁéﬂﬁ%iﬁi’%ﬁﬁi\

34 IR

RBERR - BARRAERRHZ
BRBFHE) ZREAFAT

TRADE PAYABLES

The aged analysis, based on the invoice date of
each transaction, of trade payables at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
- B IE:l — T )\

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

0 to 30 days TE=1+X 12,306 54,417
31 to 60 days =t+—=xtX 3,638 30,532
61 to 90 days AT—EATRK 1,851 15,190
91 to 120 days At+—=2—8\=+X 433 12,598
Over 120 days —BZtAMUE 5,012 9,527
23,240 122,264

R B B E S Bl SR 2R I B SR SR AR
PRI ERERIRA -

The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are settled
within the credit timeframe.

35 MEMFERE

RBEHR - BARB(ABRREZ
BITHEE) 2REAT

BILLS PAYABLE

The aged analysis, based on issuance date of each
bills, of bills payable at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

2019 2018

- IRl T — \F

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

0 to 30 days TE=+X 361 21,446
31 to 60 days =F—ETK 817 9,194
61 to 90 days ANT—EATR - 3,808
91 to 120 days At+—=Z=—8=+X - 5,977
Over 120 days —BZt+RHUE 430 39,791
1,608 80,216

- “E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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36 LEASE LIABILITIES

36 HEAE

2019
—EF-NF
US$’000
FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENEEaE
Within 1 year —F AR 2,270
Within a period of more than iR —FERFELAA
1 year but not more than
2 years 739
Within a period of more than BB EREAFIAA
2 years but not more than
5 years 457
3,466
Less: Amount due for settlement B ARTZEARNGEER
with 12 months shown IR REBEZH
under current liabilities HEFE (2,270)
Amount due for settlement after AR+ B A& ‘5%
12 months shown under RIERBEESR
non-current liabilities EojcrR-E] 1,196

37 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 37 [Ext&HF RH Mt EER
FEST B R H b fE A BR B IE E B A A

Accruals and other payables consist provision of
staff cost, selling expenses, construction costs of
new factories and upgrade of facilities, and other

accrued expenses.
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ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

38

Advances from customers
from sales of containers

HES KA AR

TR AR X
2019 2018
N T \F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx T
18,259 43,114

At 1 January 2018, advances from customers
amounted to US$27,942,000.

Advances from customers at 1 January 2019 were
fully recognised as revenue in the current year (1
January 2018: fully recognised in 2018).

When the Group receives a deposit before the
commencement of the production activity, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The amounts due to associates and joint ventures
are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

39

RZE—/N\F—A—H BRERAE
27,942,000 3T °

R-_T—hF—A—-BANAEERFIRNE
FERERA/RA(ZZE-—NF—A—
BRI N\FE2EER) °

EARERFAREERS KNI IZS

5 ERSARMRBEARSE -

p==]

BABERRARAGEERNE

ENBERR RS EERFAS SER
;- RRERIORBEEERAY -
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40 BANK BORROWINGS

40 SRITHERK

2019 2018
IRl T \fF
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Bank borrowings comprise RITERBIEATAR :
the following :
Unsecured R
— within 1 year - AR —FRNEE 23,584 169,796
— more than 1 year, but - BA—F -
not exceeding 2 years BERE_FANEE - 210,640
23,584 380,436
Less : Amount due within one year &l : R —FREZEL
shown under current AVEIB=N =2
liabilities o] (23,584) (169,796)
Amount due after one year AR—FREEY
shown under non-current INE S ES=N
liabilities | - 210,640

All bank loans are unsecured and mainly carry
interest at either London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) or borrowing rate offered by the People’s
Bank of China plus certain basis points and are
repayable within one year (2018: over a period
range from one to two years). Interest is repriced
every one to six months.

The ranges of effective annual interest rates for
year 2019 on the Group’s bank borrowings were
1.89% to 5.22% (2018: 2.00% to 5.22%) per
annum.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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40 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 40 SRITE®)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s RIER - NEBE 2 BEERBAIED
bank borrowings that are denominated in BEEBEEZRITERAT ¢
currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities are set out below:
2019 2018
e ad =\
US$’000 US$’000
FErx FET
RMB AR 701 10,192
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 41 TEEMIEAR

41

INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments represent the
fair value of two interest rate swap contracts,
with notional amounts of US$40,000,000 and
US$70,000,000, that the Company entered to
minimise its interest rate risk exposure arising
from a US$40,000,000 term loan and the
US$270,000,000 syndicated loan respectively, by
fixing the monthly LIBOR at 0.90% and 1.57%.
These two interest rate swap contracts will mature
on 30 March 2020 and 24 May 2020 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
loss on changes in fair value of the interest rate
swaps amounting to US$382,000 (2018: gain of
US$47,000) had been recognised in profit or loss.

MESBMTARARA A THRERARE
Hi & 7% 40,000,0003 7T & # iR B & &
270,000,000 3 7T BT 2 4 2 FI & [ B2
I K7 % % 2 ¥ 9 51 A 40,000,000
J 7T} 70,000,000 7T 2 Fl| RIg HI A 49
WAREE  LUEESARBERITRZE
FEA0.90% K% 1.57% ° LMD F &4
e R —E=-EF=HA="+H
F—E-_FEFRA_F+WBARIE -

HE-_Z—NWF+A=+—81t"
FlEREHENFMEEAN AR EBEERE
/382,000 L ( = F — )\ F : & 7
47,000%%7T) @ W BZEFER o

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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42 SHARE CAPITAL 42 BEA&
Number of shares Share Capital

RH8E e

2019 2019 2018 2018

= i T /\F T\
US$000  HK$000 [VSSVVVRETICI
TER TER TER TARL

Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At beginning and end of FMREFL
the year 2,416,919,918 | 2,416,919,918 268,149 2,078,513 268,149 2,078,513
43 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 43 PIREHKEZ

The Company’s share option scheme (the BRER-_ZZTLF A —BEBANRE
“Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution R ApalzERETE ((&%T8l) =
passed on 1 June 2007 for the primary purpose of ZEMARBESENASECEERE
providing incentives to directors of the Company 8 ZatEIfERE RS EwimEnR
and eligible employees of the Group, and may MBI - RIBZETE C ARRESA
be terminated by resolution in general meeting. REBRETEEREARA - BEARQ
Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company Ak IAEBZRERES -

may grant options to qualifying grantees, including
employees or directors of the Company and/or the
Group.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019 .
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme
was 2,610,000 (2018: 2,850,000), representing
approximately 0.11% (2018: 0.12%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the adoption date, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the offer date without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors of the Company in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days
from the date of offer. An aggregate of HK$1 is
payable by each qualifying grantee on acceptance
of the offer. Options may be exercised within the
option period (must not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant of the relevant option) which
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of grant. The exercise price
is determined by the board of directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

43

PARZ X2 ()

R-ZE—HNhE+-_A=+—8" B
ZETE1EF 2,610,000 (=& — N\ F :
2,850,00017 ) % i B i K17 1F 2 BB A%
B AR RIRZBEEITZRMDA
0.11% (ZF—/\F : 0.12%) o AR
RARIRERE LA AE - RIBZF S A
HEENEFT S MR D B8 TBHBIEAR
NEIRETERBE BB BTN 10% ° 10
KRN RIRE B ALHAE - BLERER
AT TR RGER 2 B 21T R
BT ZRMNEE - THBARQTRN
BEBREEE TR 1% HTEE
RSB IFRITEE 2 EBREGEB
NA RIRAS 0.1% 3B B #8318 5,000,000
PBIC + INABEEAN A RIIRR B RTHLA o

B2 BIEAR T RERR T B st
28 BN - BEREZIR T 26 &K%
BRABIMETE1BT - BRIERER
FE AR ] BE R 1T (35 AR A R A e
EHEATESBB10E)AAHEES
RELEBEEATE - THERESE
E o BMER ()R B AR R KD K
mE: (| B2RREBHpIAELEAR
DFHUTHE K (i) AR FRHEE=
EZBEE -
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43 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continuved) 43 WABRK X (#)

Details of the outstanding share options are as MARITERBRENFBLT -
follows
Number of options Vesting period Exercisable period

BRERE BE B

TR

Option granted on 6 August 2008 (exercise price of HK$1.48):
RZZZNFEN\ARBREHERE (TEERBIT1.48) :

2,953,333 6 August 2008 to 5 August 2009
—EENFNARBE
—ZEThFENAAH

2,953,333 6 August 2008 to 5 August 2010
—EENFNARBE

—Z—ZF)\AAH

2,953,334 6 August 2008 to 5 August 2011
—EENFNARBE
—T—F/\ARA

Option granted on 1 July 2010 (exercise price of HK$1.38):
RZZ—TF+ A —BREAERE (TEE /BT 1.38)

2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011
—TZTFLA—HE
—F——4XxA=+A

2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2012
—TZTFLA—HE
—T——FXA=1+H

2,390,000 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2013

—TZTFLA—HE
—T—=FA=1+H

Singamas Container Holdings Limited < Annual Report 2019

6 August 2009 to 5 August 2018
ZETNFENAREE
—ZT-\FNARA

6 August 2010 to 5 August 2018
—TTFNAREE
—ZT-\FNARA

6 August 2011 to 5 August 2018
—T—FNAREE
—ZT-\FNARHA

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2020
—T—FtA—HZE
—ECZFRNA=TH

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2020
—T——FtA—HZE
ZECZFRA=TH

1 July 20183 to 30 June 2020
—E—=FtA—-HZ
ZECZFRNA=TH
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43 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 43

The following table discloses the Company’s share
options held by employees (including directors of

the Company):

ARz ()

RA M BRRME

TREERE (BEARAES) IFFAR

NRERRE 2 FHE

Outstanding at Forfeited Lapsed Outstanding at Forfeited Outstanding at
1 January during during 31 December during 31 December
2018 the year the year 2018 the year 2019
RZB-NF RZB-NF RZB-NE
-A-H TZA=t-H TZA=t-H
HATE  FRERK EREH HATE  FRERK HAITE
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1)
(Hit1) (Hitz) (Hit1)
Directors % 2,844 - (272) 2,572 (240) 2,332
Employees [EE 47 99) (570) 278 - 278
3,791 (99) (842) 2,850 (240) 2,610

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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43 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 43 BRI (#)
The following table discloses the movements of TRUBRERRFHEERRRERE 2
the Company’s share options by the vesting period FHEH
during the year.
Outstanding at Forfeited Lapsed Outstanding at Forfeited Outstanding at
1 January during during 31 December during 31 December
2018 the year the year 2018 the year 2019
RZB-NF RZB-NF R=B-n%F
-A-A tTZR=t-H tZR=1-A
HATE  EARRN ERXY HATE  EAERN WA
‘000 '000 '000 '000 '000 ‘000
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1)
(Hi#1) (Hi#2) (Hi#1)
Granted on 6 August 2008 A=EZ\EN\BABERL :
- with vesting period of e = S
6 August 2008 10 NRRBEZZEhE
5 August 2009 JNARH 120 (1) (119) - - -
- with vesting period of ez e IS
6 August 2008 10 NAABRE-E-%F
5 August 2010 NAEA 120 0 (119) - - -
— with vesting period of -HERE-FTN\F
6 August 2008 to NAABEZE—F&
5 August 2011 N\RER 621 (17) (604) - - -
Grantedon 1 July2010:  A=E-TELA-ARH
- with vesting period of -fEfm_T-%F
1July 201010 th-A2=%—F%
30 June 2011 ~A=TH 333 - - 333 (80) 253
- with vesting period of -BiEHE=%-%
1July 201010 tA-BE-%-—%
30 June 2012 ~A=TH 1267 (40) = 1,217 (80) 1,187
- with vesting period of s
1July 20101t0 tA-BE-2-=F
30 June 2013 ~A=TH 1340 (40) - 1,300 (80) 1,220
3,791 99) (842) 2,850 (240) 2,610
Fxercisable at the end RELR FITE
of the year 3,791 2,850 2,610
Weighted average MEFAAER (B7)
exercise prioe (HK9) 140 140 1.48 1.38 1.38 1.38
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 43 WK (&)

Notes: Kt -

1 The forfeiture represented the share options granted 1 WRKIER T ARG EEREFE(=F
to the eligible directors of the Company (2018: eligible —NF : KARBIE EBEERIES)HIE
directors of the Company and employees) of the Group, RIETEZFEN TIRBHBIF R
which were forfeited upon their resignations.

2 All share options granted on 6 August 2008 were 2 REZFZENFNANARLZ FrEERE
lapsed on 6 August 2018. ER=ZF—/NF/NNANALIL -

No share option expense was recognised for both R-E-—NFRZF—/\FIEERE

years in 2019 and 2018. X RERR ©

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 44 EEHEEE

The following are the major deferred tax FEERAFERAFEHEIEERER

assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and REEBIEEE (BR)BE RAZHMN

movements thereon during the current and prior 5 &

years:

Revaluation of  Accelerated
Investment tax Undistributed
properties  depreciation profits Others Total
RENE METE i)
EfE RHE Al Hit fag
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn AE 7 TEL FEL
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—A—H - 491 (8,698) (498) (8,705)
(Charge) credit to profit BitAB&Z ()&%
or loss (note 14) (Hiz#14) - (54) (994) 9 (949)
Reversal of withholding tax MER BB AR
upon distrioution BB E% - - 1,650 - 1,650
Charge to equity BT (4,789) - - - (4,783)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\&
+=A=1-H (4,783) 437 (8,042) (399) (12,787)
(Charge) credt to profit or BitABaz () &e
loss (note 14) (it 14) (109) 129 1,638 (14) 1,644
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB A - (326) 4,024 575 4,273
Reversal of withholding tax MBS ERRMAS
upon distribution WA e - - 382 - 382
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+=A=+-H (4,892) 240 (1,998) 162 (6,488)

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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a4

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax credit of US1,638,000
(2018: charge of US$994,000) on the undistributed
earnings of PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures has been recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

At 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax
losses of US$176,454,000 (2018: US$157,812,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. No
tax losses has been recognised as deferred tax
assets due to the uncertainty of its recoverability.
The Group is not entitled to future benefits from
certain tax loss following from the disposal of
subsidiaries (note 45(a)) during the current year.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
US$3,976,000, US$13,336,000, US$16,998,000,
US$11,881,000 and US$18,303,000 that will
expire in 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 (2018:
US$2,240,000, US$9,785,000, US$14,690,000,
US$17,050,000 and US$12,756,000 that will
expire in 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023)
respectively. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of US$2,772,000
(2018: US$2,196,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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EEZHEERE®)

BIBEPBEPEMESRE  PBEMEAQ
A BEARREGELEAE_TENGF
—A— BRERAEMNBRAKRER o
1,638,000 X L 2 EERIEBEE £ (ZF
—/\F : 994,000 ETX ) EFFAZE
—hE+= ﬂ +—HIEFEESES
PRFBAR BERARAREERER
;‘)fﬁéfiﬁﬁuzz%uﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁa °

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H K&
B %A R {5 AT I8 E518 176,454,000 3
T (== — )\ : 157,812,0003 7T ) A]
HAEMRBEZER &M - BRAREE
EEHAIE M - ET R AETER
HEENMIEER - "EERAFER
HEM B AR (M 3E45@) @ &%
MHELEHRIFEBES AR ZE - X
W 2 T 18 51814 3,976,000 & 7T
13,336,000 * 16,998,000t *
11,881,000 7t & 18,303,000 7T 5 Al
N_EBE-TF . _FE——F . _F——
F T =FRZIZZNEFIH(Z
Z— \F : 2,240,000 7t * 9,785,000
T+ 14,690,000 7T + 17,050,000 3
JT ] 12,756,000 T H BIRA T — h
FZETF T —F- =%
TTFERZITI=FIHE)  HrEE
AR PR EAE T o

REREHR - A& B A 0] 3 08 R 1%
ZR B2,772,000E T(ZF — N\F:
2,196,000% 7T ) ° AT KA 8L A FERR
Fos AR RN EREER - |/
R Btz S R M NE R Z ERRE
IEBIBEE ©
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45 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group disposed of its entire issued
registered capital of five of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, namely, Qidong Singamas
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd., Qidong Pacific
Port Co., Ltd., Qingdao Pacific Container
Co., Ltd., Ningbo Pacific Container Co.,
Ltd. and Singamas Container Holdings
(Shanghai) Limited (together, the “Disposal
Group”), to an independent third party for
a cash consideration of RMB3,502 million
(equivalent to approximately US$493.2
million) as at date of disposal. The Disposal
Group are incorporated in the PRC and
are engaged in the businesses including
manufacturing of dry freight, specialised
and refrigerated containers, provision of
terminal services and provision of technical
and development services of container
manufacturing in the PRC. The net assets at
the date of disposal are as follow:

45 HEKEAF

(@)

RZZE—hhE+ZHA=+—H
LEFEFEARN AKBUBRESRE
35.0218 ARBE (FEE R #14.932
BET)HERHMEZENBAR
(BREBERBMeEREEERA
A BRAEEBERAT - F
ERXFERBERAR  BREAF
EEBRAFEBMERE R
(E8)BRAR(&EIHEHA
D) EMPEBITHFMERT
—BUFE=F - BEMARNFH
A - WA R E 2B
BIERERSRME  FESEMS
RRREER - RIS RMATEE
AR 75 LA R IR SR R AR RS Rl K&
AR - NS B FEE
LU
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45 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

45 HEMBAR )

(Continued) @ (&)
US$'000
FET
Consideration: RE:
Cash received during the year E AR & 454,284
Cash consideration to be received  SHKEREVIR & HKIE 38,907
Total consideration B 493,191
Analysis of assets and liabilities CEXZEFIEZEEREBEDT :
over which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment YIS - WS AR IR 271,069
Right-of-use assets EREEE 40,357
Goodwill P 3,589
Deposits for non-current assets ERBEEZS 17,502
Inventories w8 156,568
Trade receivables JEW AR X 105,905
Prepayments and other receivables — Fa 1<t & E fib & Uk 48,110
Amount due from immediate FEN E B ERR A A T.l')\IE
holding company 76,839
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries &Y (7 £ K1 & 2 R15IA 13,752
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB MRS 47,802
Trade payables FETER X (88,935)
Bills payable JET =B (53,419)
Accruals and other payables & .:Jr%%ﬂ%&ﬁﬁﬂf (NES (51,920)
Advances from customers TEYER (24,519)
Lease liabilities HES Tf (2,009)
Amounts due to Singamas group FEHH%W’% lthE (11,458)
Amount due to an associate JEA—HBit & A RIFIA (18)
Bank borrowings RITERK (69,858)
Tax payable FEfI AR IR (950)
Deferred tax liabilities BEBIEBE (4,273)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 474,134
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEME AT W :
Consideration received and B2 Y K i B (B
receivable o 493,191
Net assets disposed of HEZHEE (474,134)
Expenses attributable to the disposal HEFFEA M E FH (11,296)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BT B A Bl WS 7,761
Net cash inflow arising HEELEZFRERA
on disposal:
Cash received WeER R & 454,284
Less: expenses attributable to B HEEENEA
the disposal . (11,296)
Less: payment of settlement of B I REERE O &R (R
current account balances (note) } (79,133)
Less: bank balances and cash B HEZRITEB LIRS
disposed of (47,802) -
316,053
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45 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Note: Settlement of current account balances is

one of the conditions of settlement of the
consideration by the buyer.

The Group also struck off of two subsidiaries
with total gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of US$10,000. Details of the assets and
liabilities over which control was lost is not
presented.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Hui Zhou Pacific Container Co.,
Ltd. (“HPCL”), a subsidiary principally
engaged in container manufacturing
business in PRC, to an independent
third party for a cash consideration
of RMB735,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$107,093,000). The net
assets at the date of disposal are as follow:

45 HEMBAR )

@)

(%&)

Hiet : BEAXFOESRBELAER
BEVIRIEZ — e

AEBEFTETMRRMBAR
HERTB A R/ RN & 10,000
EIC o REEHENEEMAE
AR EY -

R_ZE—NF+_A=+—H
LEFEA AEENURESKE
735,000,000 A R E(HHER A
107,093,000 % 7T ) H & # A B
AKFEEEAR DR ([EMNAFED
MEPERT—BYFE=H " B
MR FEAEEREENTFAR ' =2
RHABRREEREEEER - B
HEBHRFEENT -
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45 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 45 HEMBAR )

(Continued)
(b)  (Continued) L) (&)
US$’000
FET
Consideration: RME:
Cash received in 2018 - \FHEBHRE 58,440
Cash received in 2019 “E-NFREHRE 48,653
Total consideration BB 107,093
Analysis of assets and liabilities CEXZHIECEER
over which control was lost: BB
Property, plant and equipment I E Y L] 22,546
Prepaid lease payments FENHERE 4,763
Inventories FE 4,777
Non-current assets classified as NEAGEEERERDEE
assets held for sale 3,380
Prepayments and other receivables  Faf<t & E fib & W 708 54
Bank balances and cash RITEHB MRS 10,872
Bills payable AN (5,579)
Other payables H A ERTBR K (11,381)
Tax payable FESTRE IR (750)
Dividend payable JERTAE (2,669)
Net assets of disposed of HEZFEE 26,013
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: H&—HEB QR W :
Consideration received B YN K i R BB
and receivable 107,093
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE (26,013)
Expenses attributable to the disposal & FTE £/ & (15,476)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—WBAF e 65,604
Net cash inflow arising HEEEZHESRAFE
on disposal:
Cash received BWEE RS 58,440
Less: expenses attributable to B HEMEANER
the disposal (15,476)
Less: bank balances and B HEZRITESREIRS
cash disposed of (10,872)
32,092
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debt, which includes the bank borrowings
and lease liabilities disclosed in notes 40 and 36
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated
profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47 £MTH
a. Categories of financial a. &SRIIAEZESE
instruments
2019 2018
—E-AF i3
US$’000 US$’000
TET FET
Financial assets EREE
Equity instrument at FVTOCI  #Z AR BEF AHMEE
ez Em T H 18,997 17,482
Financial assets at IR EK AT EN SR EE
amortised cost 361,973 530,293
Derivative financial instruments T4 $ gl T & 41 1,061
381,011 548,836
Financial liabilities cRaE
Amortised cost BEGHACAR 66,639 612,855
Lease liabilities HERE 3,466 —
b. Financial risk management b. HMHFEKREEBBRERBIRK

objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include equity instrument at FVTOCI,
derivative financial instruments, trade
receivables, other receivables, trade
payables, bills payable, other payables,
bank borrowings and current accounts
with immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
and bank balances and cash. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

47 I R#)

b. Financial risk management b. MBFEKEERBBERERK
objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Market risk T 353 JEL Bk
() Currency risk )  EEEE

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group
does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge against its exposure to
currency risk, however, the directors
of the Company manage the risk by
closly monitoring the movement of the
currency rates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated

AEEBTHERRE A
SNEEETTIHE R BRIB - Sh
BRITHEBIAS - AR
RITEE AEERAMA
A NE R R o R E I
BEAE R OTAES [ Eh
HAAZ W EBER - &
> ARABEFEBEY
EEEREHRERE LR

iGe
AA

o

R¥RE B - REE LS
BeitE<EREERER

monetary assets and monetary BEZREENT :
liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:
Assets Liabilities
&gE =i

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hF el —F— 51 eyl

US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$’000

FEx FEx F=T

RVB ARE 152,100 92,947 29,871 233,514
HK$ BT 4,095 3,625 454 27,078
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to
exchange fluctuation of RMB.

The sensitivity analyses include non-
derivative monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies which are different from
the functional currency of the relevant
Group entities. If RMB depreciates
by 5% (2018: 5%) against the US$,
the post-tax loss for the current
year will increase by US$4,365,000
(2018: post-tax profit increase by
US$5,020,000), and vice versa. This
is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding at the end of the
reporting period on RMB receivables,
bank balances, bank borrowings
and payables assuming they are
outstanding for the whole year.

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk primarily relates to floating
rate borrowings, variable rate bank
balances and pay-fixed/receive-
floating interest rate swaps. The
Group’s fair value interest rate risk
arose from fixed interest rate lease
liabilities. Interest rate risk on bank
balances is considered immaterial
due to short maturity. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate
risk.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk
(Continued)
The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk on non-derivative financial
instruments is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of LIBOR arising from
the Group’s variable-rate borrowings.

In order to minimise the Group’s
interest rate risk exposure arising
from a US$40,000,000 term loan
and the US$270,000,000 syndicated
loan, the Company entered into two
interest rate swap contracts, with
notional amounts of US$40,000,000
in 2016 and US$70,000,000 in
2017 respectively, to fix the monthly
LIBOR at 0.90% and 1.57%. These
two interest rate swap contracts will
mature on 30 March 2020 and 24
May 2020 respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below
has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for
bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. For floating rate
bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point
(2018: 50 basis point) increase or
decrease in interest rate represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

47 I R#)
B EKREREBERBE

b.

(&)
5 R (&)
(i)  HERENERELE (&)

AEEZFTEERTA
RengMxRkIBEE
PR BRITRERF SR
MU AEENZEEE
KHEZIEENTE -

ETHRERTHER
40,000,000% 7T X iF B
B 270,000,000 T Ff
EEZFERR @ &AQF
RZE—REFERZZT—+t
FHREIN T WA B E
% %8 9 40,000,000 % 7T K&
70,000,000 3 T 2 | & 32
HEY UNEEEABH
RITRIZEHRER0.90% &
1.57% ° 5% M 10 F) X 12 B
BHDRBR T _FF
—A=Z+tHAER=_ZT_ZF
AAZ-+MHBEERE -

LA T8RRI 5 AT T AR B R
TEEEHRREHRL
FEREBMmIEL o BLERTT
BEZEME ot
BRERMEPRKREES
BENEEAEFREESR
BN - TEENGHF
2 T] B IR A B I BR A
508 F(=ZZF—\F :50
BhF) 2 PRI - DARER

EREHAEzARE
2 -

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA

263



/ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %34 B #5iR& Mz

264

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk
(Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
If interest rate had been 50 basis
points (2018: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 December 2019
would have increased/decreased by
US$117,000 (2018: post-tax profit
would have decreased/increased by
US$1,423,000) attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable rate bank borrowings and
pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate
swaps.

(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its investment in
an unquoted equity security. The
Group invested in an unquoted equity
security for investee operating in
logistic industry sector for long term
strategic purposes which had been
designated as at FVTOCI at the end
of the reporting period. Sensitivity
analysis for unquoted equity
securities with fair value measurement
categorised within level 3 were
disclosed in note 47(c).
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
Group’s counterparties default on their
contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk exposures are primarily attributable to
trade receivables, bank balances, amounts
due from immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures and other receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade balances
with immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associates)

Before accepting any new customer, the
Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade balances
with immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associates) (Continued)
The Group’s credit risk is concentrated on
the amounts due from immediate holding
company and its fellow subsidiaries, which
totally account for 38% of the financial
assets at amortised cost. These amounts
are past due and considered to be credit-
impaired. The management of the Group
has continued to follow up with the
repayment status and reported to the board
regularly. The management of the Group,
as part of the monitoring measures, also
requested information from the immediate
holding company to obtain understanding
of its operating and financial performance,
operation update, and other relevant market
factors, which enable the directors of
the Company understand the repayment
ability of the immediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries, and accordingly,
determine the best estimation of the
amounts that cannot be recovered. Other
than trade balances with related parties,
the Group has concentration of credit risk
as 15.7% (2018: 19.1%) and 53% (2018:
56%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively within
the manufacturing segment. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade balances
with immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associates) (Continued)
In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually or based on provision
matrix. Except for significant balances or
credit-impaired amounts which are assessed
for impairment individually, the remaining
trade receivables are grouped under a
provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment
histories for recurring customers and current
past due exposure for the new customers.
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
these trade receivables is not significant.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are reputable
banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for bank balances
by reference to information relating to
probability of default and loss given default
of the respective credit rating grades
published by external credit rating agencies.
Majority of the bank balances are placed
in banks with credit ratings of AA and A.
Based on the average loss rates, the 12m
ECL on bank balances is considered to be
insignificant.

Amounts due from associates

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the associates. The Group’s
credit risks in these balances are mitigated
through the value of the assets held by
these entities and the power to participate
the relevant activities of these entities. In
determining the ECL for amounts due from
associates, the management of the Group
uses internal credit rating based on the
past due information and adjusted for any
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, as appropriate. As at
31 December 2018, the Group assessed the
ECL for amounts due from associates were
insignificant and thus no loss allowance
was recognised. For the year ended 31
December 2019, allowance for credit loss of
US$151,000 was recognised.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Other receivables

The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information. The directors of
the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12m
ECL. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group assessed the ECL for other
receivables and deposits were insignificant
and thus no loss allowance was recognised.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables and
allowance for credit loss of US$11,000 was
recognised.

As part of the Group’s credit risk
management, the Group used an internal
credit rating by assigning an individual loss
rate to each of its debtors with significant
balances and provison matrix for the
remaining debtors. The estimated loss
rate are based on aging of individual trade
debtors as well as historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The Group applied internal
credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

47 I R#)

b. MHEREEBERER

(%)

FEEREBEETE 2

Trade receivables,

trade related amounts due

from immediate holding

company, fellow subsidiaries

Internal creditrating  Description and associates Other financial assets
B - BUERERAR -
AZNEAARBELR
RBEETR i ESRERE HirepEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
default and does not have any not credit-impaired
past-due amounts
el RPHFENRRRELRA FENRSEREL - 12fIARHERER
EmaHesE REEEHE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
dates but usually settle after not credit-impaired
due date
BRYE ERAGFEIAREER FENRESREREL - 12fIARHERER
EREENMAREE REEEHE
Doulbtul There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
REH BRBNPRENESRIMTER FENESRERRL - FESRAERE -
SRR - EERBEZEN REEEHE RBEEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
asset is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
[ ERBRAVBREREEERE FENRSEREL - FESRAERE -
FERE {EER(E
Wite-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
it EERAERARRBENNBNS - 2ECRTH SRR

AEEZRREERAREAR
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the maximum exposure to credit risk
and ECL for trade receivables, trade related
amounts due from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and associates,
non-trade amount due from an associate
and other receivables, which is represented
by their carrying amounts.

47 I R#)

b.

M EREEBRRER
(%)
ERERRBETG(E)

TNREREBERKER L ERE
BIER AT - FRNEAR L
LRAINEZHEBBIR - ARRE
BEE7IMEIE S AR]IIEE 5
B R IR Ko B At FE MR IR ) R KA
B M IEHERERX

2019 2018
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
credit rating amount amount
-SR-S T — )\
W EB S B FEAR IREATHE EEHEE:Ex
US$’000 US$'000
TErn Fx=7
Trade receivables (significant Low risk 12,286 147,848
or credit-impaired (Ve
balances assessed Watch list 8,248 13,392
individually) BiReE
FEH AR TR (B AR MR Bl FT Doubtful 1,214 7,957
ERXIBHRE) RIZER
Loss 701 2,070
PN
22,449 171,267
Trade receivables (not N/A 11,600 20,801
credit-impaired and NE
assessed in provision matrix)
RN R (BEAXER
A 5 B P 2T A )
34,049 192,068
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

47 I R#)

b. MHEREEBERER

(%)

FEEREBEETE 2

2019 2018
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
credit rating amount amount
TE-AF iyt
W EB S B FEAR IREASHE EEHEEEEEE
US$’000 US$'000
FTErx T
Trade related amount due from Loss 112,917 109,311
immediate holding company (2018: Doubtful)
(credit-impaired and assessed Bx
individually) —E-)N\F:
FEMW B B 1R A B E 5 1BRERIAE RIZEHR)
(B AXE LA RIFHH)
Trade related amounts due Loss 34,505 33,657
from fellow subsidiaries (2018: Doubtful)
(credit-impaired and assessed =S
individually) (ZZ—N\#F:
JEW R R M8 A 518 S 18RRI RIZAR)
(fEAXE RERIFE)
Trade related amounts due from Doubtful 8,519 6,233
associates (assessed individually) REZAR
FEWEE & N A 2 5 A8 B s IE (1R Bl 14
Non-trade amount from an associate Doubtful 13,154 12,456
(assessed individually) IR
B & A RIFEE S AERA TR IE
(ERIFTE)
Other receivables (assessed individually) Low risk 50,307 59,246
F b & WO E (& Bl 74 ) iV
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

As part of the individual assessment of
the lifetime ECL for each significant trade
balances (including those with immediate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries)
and other credit-impaired trade receivables,
the management of the Group has obtained
an analysis on the counterparties’ credit
risk characteristics by reviewing the trading
history and historical settlement pattern
with the Group. Such analysis also include
operational update and financial position, to
the extent the Group is possible to obtain
such information or from the observable
data in the market. The management of the
Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL
individually based on expectation on cash
flows that take into account the credit risk
characteristics of individual debtors taking
into consideration of historical settlement
record adjusted to reflect current conditions
and forward-looking information that is
reasonably and supportably available to
directors of the Company without undue
cost or effort, and are updated at each
reporting date if considered to be required.

47 I R#)

b.

M EREEBRRER
(%)
ERERRBETG(E)

ERHEBREEAR HERF( a%
BB AT AR m AR E BB A
mx%%@)%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ
B E R R G E — 2B R E A

EERBANEKRER  K&E
EIEERBLRERSE S MEER

SENELEEEANEZIFETF
W{E AR ECETT T 2T © %
“ﬁ%@%%ﬁ%%&%%#

AR E BRI EERLERE
%imm%iﬁﬂT%mm%
B AEBERERERFGEFE
HFEHEABARERNERERE
WITEHER - W ZE B2 EBIEE AR
F%H SRR WERE AR

ATAR S M AR S 45 H ao i
ﬂﬁ AESEINTHENER
HBENT  ZEEAENAZIFH
ATEMEER - WESERSE A H
B (R ESMER) o
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

For the remaining trade receivables, it is
grouped based on similar loss patterns
as reflected in the trade receivables and
provision rate is applied using the historical
observed default rates of the trade balance
taking into consideration of forward-
looking information that is reasonably
and supportably available to the directors
of the Company without undue cost or
effort, and are updated at each reporting
date if considered to be acquired. Such
forward-looking information is used by the
management of the Group to assess both
the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date.

The increase in the loss allowance made
for amounts due from immediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries is to reflect
the credit-impaired status during the current
year. Other than this, there is no significant
changes to estimation techniques and
assumptions made during the current year.

Movement in lifetime ECL by different class
of financial assets is disclosed in the below
table.
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(%)
ERERRBETG(E)
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continvec) 47 &I E (%)

b. Financial risk management b. MBFEKEERBBERERK
objectives and policies (Continued) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment EERRREETHE)
assessment (Continued)
Trade
related Trade Trade
amount due related related Trade
from  amounts amount related Trade
immediate ~ duefrom  duefrom  amounts related  Non-trade
holding fellow immediate  duefrom  amounts amount due
Trade Trade  company subsidiaries holding fellow  duefrom froman
receivables  receivables under under  company subsidiaries  associates  associate Other
under under ~ ECL{not  ECL (not under under  underECL  underECL  receivables

ECL (not  ECL (credit- credit- credit-  ECL (credit-  ECL (credit-  (not credit-  (not credit- under
credit-impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  impaired)  12mECL
FEORE GRORD GENED  GEOED  RROEY  AEERY
ERBAT ERBAT ERBAT GREAT ERBAT  GRBAT
GEEED FRORE RUERER BUBZME BYUERER RUBZNE  BUBE  RUBE  10ERRE
ERBAT GREXT AHEREE  AHER A9  AHER  NRER  QEFES  GRAAT
R BUBR RE(EER  MERE BERE EERE BERE RERH HEf
(BERRE) (RRIR) %8 (BERZR) (ERXR) (GRIR) (BERXR) (BGRIR)  BURE
US§1000 US000 US§000 US81000 US§1000 US§000 US§000 US§1000 US§000
S0 S T3 T3 S SE T3 T3 S

Asat 1 January 2018 RZF-\E
-R-H - 649 5 97 - - 5 - -

Alowancefor creditlosses ~~ HEASREE

recognised for newy ERERER

originated financial

assets 381 - 1,075 22 - - 96 - -
Alowance for creitlosses ~~ FNEREE

reversed on financia BEN=E-\E

assets at 1 January —f-BheR

2018 e to setflement BELER

during the year BRER - = ] (647) - - - - -
Translation diference BEEE - (31) = = - - - - -

Asat 31 December 2018 f/\:?*/j\

tZA=1-H 381 618 1,017 332 - - 151 - -
Alowance for credft fEAGREE
losses recogrised for [ERERER
newly originated
financial assets 16 - - - 6,531 1,922 5 151 1
Trensfer to creait-mpaired ~ EBEERRE - - (184 (314) 784 314 - - -
Alowance for credit HIVERES
losses reversed on EHEN-F-NE
financial assets —A-Ak
at 1 January 2019 SHEEL
due to setterment EREXER
during the year (366 - (29 (18) - - (108) - -
Tranglation difference HEZE - (10) - - - - - - -
Asat3i December 2019 R-E-NE
tZA=1-H 91 608 - - 7315 2,236 % 151 11
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

The Group writes off trade receivables when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants or to timely negotiate
with the lenders if any non-compliance is
expected.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities based on the agreed repayment
dates. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %74 B #5R% M3 uf\

47 E£@MIR#®)

Financial risk management b. HMHERKEEBERBRK
objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE &R (E)
2019 —EB-NF
Weighted  On demand Total
average or less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5years  cash flows amount
MEHS BREEED =& =f8R -z AHR
BRAE  HR-fAA =faA E-F I ReMEAE  RESE
% Us$000 US$000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TR TR iR TR i1 T
Trade payables FEfARRT - 5,445 5,489 12,306 - 23,240 23,240
Bills payable S - 430 1,178 - - 1,608 1,608
Other payables LA - 14,410 3,200 40 - 17,749 17,749
Amount due to ENEREER
immediate holding UNTE4
company - 103 - - - 103 103
Amount due to a fellow EN—RZNE
subsidiary UNTE4 - 14 - - - 14 14
Amounts due to R
assoclates FA - 265 - - - 265 265
Amounts due to ﬁL\ B%
joint ventures FB - 76 - - - 76 76
Bank borrowings RITEH
~ interest bearing - BEE
borrowings* 3.45% 19,927 3,159 567 - 23,653 23,584
Lease liabities HEak 5.00% 216 433 1,738 1,44 3,631 3,466
40,886 13,558 14,651 1,244 70,339 70,105
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management

47 I R#)
b. MEEKREEBERBK

objectives and policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nBEEER(Z)
2018 —E-N\F
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orless than 1-3 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-years  cashflows amount
METY EfRERY =z =f&A -3 RER
ERAE  R-fER =fAA E—F 1E BenEls RaSH
% US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
=5 = T TEn TEn TEL
Trade payables JEfTHER - 22,125 45,723 54,416 - 122,264 122,264
Bills payable ES - 27,681 24,859 27,676 - 80,216 80,216
Other payables EAb R - 14,617 7941 7,309 - 29,867 29,867
Amounts due to EABERF
assoclates B - 63 - - - 63 63
Amounts due to EREERE
joint ventures 3B - 9 - - - 9 9
Bank borrowings BITER
~ interest bearing -HERE
borrowings* 4.33% 44,622 23,843 104,457 203,192 396,114 380,436
109,117 102,366 193,858 223,192 628,533 612,855

For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings,
the weighted average interest rate at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted
cash flows analysis.

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.
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47 EMIR®)
ERMTEZAREE
BEreRmEERSBAGBIAR

EBESFIIWT

47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c. Fair value of financial instruments C.

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

the fair value of equity instrument
at FVTOCI is determined by the
independent valuer using valuation
techniques including earnings
multiples (based on the historical
earnings multiples of comparable
listed companies) and discounted for
lack of marketability.

the fair value of derivative financial
instruments is made of discounted
cash flow analysis using the
application yield curve and forward
rate for the duration of the instrument
for non-optional derivatives; and

the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding
equity instrument at FVTOCI and
derivative financial instruments)
are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

BRARBEFAREMER
Wz = TENARE
BEHRBEEMERGEE
TERETE - BREWEER
(ER A EH R RRE
P EE RS RRZ M5 1
¥4 -

TTEEMIAZAAEE
M IR Z OTET A
A FE PR M s R AR ET E AT
ETAZBMRBETI
BREREDIN R

HemEETRAE
(TREZEAABEFAR
2w 2 e T AN
TEERmTR) 22 nEE
SHREERMEREN
EIRREREDNEE °
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The derivative financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
this financial instrument are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

° Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

C.

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial

assets and financial liabilities that

are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (Continued)

Financial assets

THEE

Unquoted equity investment
at FVTOCI

FLmRERERAA(BE
AR R AL

Interest rate swaps
classified as derivative
financial instruments
in the consolidated
statement of
financial position

RERHBIMAR AR
ITESRT A HXRH

47 I R#)

c. EMIAZNREE#E
REEEREERFEAEHDN
THEEMEREBZARE
EH#E)

Fair value Fair value
AARE hierarchy Valuation technique and key inputs
019 018 AAEEER HETERTEHE
: “T-\&
$'000 US$'000
TET
18,997 17,482 Level 3 Market approach*
The key inputs are
(1) price-to-earnings multiples of
comparables and
(2) discount for lack of marketabiliy.
E= "
BREER -
(1) FILEYHTHREEHA
Q) BBt -
| 1,061 Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on forward interest
rates (from observable forward interest
rates at the end of the reporting period)
and the contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.
FH FEBLRE - KRR REBRMEIRE

EHNR (NREHRNTERRENR)
RAENE - ZRBZRFHTEER
AA%X%EEO
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

c. Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial

assets and financial liabilities that

are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (Continued)

* Significant unobservable inputs
include:

- price-to-earnings multiples
of comparables, taking into
account of the scale of the
business of the comparables
and other individual factors
such as dividend yield
generated by the comparables
at 8.11 times (2018: 7.24
times). A slight increase in the
price-to-earnings multiples
would result in a slight increase
in fair value and vice versa.

- discount for lack of
marketability, taking into
account of the results from the
finnerty option pricing model
of 17% (2018: 19%). A slight
increase in the discount for the
marketability would result in a
slight decrease in fair value and
vice versa.

If the discount on lack of marketability
to the valuation model is 1% higher/
lower, while all the other variables
were held constant, the fair value
would decrease/increase by
approximately US$229,000.

There were no transfers between

Levels 1 and 2 in the current and prior
years.
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 47 EriIE (%)
c. Fair value of financial instruments c. EMIBEZAREBE#E)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value FEZR AR BEAZHER
measurements
Financial assets
at FVTOCI
BRAREETA
Hih 2wz g
EREE
US$’000
SEedr
As at 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—HF—H 20,534
Fair value loss in other REMEEBEN AL BEER
comprehensive income (3,052)
As at 31 December 2018 R_ZE—NFE+_A=+—H 17,482
Fair value gain in other REMEEYEAA L BERE
comprehensive income 1,515
As at 31 December 2019 HAR 4555 18,997

Included in other comprehensive income
is an amount of US$1,515,000 gain (2018:
US$3,052,000 loss) relating to unquoted
equity investment classified as equity
instrument at FVTOCI held at the end of the
current reporting period and is reported as
changes of investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values, determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

RERREHRFERSEEM
2HEWzEAE1,515,0003% T HY
Was (ZF—/\4F : 3,052,000
THER) RBREIEARA
BETAHREMEEKEMNIELES
ERERE  WEFRN _T—hEF
T A=+ RAZBREEHER

RRABESZARNEE P HHREK
tRemEELRSRMBE I HE
REMEEEQAAEERE R
B RRERENNT - HREE
BXHEERAMEE
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47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Financial instruments subject
to enforceable master netting
arrangements

The Group has entered certain derivative
transactions that are covered by the
International Swaps and Derivatives
Association Master Agreements (“ISDA
Agreements”) signed with a bank. These
derivative financial instruments are not
offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the ISDA Agreements
are in place with a right of set off only in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts.

As at 31 December 2019, the gross amount
of derivative financial instruments that
are subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements are US$41,000 (2018:
US$1,061,000). No deposit was placed
with the counterparty. No further disclosure
is provided as all the outstanding derivative
financial instruments as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 were entered into with one
counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements “Z& ﬁﬂ%iﬁi’%ﬁﬁi\

48 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Amount

due to

immediate

Bank holding
borrowings  company
ENERER

BER  DARE
US§000 US§1000

48

MERPEENEBEYER

TRETAEEAGEEAREETHELN
Bt ERESIEReNE L - @&
EREANBERERENEBLIH
SEAEENGERERERANDER
Eﬁﬁ%@]%izfﬁfﬁmu °

Amount Amounts
dueto  Amounts due to
afellow due to joint  Dividend Lease

subsidiary ~ associates  ventures payable liabilities
Efi-EZ2  Ef¥E  EfRE
WEAFRE  AERE  LERE EARE HEER

USS000  USBo00  USS000  USB0OD  USS0QD

SE Tin i SE Tin i SE

At 1 January 2018 RIF-)\E
—-p-H 427760 15 - 8b 9 - -
Fnancngcashfows ~~ BARER (47,324) (15) - 2 - 8578 -
Dividend declared ERERE - - - - - 8578 -

At31 December 2018 R=F-/\E
+-A=1-H 380,436 - - 83 9 - -

Adustment upon ERERAHRS
applcation £3% 1650

of HKFRS 16 - - - - - - 9,102

At1 January 2019 NIT-NE
(restatec) -A-HB(&3) 380,436 - - 63 9 - 9,102

Disposal of subsiciaries ~ HEHBA
(note 45(a)) (i 4)) (69,858) - - (18 - - 2,009
Financng cashflows ~ EER &I (286,994) 103 14 20 67 (23514) 2257)
New leases #ifig - - - - - - 543
Early termination of lease R HEE - - - - - - (1913)
Dividend declared ERRE - - - - - 2351 -

31 December 2019 RZE-hE
tZA=1-H 23,584 103 14 2%5 76 - 3,466

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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49 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

49 BERRIE

2019 2018
t S — T\
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Capital expenditure in respect of EETAIMER R ISk
the acquisition of property, BEBAME  HEER
plant and equipment contracted RECEART N
but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements 2,556 19,084
Capital injection in a joint venture EETAMERGR & BTk
contracted but not provided for BEcH—6ELFEY
in the consolidated financial AE
statements 14,441 14,700
Capital injection in an associate B ETAVERNR S BT ISRk
contracted but not provided for B —BERAlZ
in the consolidated financial =
statements 3,925 3,925
18,366 18,625
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁ%zzwg%\

OPERATING LEASE 50
COMMITMENTS

The Group as Lessee

At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall
due as follows:

REHERE

AEEERKBEA
R_E—N\F+_A=+—H ~5£HE
BB R L HER BB ERE
ZERVES OB IT

2018
—ZT-)N\F
US$'000
F=x
Land and buildings T RIEF
— within 1 year -RE—F 2,368
—in the 2nd to 5th year inclusive -RE_FEEFRF
(BEEMEBEEN) 2,371
4,739

Operating lease payments represented rentals
payable by the Group for an office premise and
certain of its container depot sites. Leases were
negotiated for an average period of 1 to 10 years
and rentals were fixed for an average of 1 to 3
years.

The Group as Lessor

The Group leases out properties under an
operating lease with rentals payable monthly. The
leases term is 11 years. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value of guarantee and/or lessee’s
option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term, and contain market review clauses in the
event the lessee exercises the option to extend.

LEMEEAKEN T —RAIERK
LERMSH EE - HOEFIEEE
BIE10F > MEEFHEERIE
3F o

AEBERHET
AEBUKEHESALEYE - 84
e HEMRANF - HES
RAT B8 RROEEM SREAEE
EfnBEEEREEE - WHAEA
MATECHEEROBRTNREEMS
BB

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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50 OPERATING LEASE 50 REHERE R
COMMITMENTS (Continued)
The Group as Lessor (Continued) AEBIEAHBA &)
Minimum lease payments receivables on leases are EREDHEERBLHENT -
as follows:
2019
—2-hEF
US$’000
FEx
Within one year RE—F 1,897
In the second year RE—F 1,714
In the third year RE=F 1,767
In the fourth year RE N E 1,800
In the fifth year RERFE 1,800
After five years FRFEZI% 8,303
17,281
At 31 December 2018, the Group had contracted RZEBE—-—N\EFE+—_B=+—0H KEH
with tenants for the following future minimum lease Bt NI ARREDHERIFEME P F]
payments: %4
2018
—ZF-)\F
US$’000
F=
Land and buildings T RIEF
— within 1 year -RE—F 1,229
—in the 2nd to 5th year inclusive -RE_FEEFRF
(EEMFREEAN) 7,110
— after five years -FRFZE 10,269
18,608
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %Eéﬂﬂ%iﬁ%zzwg%\

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The balances with the related parties are disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and notes 29, 30, 31, 32 and 39. All trade
balances with related parties are subject to normal
credit terms of 30 to 90 days (2018: 30 to 60
days). For the trade related balances in relation to
sales of containers overdue, a 4% of interest per
annum is charged to the related parties. Details of
transactions between the Group and other related
parties are disclosed below.

During the year, the Group entered into the
following trading transactions with related parties
that are not members of the Group:

51

FHRERAXRS
ERERRIZEHRENERE MR E
NM#E29 30 31 32 39 E © Fir
EHEEARMNBE S RENE—REE
ERETE  ABAEIZENR(ZZE—N
F:30E60K)  HRBHMNERM
HEE ZHBNIE - FFMBES IE
A%BMFNE  NREBEEMBEES 2R
SHBEBLT o

RER > REBEEBAERR (GEARSE
EXNE) ERATEERS :

2019 2018
N T )\F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Sales to immediate holding company [FIEZZR A RIHE S 29,140 104,011
Sales to fellow subsidiaries (Note) MRRMBARHEEE R
(B1at) 3,727 3,869
Sales to associates (Note) ML A RIHEEm (M) 4,242 2,298
Rental expense to a fellow m—RIZRMBARZMHE
subsidiary (Note) (H1az) - 424
Interest expense on lease to L—RRAMNBARMEE
a fellow subsidiary (Note) FBEBA ) 7 -
Short-term lease expense to tL—RIRMEBARRREES
a fellow subsidiary HEEH 219 -
Shipping charges to a fellow m—RRMBRAZT
subsidiary (Note) BB (Hit) 52 =
Interest income from immediate MBI A AU ER
holding company A EHA 3,945 1,362
Interest income from fellow BIEES AN
subsidiaries FESA 1,207 1,761
Interest income from an associate A —B &2 &) WELFI S U A 710 710

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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51

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
Note:

The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific International Lines (China)
Ltd., PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd., Pacific International Lines
(H.K.) Limited, Mariana Express Lines Pte. Ltd. and Strategic
Times Limited, in which PIL, a controlling shareholder of
the Company, also the immediate holding company of the
Company, has controlling interest.

The associates are the subsidiaries of Modex, including Modex
Energy Rentals Singapore Pte. Ltd., Modex Energy Services
Limited, Modex Middle East FZE, Modex Australia Pty Ltd.,
Modex AS and Gauthier Homes, Inc..

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into a new lease agreement for the office in Shanghai with
a fellow subsidiary for 2 years. The Group has recognised
an addition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
US$381,000 and US$381,000 respectively. As at 31 December
2019, such lease liabilities amounted to US$331,000.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management during the
year was as follows:

51

FREARRS (&)

[l Z B8 2 ml B A FRE % (F B HIR A Al « X F
FE(HE)ERAR A X Fs(BE)FRA
&/ + Mariana Express Lines Pte Ltd. /% Strategic
Times Limited * X-FAIE BRI 7] — K25l 1
RIRR R EEER I A] - FBZE R a2 R E

Z5 o
Im

& 2\ 7] 5 Modex #9 i1 & 22 7]+ £ 7% Modex
Energy Rentals Singapore Pte. Ltd. - Modex
Energy Services Limited *+ Modex Middle East
FZE + Modex Australia Pty Ltd. + Modex AS Fl
Gauthier Homes, Inc. °

FoE—NFEf A=+ —HIFFE T &
B8 — KA ZHERRIETYZ T — 5 E 5
HIEE LW EE  BHI2F - KREEFE HRE
FEEEMEERES SN T 381,000 T F
381,000%7 - R=ZFE—NF+=-H=+—H -
ZHEEE#331,000%7T °

FTEEEASZHRM

KEEEERLHEBERASY Bl
T -

2019 2018

—E-N\F

US$’000 US$’'000

FEx FET

Short-term employee benefits MHIE TaH 1,972 1,968
Post-employment benefits ZHE1R B A 71 75
2,043 2,043

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives is reviewed by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 APRZEEMBARZHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
General information of a. MBARZ—MEEN
subsidiaries
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries as at RIF-NFR-ZB-N\EF+Z
31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out RA=+—8  KARFZHEAF
below: BT
Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRTR
M/ BERR/
WEARER aftE  ANRFEZRELH BARE TEEH
2019 2018
it 2O T\
DY Terminal Ltd. Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
THEEARAA b HK$1,000,000 container
Tak storage and
1,000,000/ 7T repair services
RS RRERT
REERS
Eng Kong Container & Warehousing Ltd. ~ Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Investment
XEEREEERAA Bk HK$300,000 holding
LiEmk REER
300,000%7C
Eng Kong Container Services Ltd. Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary Provision of
KEEEREERAA B HK$3,000,000 container
L@k storage, drayage
3,000,000  and repair services
RS RART -
o3& R RS
Huizhou Singamas Energy Equipment PRC 100% 100% US$25,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. *" i 25,000,000 of dry freight and
MR REERAR specialised containers
HEGRRN
REBEEE

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 ARFZEEMBLRZFHIR
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MBARZ—REERE)

subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BEAR
R/ BERR/
WEARER dft®  ADRFEZRELH BART TERHB
2019 2018
“E-hF et
Ningbo Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC - 100.0% 1US$20,000,000 Manufacturing
ERATERERAF i (Note 1) 20,000,000t of dry freight
(Hit1) and specialised
containers
REGERE
REEERE
Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment PRC 100.0% 100.0%  RMB20,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.” i AR 20,000,0007C of offshore
ERBWEIREBRAR containers
Ik u/ilfg;&
Qidong Pacific Port Co., Ltd. " PRC - 100.0%  RMB154,000,000 Provision of
BRATABARAR" t (Note 1) AR 154,000,00070 container
(1) terminal services
iES
EBIR
Qidong Singamas Energy Equipment PRC - 100.0%  US$220,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. ** i (Note 1) 220,000,000 % 7T of dry freight,
BRBMEREEERA (Hiit1) specidlised
and refrigerated
containers
BUER RN
BREER
&/? /ﬁﬁ#t
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 ANRZEEMBARZHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MBARZ—MEENE)
subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully
Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BEAR
R/ BERR/
WEARER afbd AR ZRELH BART TERHB
2019 2018
—e-ne Eies
Qingdao Pacific Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC - 100.0%  US$126,605,700 Manufacturing
FEATEEARAR i (Note 1) 126,605,700 T of dry freight
(Hit1) and specialised
containers
BUEE ERA
REEERE
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container PRC 71.2% 77.2% US$25,300,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. ¥ i 25,300,000 7T of dry freight and
TREIWATEEERAR ! specialised
containers
BliEg £H%
REBERNE
Shanghai Pacific International Container PRC 64.9% 64.9% US$26,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. *# i 26,000,000%7T  of tank containers
FEATERSEARAR ¢ BB
Shanghai Resferco Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1S$22,000,000 Manufacturing
FEBELREBARRR " i 22,000,000 of refrigerated
containers
BERRERM
Shanghai Singamas Container Integration PRC 100.0% - US$2,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. *" i (Note 3) 2,000,000%7T of specialised
TEBREKRBERAR " (H#3) containers
BERBERY
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 ARFZEFEMELR ZFIF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEBARIZ—mBRHEERE)

subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities

BEAR

B/ BRRG/
WEARER dft®  ADRFEZRELH BART TERHB

2019 2018
“E-hF et

Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd. * ¥ PRC 75.0% 75.0% US$5,100,000 Manufacturing
BREBRIXARAR i 5,100,000 %7 of collapsible
flatrack and
specialised
containers
REBERNE
Singamas Container Holdings (Shanghai PRC - 100.0% US$5,000,000 Provision of
Limited ** i (Note 1) 5,000,000% 7 technical and
BREREER (L8 ERAA (1) development services
of container
manufacturing
Rt ERMGIE
BUPTET T
Singamas Depots Holdings Limited * Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Investment
BREGEEERAR & HK$10,000 holding
gl REER

10,000%7T
Singamas Management Services Limited *  British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Provision of
Islands 1,000%7T management
RBRNES services
RHERRE
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 AKPNRZEEMBARZFFHIE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEBARIZ—mREENE)

subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities

BEAR

B/ BERR/
WEARER dftE  ADRFEZRELA BART TERHB

2019 2018
—g-ne G

Singamas-Modex Limited Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Investment
BRERRERAR i HK$200,000 holding
Lak REER

200,000%7C
Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. * PRC 60.0% 60.0% US$5,780,000 Provision of
BRR(B8)BRAR i 5,780,000%7C  container storage
and repair services
RS RRERT
RERT
Singamas Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. * " PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$6,500,000 Provision of
B (K2)ERAR i 6,500,000%7C  container storage
and repair services
RIS RRERT
R#ERT
Singamas North America, Inc. @ USA - 100.0% US$500,000 Marketing
%8 | (Note2 500,000%7C containers in
(Hit2) the USA
EXRGHERA
Singamas Terminals (China) Limited British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
RERUHE REER
Singamas Terminals Holdings Limited* British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
RERUAE RERRK
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 ARFZEEMBLRZFHIR
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MBARZ—REERE)

subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities

BEAR

B/ BERR/
WEARER dft®  ADRFEZRELH BART TERHB

2019 2018
“E-hF et

Singamas Terminals (HK) Limited British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
EERAES RERR
Singamas Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
BREEER (FE) BRAA i HK$5,000,000 mid-stream
Lk services
5,000,000  REPRERRS
Singamas Warehouse (Shanghai) British Virgin - 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Company Limited Islands (Note 4) 1,000E7T holding
BREH(L8)BRAR RERAES | (Wid4) RERRK
Superb Gain Holdings Limited * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Property
Islands 1,000%7T holding
EERAES WERR
Taicang Modex Energy Engineering Ltd. * PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,500,000 Manufacturing
REEHBHRIRERAR " i 2,500,005 of offshore
containers
RGBTSR
Teamwill International Limited * British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Investment
Islands 1,000%7T holding
EERAES REER
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 ARFZEEMBLRZFHIR
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MBARZ—REERE)

subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BEAR
B/ BERR/
WEARER dftE  ADRFEZRELA BART TERHB
2019 2018
s SR T\
Tianjin Pacific Container Co., Ltd. * # PRC 97.0% 97.0% US$25,700,000 Manufacturing
REXTERERAR i 25,700,000 of dry freight
and specialised
containers
BUEEERA
REEERE
Tianjin Singamas Container Co., Ltd. ** PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Provision of
REBWERBRAR " hE 2,000000%7c  contaner storage,
repair and trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
R ERMRE
#iE - HBER
REU RS
Well Key Limited® Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary HK$1 Provision of
BiERAR" B Lk human resource
1387 management service
REANER
BRI
Wellmass Group Limited British Virgin 60.0% 60.0% US$10,000 Investment
Islands 10,000%7T holding
RERUAE RERR
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52 ARFZEEMBLRZFHIR
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MBARZ—REERE)

subsidiaries (Continued)
Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRTR
R/ BERR/
WEARER afbd KRR ZRELH BARE TERHB
2019 2018
“E-hF et
Xiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing PRC 100.0% 100.0% 1S$23,000,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. *" i 23,000,000%7T of dry freight
EFATERYERRAR " containers
BEGRRNE
Yixing Singamas Metal Products PRC 95.0% 95.0% US$200,000 Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. ** i 200000%7T  of container parts
HEBEMHEBHRARAR SRR SRR
* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company * VNTI= B35 2 =0 0) VAL
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in & RIEB B LD R E R BT
accordance with relevant laws and regulations ZEma B
Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in . RIEB B E D R E R B 7
the PRC in accordance with relevant laws and ZEINEHEE IR
regulations
e Represented common shares held by the g LKA L Alfs B I R
Company
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

a.

General information of
subsidiaries (Continued)

The principal place of operation of each
subsidiary is the same as the place of
incorporation/registration stated above,
except for those companies incorporated in
British Virgin Islands which are incorporated
for investment holding purpose.

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries
of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results and assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities outstanding at the end of the year.

Notes:

1 On 2 August 2019, the Group disposed the
Disposal Group to an independent third party.
Please refer to note 45 for details.

2 A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Singamas North America, Inc., was struck off in
November 2019.

3 A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Shanghai Singamas Container Integration
Co., Ltd., was incorporated on 30 May 2019
and engaged in manufacturing of specialised
container in Shanghai, the PRC.

4. A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Singamas Warehouse (Shanghai) Company
Limited, was struck off in May 2019.

52

ERBZEEWBAR ZFHE
(&)

a. MBARAZ—HEER®E)

BRI B R LB B AL AR R IR
BEBR AR BEMBARKE
Ez TR FICPRE 2 K
vy saiiipuk- 2 s oI

ERFAINGRARPESTR Y
AEBZBIREEREARE
MEZMBAR - ARFEEE
RARBEEMK B AR ZFER
SIHRREBER -

BHEARFEIL - WRAEMINE
RAVERERZEBRES

wisz

1 R-F-NFNNA-H FX&£H
HELEME T — B LE=T -
HAE 2RI 46 -

2 KL 7] — 2 EHTE 2 7] Singamas
North America, Inc. © 2 X = =&
—NEFE1—HitH -

3 LB RER R ERR AR 43
AR~ ENERA - 1=
ENFRA=1THKTIRFE
B F AR R 2 o

4 KR E]—2EHER IR E
(L&) ERABIER=ZF—NF
A AT -

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 52
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest
The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have
material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of
ownership interests
and voting
Place of rights held by
Name incorporation/ non-controlling
of subsidiary registration interests
FERRRER
R/ BENRER
HEAR AR Byt FRELH
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t-A

Shanghai Baoshan Pacific PRC 22.8% 22.8%
Container Co., Ltd. i

HEBWATERERAA

Shanghai Pacffic Intemnational PRC 35.1% 35.1%

Container Co., Ltd. w
EEATBRERERAA

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019

ERBZEEZEMBARZFHS
(%&)

b. HEEXFEZRBERERZZ

FEEEHAZMBARFE

TRETAEERGERNIFER
BREGZIFRERERAZHBR

RIS
(Loss) profit
allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests
(B8R) &H
AEEFER ZHFER
T4 RRER
Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
BE+-A=1-H Rt=B=1-R

2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-0E it —F-45 gt
IS USS000 VRSV USS000
TER TEL TER TEL

(524)

1,363

19,582 19,839

(799) (65) 10,963 11,762
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b.

Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest (Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect
of each of the Group’s non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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ﬁ?ﬂZi%W%ﬁﬁzﬁ%

b. HAEAXFERBREEZEZ

FEEHRAZMB LRSS
(%&)

ATER T A SEEER BRI
B REm 2T ERE 2B
REIZMBERBE - NI
BRI R AAEEAREIHFZ

T

Shanghai Shanghai Pacific
Baoshan Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
LRELATER LRATEREE
BRATR BRATR

2019
US$'000
“E-0E
FER

2018 2019 2018

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
SEkE = EER
TE7 T2 TER

As at 31 December Wt=-A=1—H
Current assets REEE 81,112 89,858 34,859 44,704
Non-current assets ERBEE 17,154 15,517 17,230 19,149
Current liabilities mEAE (16,155) (21,235) (14,827) (24,317)
Equity attributable to NS E

owners of the Company Bl 62,529 64,301 26,299 27,774
Non-controlling interests HERREER 19,582 19,839 10,963 11,762
Year ended 31 December BZt+t-HA=1t—H
Revenue ] 103,488 177,340 33,830 67,189
Expenses EH (105,785) (171,370) (36,105) (67,379)
(Loss) profit for the year KERE (B1B) & (2,297) 5,970 (2,275) (184)
(Loss) profit attrioutable to KRARIRRES

owners of the Company (B8) &M (1,773) 4,607 (1,476) (119
(Loss) profit attrioutable to IR RS

non-controling interests FE(h (B598) & A (524) 1,363 (799) (65)
(Loss) profit for the year RERE (B1B) &H (2,297) 5,970 (2,275) (184)

“E-NFFR - BREECERRAA
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52 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
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52 AARZEEMBARZFE

(%&)

b. HEEXFEZRBERERZZ
EEEHAZMBLARFE

non-controlling interest (Continued) (&)
Shanghai Shanghai Pacific
Baoshan Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd. Container Co., Ltd.
LBBELATERE LBATERERE
BRAR BRAR
019 2018 019 2018
$°000 US$'000 $000 US$000
—T)N\F —T-)N\F
TEn TEx
Year ended 31 December ~ HE+_-A=1—H
Total comprehensive AARIRRIES
(expense) income 2E ()
attributable to owners Wras 8%
of the Company (1,773) 4,607 (1,476) (119
Total comprehensive IR R R
(expense) income EE2E ()
attributable to et
non-controlling
interests (524) 1,363 (799) (65)
Total comprehensive FRZE(ZH)
(expense) income W B%E
for the year (2,297) 5,970 (2,275) (184)
Net cash (used in) from SREH (FTHE)
operating activities FIERE 8 (2,081) (6,206) (298) 12,808
Net cash (used in) from REEE (FTE)
investing activities FIEREFE (3,323) (1,688) 1,472 (3,379)
Net cash from (used in) RMEBEZEMG
financing activities (Fr#e) R Fe 302 (58) (4,413) (7,437)
Net cash (outflow) inflow FHE ORH)RA (5,102) (7,952) (3,239) 1,092
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53 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 53 #EESH

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
(“COVID-19”) in the PRC and other
countries since early 2020 could have an
impact on the operations of the Group.
The Group suspended certain of its
manufacturing activities in January 2020
due to mandatory government quarantine
measures putting into effort to control the
spread of the epidemic. The production
resumed lately in mid of February 2020. In
addition, the operations of certain of the
Group’s customers and associates are also
affected in different aspects, which in turn,
may affect the recoverability of Group’s
trade receivables that are subject to ECL
assessment and also the carrying amounts
of the Group’s associates. The directors of
the Company are still assessing the financial
impact that the COVID-19 will have on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as
at the date that these financial statements
are authorised for issue, and the actual
financial impact, if any, will be reflected in
the Group’s future financial statements.

The Group endeavours to enter into a
commercially feasible agreement with the
immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries in relation to the repayment
of trade balances due from them (the
“Repayment Plan”) as soon as reasonably
practicable. At the date of the issuance of
these consolidated financial statements,
no definitive agreement in relation to
the Repayment Plan has been entered
into. Such agreement will be subject to
agreement among relevant creditors of the
immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries, as well as other compliance
requirements.

B-Z_TFYIUR - AERME
EREET —E—AHUEM
%= ([COVID-19]) » AJeE& A
SEMNEEELETE - HRBUN
FEEX 58 I M A R HE B AP AR 1T
RHEL  AEBR T -_FTF
— BRI THEPEEES - £E
ER_E-_TFE - AdhakiE -
AN AEBRFE RBE QRN
¥ OZETEAEmEE UK
VEAERTEHREHERE
2K 1) 8 A BR 3R 9 B LAz [0 1 DA R K
EEBE QA RMREE - A2 A
E E 7T {H COVID-19 7 % 1
BMELMEHRRBHAEE
REMBRENTBZE  BIR
M E(WNE) SRBRERSE
15 SR A TS R o

AEBENEERERRRME
EHBAREREATTHEER
BRRER L FIRETER([E
Hardll) - ERMELLESYMH
WRZE - HARFIE A BIEK
(EAIBRRE D % o 2% 1B A BUR
BEERARMRE RN EQFN
HEAGEEAZENHRE  ARE
e RIEEK -
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54 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 54 EANBZHBRARERER
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
2019 2018
- LRl T\
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - R NEEE 783 885
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRIZIKE 167,828 537,378
Investments in associates OB & A TZ&Z ) 260 260
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE LA Ff B /T/\ 183,567 154,894
Amount due from immediate U B B R j/T/\IE\
holding company 3,945 -
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary U — & i B A 7508 1,207 -
Equity instrument at fair value BAREBEF AR
through other comprehensive THKHEEGETA
income 7,439 6,846
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIT A - 1,061
Other receivables H b pe kI8 29,090 —
394,119 701,324
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables T 1t Kz E b & I3k 17,006 68,931
Amount due from immediate holding & & 1% A% A 7] IE
company - 1,094
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary & — R ZHIE A 7178 - 622
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTA 41 =
Bank balances and cash RITEERNIR® 79,334 3,157
96,381 73,804
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables fEsTE A &Ei\ﬁﬁf RIBRFR 3,766 3,067
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST BT BB A /TA 1,070 39,640
Amount due to immediate FEAST B R KIA
holding company 103
Amounts due to associates & 1‘fﬂ5ﬁ§-§@ EIE 101 54
Bank borrowings IRITRER 22,883 125,362
Tax payable JERIBETE 9,396 —
37,319 168,123
Net current assets (liabilities) REBEE (BE) FE 59,062 (94,319
Total assets less current liabilites ZEEAZAZERRBEE 453,181 607,005
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54 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 54 APRRZBMBHRRARERR
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (%)
COMPANY (Continued)

2019 2018
t S — T\
Us$’'000 US$'000

FEx FET
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital AR 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits Evapivil 179,901 123,655
Other reserves HAnf# 5,131 4,561
453,181 396,365
Non-current liability ERBEME
Bank borrowings RITIER - 210,640
453,181 607,005
The Company’s statement of financial position was RRABIZHMBERARBEERARARESTERN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of —ECRF=Z A BEREREE
directors on 26 March 2020 and are signed on its & WHTIIARRIESKEKEE -
behalf by :
Teo Siong Seng Teo Tiou Seng
RAE REAR
Director Director
EE EE
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54 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 54 ARNFRZMBFRARERR
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (%)
COMPANY (Continued)
Investment Share
Movement in the revaluation option Accumulated
Company’s reserves reserve reserve profits Total
ANRZERED REEMMERE BRERE E Gyl HE
US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET TET TEn
At 1 January 2018 R=F—/\F—A—H 5,474 347 35,039 40,860
Profit for the year KEFHF - - 96,253 96,253
Fair value loss on equity BAABEAEMZE
instrument at FVTOCI Wz R TR
AR BEEE (1,195) - - (1,195)
Total comprehensive FREE () KR e
(expense) income
for the year (1,195) - 96,253 95,058
Dividend paid to owners IRNARERERE
of the Company - - (7,702) (7,702)
Share option forfeited BRIERR - 8) 8 -
Share option lapsed B = (67) 57 -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-\F+-A=1—H 4,279 282 123,655 128,216
Profit for the year KEHM - - 77877 77,877
Fair value gain on equity BARBEFARLMLEE
instrument at FVTOCI W EmTAR
R BERE 593 - - 593
Total comprehensive income  FRNEE U2
for the year 593 - 77,877 78,470
Dividend paid to owners of AR BEIRER S
the Company - - (21,654) (21,654)
Share option forfeited BRERZ I - 29) 23 -
At 31 December 2019 R-B-h&
+=A=+-H 4,872 259 179,901 185,032

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2019, calculated under section 297 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounting
to US$179,901,000 (2018: US$123,655,000).

Singamas Container Holdings Limited + Annual Report 2019
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Five Year Financial Summary B
hFEHBEHE

For the year ended 31 December

BZt-A=t-BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015
—F-\%F ZTtF “F-R “F-0%
% % % %
Sales Mix HESS
(as a percentage of sales)  (SASEEHEARILE)
Manufacturing: HEEK
Dry freight TERA 64 78 84 64 57
Refrigerated containers REERM 13 6 9 14
Tank containers ] 4 6 10
US domestic containers FERERER 6 9 1
Other specidlised containers ~ EfESEER
and container parts SRR 11 4 3 8 5
96 98 98 96 97
Logistics services MiniR% 4 2 2 4 3
Total k) 100 100 100 100 100
TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs TEUs
TREER LR ERE2= TRIZER HREER
Production volume tEE
20-foot containers 20REER 102,368 192,400 163,370 196,057 163,847
40-foot containers HOREER 8,936 54,406 7,390 20,624 30,934
40-foot high cube containers ~ 40RE FEE# 226,722 524,336 532,798 248,712 262,682
45-oot high cube containers 45 REFEER 360 5,850 4,104 13,464 9,798
Others Hith 13,280 58,928 30,624 44,928 59,632
352,166 835,920 738,286 523,785 526,893
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Five Year Financial Summary TS5 HE

BET-A=t-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE —F-\E “FtF “E1F “E-1%
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEn S Fxn S Txn
Revenue L 712,209 1,807,819 1,476,670 916,433 1,126,414
(Loss) profit fom operations & (&518) &7 (95,960) 35,031 70,652 (49,638) 16,562
Finance costs BBER (14,515) (18,549) (14,434) (11,060) (10,663
Investment income BAWA : 7,615 2,765 2,764 5,086
Change in fair value of derivative $T4&BIAZ
financial instruments DA BEEE (382) 47 756 376 (259)
Gain on disposal of subsidliaries ﬁ‘ﬂﬁ% Al Wi 7,11 65,604 = = =
Share of results of associates ~ [EIREEE A 5] 2 E1E (829) (2,512) (1,745) (1,201) (2,450)
Share of results of joint ventures  FE{ER & %2 aH 127 37 398 410 659
(Loss) profit before taxation ~ ExFAl (B51R) A (94,159) 87,173 58,302 (68,349) 8,935
Income tax expense FrEpiE (16,638) (13,791) (14,952) (3,571) (10,287)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (BB) 87 (110,797) 73,382 43 440 (61,920) (1,352)
Attributable to: fEl
Owners of the Company ARARE (110,230) 72,252 41,452 (59,434) (2,729)
Non-controling interests SRR e (567) 1,130 1,988 (2,486) 1,371
(110,797) 73,382 43440 (61,920) (1352)
(Loss) earnings per share &% (&18) &7
Basic £V US(4.56) US2.99 US1.72 US(2.46) Us(0.11)
cents £l cents =l cents /L cents =1l cent
Diluted 23 US|(4.56) US2.99 US1.72 US(2.46) Us(0.11)
cents E{l cents =l cents =1l cents =l cent Xl
As at 31 December
R+=A=t+-AH
019 2018 2017 2016 2015
3 “2-\f B 2§ _2-%F
$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
A TEn FEn TEn
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEE 673,412 1,399,983 1,634,455 1,225,627 1,166,040
Total liabilties BafE (110,705) (704,204) (1013,862) (647,807) (518,379)
Net assets FEE 562,707 695,779 620,593 577,820 647,661
Equity ER
Equity attributable to YN I
owners of the Company 525,810 656,697 574,199 533,014 595,282
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 36,897 39,082 46,394 44,806 52,379
Total equity ERes 562,707 695,779 620,593 577,820 647,661

Note: There is no restatement of prior years financial information upon
application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 January 2018 and

HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019.
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BHEEEXAMRAT
SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

19th Floor, Rykadan Capital Tower,

135 Hoi Bun Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BANEEBB IS REAEERKNEI9E
Tel &5 :(852) 2598 7831

Fax &  :(852) 2598 7847

E-mail BE : info@singamas.com
Website #81 : http//www.singamas.com
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